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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package. identifying a care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider.
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
amounts due under the lease.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

CSH 18 a leading provider of care-based communuty
housing in the UK.

CSH believes that access 10 a decen: home 13 a basic

human right frem which so much more can be achieved,

partcularly for people who are hiving with a hfe-long
disability. With millions of people suuck on housing
waiung hste acress the UK, or trapped in long s:ay
hospiials, CSE became the first public company to bring
large scale equity Investment o the sector,

The Company has the dual okbjectves of achieving both
positive financial returns and large scale measurable
soclal impact.
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Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2023

Company Overview
as at 31 March 2023

® Alternative Perlormance Measures Terms are defined in the Glossary



Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and
Diluted EPS: -42.0%

Pance

2023

Profit Before Tax
£25.5m -43.1%

satrion

EPRA EPS*
4.43p -8.1%

Fenee

NAV per share”
109.16p -1.0%

NAV
£661.9m -2.0%

NAYV increase since
IPO* -9.5%

Ponos e 1on Porcen.
2023 2023 2023
0% 20327 070
110.30 675.5 126
2371 2371 071
108.30 673.5 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder

property?
£978.1m +1.0%
2023

la¥aland

968.8
200

915.6

(Ordinary shares)
5.70p +2.7%

Fenoe
2023

e
PR

§5.55

Al

540

4 Allcinative Perfoimance Measuies TOM0s are detined in the Glossdaty
1 onan Ordmary share held since launch {percentage nol annualised)
2 imveshment property inde pendently valued S6e note 15 0 ot the Consohdated Finanmal S1atements for details of the valuanon

Return*!
-16.5%

Foreen.

1.6

26.5
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CLIVITAS SOCTAL HOUSING PLC

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

Key Achievements

Operational Highlights

697 nrovenes £835 million 4,594 tenants pased o supported oy across 178 local
azguired! mvested witn denendane ong term 131t care authority partners
accommodation leases signed with providers
19 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its semi annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas’ assets

as ‘Contributes to Solutions’ according to the internationally recognised Impact
Management Project (IMP) dimensions of impact. TGE also notes that Clvitas’
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing, easing the
burden on residential or inpatient facilities.

1 over the hte of the Company as al 31 Match 2023

Levered IRR* since IPO

Pasi peiformanae 15 not a rehabla incicatar of luture performance
* Alernatve ferformance Measute See Appendix 1 lur the calculanon

Share price performance (pence)







This 15 our sixth Annual Repor:, covenng the year to

31 March 2023, . am pleased ‘o repor: that desprize a
difficult economic backdrop in the UX, our portfoho has
continued 1o perform strongly. dehivering on average a
3% ncrease in renzal icome denved from cur inflaton
adjusted leases.

Our ‘nvesiment Adwviser. Civiias invesinen: Managemen:
“imized ("CIv), has connnued to work closely with our
Approved Jroviders to enhance further the quality of the
por:folio and to assis: where needed 1in the process of
ensunng our rental income 18 recetved on a amely basis.

'The net asse: value of the Company at 3! March 2023 was
109.206 pencea. a small decrease of ©.03% from (1C.30 pence
per share ag at 4. March 2022,

The 3oard declared a final dividend of 1.425p, Lringing
“he full year dividend ¢ 570 in hine with the mimmum
stated intenuon

A difficul: challenge during the year was the sharp
Increase N interes: rateés. . am pleased thatin “ebruary
2025 the Company enzered inwo a new deb: facilicy for
£7C.8m, which was partly used o repay the loan facilizy
with Lloyds n addinon. we also fixed our ineres: rate
exposure o provide graater carainty. ~owever, the
cverall re-financing was achieved at a matenal increase
N ongoing interest costs. ull details are included 1in the
nvesimen: Adviser's REpor

Our share price has been disappomning over ‘he year
under review, reflecung in par: the broad deraning of
real estate inves ments. higher interes: rates and inves:or
concern abous our sector. The 3oard has been reviewing
a number of possible acuons 10 address this position.
The Company has con:inued o buy back shares - over
“he pas: 2 months 11 has acguired 6,05C.000 shares a: an
average of 76 89 pence per share for a towal invesimen:
of £4.65 milhion. This has enhanced the NAV by 0.30% and
benefized the Z2RA earnings.

Continuation Vote

At ~he annual general meeiung on 5 Sepiember 2822,
98.84% of those shareholders who voied have voied in
favour of the connnuation of the Company.

Offer for the Company

“ollownng the year end, on 9 May 2023 “he 3vard
announced a recommended offer for the Company at 80p
per share in cash, from a subsidiary of CK Asger Holdings
tamited (CRA)

Whilst the 3oard behevesg that the Offer undervalues the
long-term prospec:s of Civitas as expressed by net asser
value. we also recognise *hat Civizas, and s sector as a
whole, faces a number of challenges 1in senumen: which
‘he public markets are unlikely 10 overcome 1n the shor: o
meduum erm.

The Offer prowides liquidizy :o shareholders with the
opporunity to exitin full and it cash a: a significan:
premium o the curren: share price, 1n a ime of
macroeconomic uncer:almv_

Moreover, CKA, as a curren: mves:or in the social housing
sector. has a dezailed understanding of the attracuve
fundamen:als of the real estate and the experuse of the
managemen: :eam. CXA does not expect there 10 be

any disrupuon 0 renan:s as a resul; of the Offer and wnll
be focused on he contanuanon of relationships with
Approved Providers, care providers and the Regulator

of Social Zousing following the complenon of the Offer.
The Board therefore considers the terms of the Offer o be
falr and reasonable and we have recommended 1 "o our
shareholders.

Outlook

Demand for the type of properies wirhin the Company's
porfolio remains sirong with independen: forecas's
prediciing that there will be conunued growh for

many years o comen “he need for addraonal units

of adapred accommodanon The 3oard remains
confident in the strength of the por:folio and 125 potenaal
Tevenilue generaliorl.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023

|
7
#
=
=
2
=
=
South West - 13.5
London 26 128
% West Midlands 101 13 16
e el
Yorkshire and the Humber 9 103 10.7
Wales 34 10 106
North West 10.1
South East 9.8
East Mldlands 8.8
North East 5.4
[ East of England 39
.
Market Value (%) Tenancies

Sourh Wesi outh West

Londun Yorksnite and the

; Wesi Midlands 4 59 4 Humber B
) - North West
£978.1m W= , o

Yorkshire and the
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Our Portfolio
By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%) Properties
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Investment Adviser’s Report

In the yearﬁto March 2023, CIM continued to work closeily with the Board to manégg
a high-perfoerming portfolio.

Social Impact
4594 high-quality T

£727.C mithon savings 7o the public purse
rizable relationships

Phase two work with E.ON
Tareyenng -

oninaed ac

Targsing muimim

—ousig managemen® and compliance

8s€7 managemen’

ning of care

CIVITAS BOCIAL
REFORT AND ACK

t Source The Good Econemy Civitas Soeial Housing PLE Annual Impact Report 2021 June 2021
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Introduction

Civitas invesiment Managemen: Lirnied {"CIM™ 1s the Investmen: Adwviser 1o Civitas Social Rousing PLC ("CS5E and 18

the leading provider of care-based housing 1in the UK. CiM comprises a team of 39 indimviduals with a range of experuse
In specialist supported housing, real esiate managemen: and complex care needs CIM has the capacity and specialis:
knowledge 1o manage the CSH porntfolio at a granular level and has cultivated sirong professional relationships across

the sector over the las: decade.

Overview of Results

'n the UK pnor 0 the launch of the Comparry, equity

and privaze capial played a very small par in the social
housing sector. Over ume, U< demographics changed and
she number of adul:s with long-ierm, complex care needs
has been steadily increasing

Thus 15 reflected in a number of instaanonal invesiors
including aspects of social housing wizhin their
investmen: sraegles.

Results Highlights

e S1x years of consisten: rental growth and progressive
dividend payments :tha: have inmcreased from an iniual
300p per share to 5.70p per share for the year ended
31 March 2023

e Aretained high-cqualizy investmens: credit rating from
Firieh Ratings of A secured and A- ungecured since
March 2021, which CSE was the first 1o secure 1In
this sector.

e Anactnvely managed porifolio of operaitional real
estate with a sector-leading team of praofessionals
assisang and enablhing high quahty and longevity of
homes and income.

e Professional suppor: 1o enable Approved Providers o
enhance the quality of their delivery and demonstrate
long--erm financial and operational independeance.

e Targeung invesiments and homes which enable
the dehvery of mgher end care as this 15 where the
greatest need exis:s and where the apphcability of
exemp: rents 1s clearly demonstrazed.

e Anactive and continuing programme working
with =ON to permanently reduce carbon emissions
across the portfolio, leading o lower energy cos:s for
residents and a more carbon neutral portfolio.

e Secror-leading parmnmerships with nauonal and local
charines dehvering real change and continuing 0
enhance C8='s repuration as the most experienced
mvestor in social infrasiructure in the UK

e CIlv has a highly experienced asser managemen:
seam which has overseen some £25 million of physical
improvemen:s o the portfolio since inception, largely
paid for by the vendors of the properzies.

Sector-Leading Social Outcomes
ESG

Qur ESG Pohcy s located at www.orviiassocialhousing.com.
- provides an overview of the Company's invesimen:
procedures and sets out the 3oard’'s commitment 10 a
ConinNuous Mmprovement process in 11s approach o

~5G Integraion.

ESG Rating Providers

C.M engages with the leading ESG raang providers ¢
ser out the activinies that are underaken by C5= and

w0 ensure these are profiled and evaluated correcily.
Notably, active partncipation in the 2022 GRz33 Pubhc
Jisclosure Assessment has resulted in CSHE retaimng

an A score previously attained in 2021, whilst the peer
group average score has moved up 0 3. CSE s up

10 second position within its Comparison Group (UK
Residensial) Meanwhile the Risk Raung Score for C5H by
Susramnalyiics remains at 149 {Low Rigk) as was repored
In “ebruary 2023.
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

The latest independent report by The Good Zconomy
on CSH was published in November 2022 and notes
CSH's contmued progress in deliverning measdrable
soctal impact Social value analysis by The Good
sconomy, carned out in March 2027, found *hat, overall,
‘he por:folic generated £ 27 million of social value

per year, including fiscal savings 1o public budgets of
£759 mullion per year.

Of particular note with respec: to the por:folio:

e 4'% of CS—'s 697 properues have been broughtinto
“he gpecialist housing sector for the first ume

e (SFk continues regular engagemenr with 1is Approved
Zroviders to moniior the gquality of us stock

+ mprovement works have enhanced the energy
efficiency of homes

e 87% of responden:s o the survey of residen:s carned
out by GV 1n March 2027 repor:ed tha: they were
satisfied with the qualisy of thewr home

e (CS= Approved rovider pariners have repored 99%
statutory comphance - considerably betier than the
wider affordalxle housing secior.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/

Energy Cost Savings

CIM continuées o work with S.0N (a leading UX energy
and solunons company) ander a national framework
agreemens: in parnership with C3+ tenants, 10 /mprove
the environmental performance of the por:folio. The
‘fabric firs:' approach o reducing the porfoho's
carbon foo:prin: includes the installation of cavity wall
msulation. loft insulation, external wall insulasion, air
source hear pumps and solar ?V and batery s:orage 'o
identified properies within the por:folio. The mmstallazion
of these energy efficient measures, utlising available
governmen: grants and other funding sources, will
opumise value for the Company, our counzerparies
and our shareholders The collakorazion with =.0ON s
dehvering significan: environmencal enhancements
withour any C0st 10 our Approved 2roviders.

The 2hase 2 retrofir surveys will help to refine the
implemensasion programme and 1dencify “he bes:
merhod for reducing the zo1al carbon dioxide
emussions (and fuel costs} associazed with individual
properies over the medium or long term The overall
energy perfearmance of the portfolio, as idenufied

on ~nvironmen:al Performance Ceruficates ("5PCH
repor:s data has improved over the las: 22 months The
proporaon of properzies with =2C Rating A C1s currently
c55% and the carbon footprin: {esuimated from propery
charac:erisnucs) has reduced by 2% per Civiias enancy
(from 2.65 ronnes of CO./~enancy in Varch 2022 o

2.6" ronnes of CO-/renancy}. The whole social housing

secror, and indeed the whole housing sector. conunues
o require significant public invesimens: tif 17 1S 10 meet “he
current governmen: guidelinegs on achieving net zero
carbon emissions by 2050

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Current mental health legislasion regults iIn many people
with mental health 1ssues or learning disahbility needs bemng
detained in large tnsuanions that are ofien inappropnate
for the indwniduals. 1is estimated by N=S Digital that there
was a nse in annual mental health detennions from 45864 1n
2076/2017 10 over 53.239 1n 2020/202

Once people are secioned ino an insasahion 1@ becomes
very difficult and costly to move thermn nto a suppor:ed
ving communiry seting.

Ag aresult of thege concerns, the Government commissioned
an independen: body chaired by Professor Sir Stmon
Wessley 1n 2077, Currenily in draf: form in the douses

of Parhament the Men:al Heal:h Reform Act seeks to

raise the threshold for deraining people with a learning
disability and/or auusm unless thay have a coexisting
peychiaine disorder.

We helieve tha: this Ac: will dnive evern more demand for
communuy housing and care setiings which are already in
shor: supply. further secunng the value and nnporance of
“he C3= porffolio.

‘The C5= parifolio wall further benefis from she following
broader marke: dynamics

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall regualation of social housing 1s under review
with the main objecuve of dehivenng rransformatonal
change for social housing residents and fulfilling the
Governmensts 20°8 manmifesto pledge 0 "empower residen:s,
provide greater redress, beter regulation and improve the
qualizy of social housing”

The imphcanon of this review for C3='s porfolio s
expeced o be positive as 17 aims o bning landlords closer
+a their senants and more focused on addressing their
needs gquickly. Cur Approved “rownders are very close <o
“herir residents needs and work in parmership with care
providers 1o ensure good quahiy service outcomes, all
suppored by the granular asset managemen: provided by
CV every day



Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Overcight) Bill

This bill, which 15 under review, seeks to improve

the regulation and outcomes of supported exempt
accommodarnon. This follows reporied cases. pamcularty
of temporary housing, tha: should not quahfy as

exemp: accommodaton.

Financial Review

As at 31 March 2023 the Ner Asset Value of the Company was
£6619 million, being :09.16 pence per share, a 1.03% decrease
on the Z10.30 pence per share at 31 March 2022. A ne:

falr valle gain on imvestmen: properties of £2.6 milhon

{2022: £12.3 mulhon} was recorded in the year.

Operational cash flows increased moderately o

£39.5 milhon (2022 £39.1 mihen). Ongoing rental collections
throughou: the year supported the Company's healthy
operanng cash flows despite further increases o the cost of
delt as all facilines were put onw A fixed basis,

Rental Growth and Dividend

The porfolio genera:ed rental income {exchuding
any msurance and service charge rechargeables)
of £54.1 milion. represenung c.5% Increase over the
corresponding period lasr vear

The contracted ren: roll now increases “hrough indexaton
only as no new equlty has been raised and :herefore no
new investments have been made in the period.

Dunng the year. the Company declared and paid four
drnidend disinibutions including one dividend of 1.48745p
and hree insalmenss of T4250p

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

CIM arranged the following debt facihines which fixes delb:
on the porifolio at an average rate of 3.92% uanil Augus: 2021
as 1s pruden:in the current INteres: rate enviIronmernt.

Remauung

Tetm at Loan
Il Mar 23 Principal
Lenders o Facilny  (yeais) _tuoov Allin rate:
Scottish Widows Fixed 4.59 52500 2.99%
Delilscne Bank Fixed 4.85 70878 5.69%
AG. London
Branch
HSBC Fixed by 267 100,000 4.60%
Inierest
raie cap
NatWest Fixed by 138 6C.000 A.60%
Tnierest
raic swap
MEC Fixed 491 84500 3.14%
3.67 367,925 3.92%

We have recewed erms from lenders o refinance the
NatWest facility which 1s dhue 1o expire in August 2024.

Governance

CM continues “o engadge actively witth the Company's
Approved 2rovider partners and care providers, offerning
adwvice and shared learning.

The 3oard, comprised of five independen: non-execuive
Directors, carnes out an annual Board performance
evaluatlon exercise and hosts penodic sitategy sessions
n addinon o regular planned 3oard meeings.

Summary

CIM conanues o closely and proactively asset manage
+he larges: porifolio of specialis: care-based housing 1n
the UK.

‘There is demons:irable demand in excess of supply
and signmificant further legislation thatis hkely o
continue o increase demand for the properues in the
Company's portfolio

We continue 1o uandertake our work with a view ‘o both
enhancing the value of the porifolio and protecting the
interest of cur underlying tenants

Civitas Investment Management Limited

‘nvestment Adviser

28 June 2023
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The Asset Management Team understand he vatue of a good home, With nearly 100 years' expenence between them
working in the housing field, there 1s a lot of knowledge we can share.

As par: of our active asset managemens: of the C8H porfolio, we work with and suppor: our paniners tackling 1ssues and
finding solutions to help sus:ain the *enancies of the most vulnerable people hving 1n our homes.

A recent example of this was with Cole S:ree: and Fampden Road. These properties are managed by Tninity Eousing
Associanon and are popular propernes with long standing residents. However, Trinity had struggled to mee: iis housing
benefir potenaal. Officers from the team worked closely with Tniniy and suppored them o put the informatuon and
evidence ‘aogether for tribunal. Trinity won the mmbunal and the mater was resclved with a full backdate and rent
agreed. This was a grea: resul: for the team and for the tenanis at the schemes.

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached wo storey bBlock of seven self-contained flats
consirdcied around The "850s Some external works were

Before After

identfied as being required and a review was underaken Tlav?
at he asset. Assessmeant reporg obliuned saggested Slas 2
~hat replacing “he heaters within the flats and other

minor works would improve ~he energy efficiency and, Matd
In mos: cases, improve the -°C raungs ar the same ume, “lat 4

We herefore tendered a programme of works over wwo

phases - the firs: phase just before the previous Winter Maw s
penod to replace *he exising heazers with high heat
retennon storage heaters — the second phase dunng the
following Spnng/Summer penod was 0 undertake the Slat v
external works 1o remove The existung render. replace and
decorate o Improve the exterior of the building

Tlat b
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HOUSING PLC

CIVITAS SOCIAL

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company is (o provide long-
term sultable homes for individaals with care needs;
acting in a sustamnable manner 1s key to achieving

-his aim. Properaes that are owned by the Company
are tatlored 10 mee: the firture needs of the 1enants
and, where required, are acuvely agset managed

to provide long-erm funcuonaliy and value o the
wider commiinity.

Environment

Dunng the mnvestment due dilgence phase. the Company
looks closely at the environmental impact of each
potental acquisiion, and encourages a sustainable
approach for maintenance and upgrading properties.
Through collaborating with speciahst developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expec:s from
each invesiment in the care-kased housing sector 18
adopted by other comparnies in the sector

Once within the por:folio, “he properues of the Company
are actively managed, and “he Investmen: Adviser
assesses whe:her there are opporrunties 1o improve the
environmental efficiency of the properues, in addition <o
other asse: managemen: wunatives. The Company has an
=nvironment, social and Governance fohcy which can be
found on the Company's websize. This goes Into farther
detad about the Company's 286G approach and how
mTegrates with invesimen: sirategy. Jurther details on the
Company's 5SG approach can also be found on pages 37
o 4.

The 3oard has considered the requiremensts 10 disciosa
‘he annual quanuaty of emissions; further deatl on this s
ncidded i the Repor: of the MNreciors on page 52,

Diversity

The Company does no: have any employees or office
space and, as such. the Company does no: operaze a
dwrersity polhicy with regards 1o any adminis:rattve and
managermen: functions.

Whils: recognising “he imporance of diversizy 1n the
boardroom, the Company does nor consider 17 20 be

tn the interes: of the Group and s shareholdery 1o sa:
prescripuve diversity cnteria or trargeis. The 3oard has
adopied a diversity policy in respec: of appoiniments
-0 be made 1o the 2oard and will continue 0 monror
diversity. taking such steps as 11 considers appropriate
T0 MAalntain 13158 posiiion as a merizocrasc and diverse
business The 3card's objectuve 15 10 mainiamn effeciive
decision making. including the impac: of succession
plannng. All 3oard appom:men:s will be made on meri:
and have regard o diversity regarding factors such as
gender, ethnicry, skills, background and experience
This includes Director appoiniments o the Audtt and
Managemean: Ingagemen: Commitee and Nominaton
and Remuneranon Commiitee See Corporate Governance
Staemen: on page 56.

The Board compnses three male and two

fernale non-execunive Directors. Throughous the year,
“he Company comphed with the Hampion-Alexander
Review's target of a minumum 33% represenzation of
women on TTSE 350 hoards.

The 3oard 1s aware of the recomnmmendatons of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
par: of the 3oard's succession planmung. See Corporate
Governance S:atement on page 56,

The 3oard of Jirectors of the Company's subsidhanes,
which are non-operatonal, each comprise one female
and up to four male Directors.

Human Rights

Grven the Company's rurnover for the year under review.
it now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Ac: 2015, The Company published 1ts modern slavery
statemen: aon 22 Iepember 2070

The Board 1s sansfied that 1o the bes: of 11s knowledge,
the Company's principal advisers, which are listed in
-he Company information sechion, comply with the
provisionsg of the UX Vodern Slavery Act 2015,

The Company's business 18 solely in the UK and “herefore
is considerad o be low nsk with regards 'o human
rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's proper:ies enable the provision of care
0 some of the most villnerable people 1in the communisy.
ensunng safe and secure accommodarzion, ralored o
meet individual care needs The Company has increased
“he provision of care-basad housing, bringing new
supply 10 the secior and providing homes o over 4500
people All 0of the Company's properies enable the
provistan of high levels of care, generaring local jobs and
helping 1o sappor: local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
recialremeanst 0 separately repor on thus araa.

The ‘nvesimen: Adviser 1s an equal opporianinies
employer who respec:s and seeks 10 empower each
imdividual and the diverse cultures. perspecnives. skills
and experiences within 11s workforce.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors' overarching duty 18 1o act in good farth and
1 a way that s most hkely to promote he success of the
Company as set out in secton “72 of the Companies Act
2006. In doing so. Directors must take into consideration
she interests of the vanous s:akeholders of the Company,
‘he impac: the Company has on the caommunnry and the
environment taks a long-ierm view on consequernces

of the decisions they make, as well as aim 0 maintam a
reputaticn for high standards of business conduct and
fair reatment between the members of the Company.

Fulfiling this duty naturally supports the Company

n achieving its investment objective and helps to
ensure that all decisions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way. (n accordance with the requirements
of the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Requilations
2018, the Company explains how the Directors have
discharged thetr dutes under gecuon 172 below.

To engare that the Directors are aware of, and
understand, their dutes, they are provided with the
perinent infermaton when they first join the Board

as well as receiving regular and ongoing updates and
cramning on the relevant maters. .nduction and access
to cramming 18 provided for new Directors. They also
have continued access to the advice and services of
she Company Secretary and. when deemed necessary.
+he Directors can seek independen: professional advice
at the Company's expense. The Schedule of Matiers
Raserved for the Board, as well as the Terms of Reference
of its commutiees, are reviewed regularly and further
descnbe Directors responsibilities and obligaticns and
mclade any statutory and regutatory duties. The Audit
and Managemen: ingagement Commi~ee has the
responsibihizy for the ongowng review of the Company’s
risk management systems and internal controls and,

‘o the exten: tha: they are apphcable, risks related to
-he maters se: outin section 172 areincluded in the
Company's ngk regusier and are subject to penoedic and
regular reviews and monitonng.

Long-term Success

The strategy of the Company can be found on pages

26 to 29. Any deviation from, or amendmen: "o, tha:
strategy is subject to Board and. If necessary. sharehaolder
approval The Company’'s business model, which can be
found con page 26, provides that the Board considers the
long-term conseqgquences of 1ts investmen: decisions,

The Company gran:s long-term leases, generally 20 years
In length, to 17s tenants. The Company seeks to maintain
lasting relationships with 11s tenants and suppors 11s
tenan:s in adapung properties to meet their needs,
pariicularly improving and enhancng proper:ies. Further
details can be found on pages 37 to 46.

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered o
comprise i1¢ shareholders, 11s employees, 1ts cusiomers
and 1ts suppliers as well as the wider commuanity 1n
which the company operazes and impacts. The Company
15 different in that as an mvestment rust it has no
employees and, in terms of suppliers, the Company
recewes professional services from a number of differen:
providers. principal among them being the ‘nvesrment
Adwviser.

Through regalar engagemen: with s stakeholders,

<he 3oard aims ‘o gain a rounded and balanced
undersranding of the impact of 1ts decisions. Feedback
from stakeholders 1s gathered by the inves men: Adviser
in the first ingzance and commanicated to the 3oard in its
regualar quarzerly meetings and otherwise as required.

The imporance of stakehclders is taker 1Nt account

a: avery Board meenng, with discugsions involving
careful consideration of the longer-term consequences
of any decsions and theirimplications for stakeholders.
The following secuon explains why these stakeholders
are considered of importance 1o the Company and the
actions taken t0 ensure tha: their unerests are taken inta
accoun: by the 3oard as part of its decision making
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued
nurs[akﬁeholders o K
Shareholders .
Continued
shareholder

suppor: and
engagemernt are
critical to the .
existence of the
business and the
delivery of the
long-term sirategy
of the business. .

ey argas of interest

How we engage

Current and
future financial
performance on
bhoth a NAV and
share price basis
Strategy and
Lusiness model
Corporate
governance

=5G performance
and sugramnability

Chmate Change
Dividend

The Board welccmes sharenolders' views and p.aces grea: imporiance
oI communication with 1ne shareholders of the Company. The Board is
responsibic for the conten: of communication regarding corporae issucs
and for communicating its views ;o shareno.ders. The Board aims o ensure
thar sharcholders are provided wiih sufficien: informauon 10 undersiand

the risk/reward palance 10 which ney are exposed by the hoiding of

shares in the Company. Active engagement with shareho ders is carried ol
mroughout tne year and regular commeunication is undertaken o ensure inat
they undersiand (ne performance of the business. The Board is comrritted

10 maintaining open channe's of communicaton and 10 engaging wi:h
sharenoldcrs in a manner which they find most meaningt.l. in order to gain
an undersianding of the views of sharehalders. These channels inciude:

Annual General Meeting - The Company welcomes and encourages
auendance. voiing and participation from shareholders at the AGM, at whiea
snarenolders have ine opportunity (o meet the Directors and [nvestmen:
Adviser and 10 address quesiions o inem directly The Invesimen: Adviser
atends tae AGM and provides a presentaiion on the Group's performance and
its future outloos. The Company va..es any feedback and ques:ions it may
receive from shareholders ahead of and during the AGM and tzkes action,

as appropriatc. The Board was pleased ‘o noe that all resolutions proposed at
the Company's AGM on 15 Sepiemaoer 2022 werc approved by sharcnolders.
Publications - The Ann.ua. Repor: and Haid-Year Results ate made available

on the Company's website These repors provide shareholders with a c.ear
understanding of the Group's portle:io and financial posizion. In additicn o e
Annua: and Haf-Year Reports. regularly updated information is aval.able on

e Company webpsite, including quarnerly facisheers. <ey polcies. tne investor
re.ations polcy and deialls of the iInves:ment proper:y por:folio. Feed oacy and/
O quesions ine Company receives frome the shareholders he v the Company
evolve 1s reporting aiming o render the reporns and updates transparen: and
anderstandable.

Shareholder meetings - Snarcholders are aole 1o meet wiia e [nves:imen:
Adviser and the Company’s Join: Bre<ers taroughout the yvear and the [nvestmeni
Adviser provides information on the Company on the Company's weosite.
Feedback from a.. snarehoider meeings with ine Invesiment Adviser and/or the
loin: Brokers, and sharcno.ders views. are shared with the Board on a regular
pasis The Cnairman and other memoers of the Beard. inciuding the Senior
Independen: Direcior and Chair of tne Audi and Managemen: Engagemen:
Commilitee, are avai.apie 10 mee: wiin snarenoiders ‘o unders:and Deir views on
governance and ne Company's performance where (ney wish 1o o so.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Kev areas of intetest

How we engage

Shareholders
Continued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
criucal o the
existence of the
business and the
dehvery of the
long-term strategy
of the business.

e Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis

& Strategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

e ESG performance
and sustainability

e Climate Change
¢ Dividend

Shareholder concerns - The Board gives due consideration to maiters
raised by shareholders in the event shareholders wish to raise issues or
concerns with the Board or the investment Adviser. they are welcome to
write 1o the Company at the tegistered office address set ocut on page 131

[n line with increasing shareholder focus on Environmental. Social and
Governance {'ESG" matters, the Board requests regular updates from the
[nvestment Adviser The Board retains overall responsibility for ESG issues
and the Company's operational performance. ‘mplementauacn of 238G
matters are undertaken by ‘he Investment Adviser on behalf of the Board.

turthermore, ESG reporting has been disclosed on pages 37 10 46 in the
Annual Repor: and the Board is open o0 discugsicn with shareholders on
this topic if reguested.

Investor relations updates - The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majorizy of shareholders
being a combinaticn of institutional inves:ors and private client brokers,
che Board receives regular updates on investors’ views and atutuades
from the Cormnpany's Brokers and the Investmen: Adviser. The results of
these meetings are reported to the Beard as part of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Invesimen: Adviser and 3rokers.

Included in the Report of the Direciors on page 5. are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly) and at Board meetngs, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
wrading activity, share price performance and any shareholders feedback,
as well as an update from the Company's [nvestor Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the _nvestment Adviser on any puablications or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of 17
shareholders and pozental investers. the [nvestument Adviser maintains
regular contaci with them and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback is taken o account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future drvidend policy.

following the year end, the Board recommended an offer 10 shareholders
of 80 pence for each share held in the Company from Wellness Unuty
Limited (@ wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited). During
the Takeover Offer process, the Board engaged with shareholders and
received thelr views on the Takeover Offer which it took into account
during its discussions. Further informaton on the Board's decision in
relanion to the Takeover Offer can be found on pages 25 and 52.

=0
==
=&
=3
==
z
=l
o=
[
o
[=Bs!
==
z3
2Z
~ O
8=
halis!

-
w



OCTAL HOL
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

20

Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Investment
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
an investrnent
vehicle through
which they can
obtamn exposure
0 the Company's
porifolio of
properties. The
nvesiment
Adviser's
performance

1= cnitical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver g
invesiment
strategy and
meet its objective
to provide
shareholders
with an attrachiive
level of income,
ogether with

the potenual for
capital growth.

Other service
providers
.norder o
funcuon as a R=IT
with a premium
listing on the
ondon Stock
Zxchange, the
Company relies on
a drverse range of
repuzable advisers
for suppor:

1IN meeing

all relevant
obligations,

Key areas of inrerest

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company
Operatonal
excellence

lLong-term
development of
1ts busmness and
resources

533G performance
and sustaimability

Cuarrent and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objecuves with
the Company
Operational
excellence
~ong-term
developmen:
of the service
providers’
businesses

Sustamability

How we engage
The asset management of the Company's porifolio is delegated 12
‘he Investment Adviser, which manages the assets 1n accordance ]
with the Company's objectives and policies. A® each Board meeting, |
representattves from the ‘nvesiment Adviser are 1n attendance 10 present

reports to the Directors covenng the Company's current and future

acuvities, porifoho of assets and its imvestment performance over the ,
precading penod.

Maintaining a close and consiructive working relationship with the
nvestment Advigser 1s cruclal as the Board and the Investment Adviser
both aim to continue to achreve consisient long-term reurns in line
with the Company’s investmen: objecuve. Important components of the
culture of both the Company and the inves:men: Adwiser are:

operating n a fully supportive, co-operaive and open environmert
and mamaming cngoing communication with the Board between
formal meetings;

e encouraging open discussion with the .nvesimen: Adviser. allowing
ame and space for ongimal and innovative thinking,

e recogmsing tha: the interests of stakeholders and the ‘nvestment
Adwiser are for the mos: part well aligned, adopting a tone of
canstrucive challenge: |

» drawing on Board members individual expenence and knowledge to
support the Inves'men: Adviser in its monitoring of and engagemen:
with other stakeholders; and '

¢ willingness 1o make *he Board members' expernience available o
support the investment Adwviser in the sound long-term developmen:
of tg business and resources. recognising that the long-term health
of the 'nvestment Adwviser 15 1n the interes:s of shareholders in the
Company.

The Company's main functions are delegated -0 a number of service
providers, including the Adminisirator, the Company Secre:ary, the APV,
the Registrar, the Corporate 3rokers and the Depositary, each engaged
under separate conracts. The 3oard maintains regular con:act wiih its
ey external providers and recetves regular reporting from them, both
‘hrough the 3coard and Commitiee meetings, as well as outside of the
regular meeung cycle Their advice, as well as thewr needs and views,
are routnely taken in:o accoun: Through its Audi: and Managemens:
sngagemen: Commit:ee, the 3card formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment a: leas: annually <o ensure tha: the
kev service providers conunue 0 function a: an accep:able level and
are appropriately remunerated o deliver the expec:ed level of service.
The Audnr and Managemen: zngagemen: Commisiee alsc reviews and
evaluates the convrol environmens in place a: each key service provider.
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Continued

Cur stakeholders

Key areas of intetrest

Care providers

Current

and fu-ure
perfermance
Welfare of
renants

L.ease oblhigations

Void
management

How we engage
At the outset, it 18 imporiant 1o note tha: the Company does not have

any legal or operational responsibility for the delivery of care in the
properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the Investment
Adviser have taken ‘he view tha: they wish 10 have a deiailed
understanding of the dehvery of care and the interacticn with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly, the Investment Adwviser
mailn:ains an active dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the same time, as par: of ransaction due dihgence a: the ume of
acquigition of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
dihgence with respect to the operaticnal and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed to deliver care mto the paricular
propertes. This includes the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQC rating and he nature of the SLA agreement coverning voids between
the care provider and the Approved Provider,

The ‘nvestment Adwviser 1s noted as having demons:irated considerable
expertise and understanding of the care :aking place within 1ts
properties.

Tenants

Greater
independence
Mainzaiming high
level of care
Improved
personal
outcomes

The Company's properties are adapted for the use of individuals with
long-term care needs within a community setting with the specific
aim of achieving better personal cutcomes and independence for the
indmwnduals.

The sector 1n which the Company operates 18 regarded as having
achleved signufican: success in delivering these posiuve cuicomes
compared to long-term clder style remote institutional care.

On a regular basis, members of the investment Adwviser visit properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider pariners o see
first hand the na:ure of the housing and care provision that is being
delivered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic.
the Invesiment Adviser has continued to engage with its tenants. Thus
18 supported by the regular Approved Provider serninars at which the
wellbeing of tenants 15 discussed n detail

in addiuon, the Company underakes resident case studies and surveys
through careful and considered interaction via the care provider o
assess the posittve impact our properties and assoclated specialised care
have had on the indwidual and thetr wellkeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

Qur stakeholders

Approved
Providers

Regiﬁlator of
Social Housing

(RSH)

Key areas of interest

How we engage

Current
and future
performance

Sustainakbility
Complhance

and property
management

Welfare of
tenarnts

Lease obligauons

The Company's Approved rovider partners are an imponant part of the
investment rmodel as the responsibility for coliection of housing benefit
and subsequen: paymen: of rent, the mamntenance of the properties
under the full repaimng and insuring leases and, mos: importantly, the
safeqguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies
with the Approved Providers.

The [nvestmen: Adviser works closely with the Company's Approved
Provider partners to improve standards and governance and to introduce
practices and procedures that make the Company's Investment processes
aver more robast

The Inves:ment Adviser has a regular open dialocgue with the Approved
Provider partners, haising monthly on comphance, health and safery,
mamtenance and fature-proofing schemes, as well as hosiing quartetly
semminars o discuss curren: themes/trends affecting the gector and o
rroubleshoot This serves as an opportunity o build reiationships and
share best practice.

The ‘nves:men: Adviser 1s supported by the esiablishment of The Social
Fousing Family CIC, a not-for-profit community in:eres: company
operated independenily of the Company whose stated aim s to enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leases 10 increase skills and
expernience and 1o provide funding to promote enhanced performance.
Membership 1s open 10 any Approved Provider that holds Civitas leases
and the effect of membership 12 to transfer ownership of the Approved
2rovider to the social housing family. Auckland “omes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider o join and has now recruited a very expernienced
and senior executve team and board of managemen:. Qualitas
community benefir society has also joined the CIC.

Financial and

operational
nabihry

Governance

Comphance with
health and safety.

and regulatory
standards
Safery and
wellbeing of
underlying
Tenants

The Company 1s no: itself requlated by the RSH but it 1swlmportam 0
malniain open and regular dialogue 0 ensure tha: the Company and the
5H are working together 1o improve the seCiorn

The Investmen: Adviser has a regular and ongoing dialogue with the 5=
and with the Approved Provider pariners regulated by the RSH.

The Company also publishes responses to the regulatory judgements of
‘he RS= regarding the Approved ?roviders working with the Cornpany as
par: of the R§='s general review of Approved 2roviders engaged 1n the
provision of property services for vulnerakble people as anncurniced

in May 2078. This demoensirates the Company's desire 10 mainzain a
dialogue with the RS= and s desire 0 see tha! the posiiions improve
where needed.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Key areas ot interest

How we engage

Other regulatory
authorities

The Company can
only operate with
the approval of
1its regulators who
have a legitimate
inserest in how
the Company
operates 1n1 the
market and treas
1ts shareholders.

e Compliance
with s:atutcry
and regulatory
redquirements

e Governance
based on best

practice guidance

e Better reporung
10 shareholders
and other
stakeholders

Local authorities

Lenders
Availability of
funding and
hquidity are
cructal to the
Company's ablity
<0 take advantage
of investment
opportunities as
they arise.

« Current and

s Provision of
safe and secure
proper:es of a
high quality

e Sustaitnabihty
for long-term
placemen:s

furure financial
performance of
“he business

e (Opennessand
‘ransparency

« Zroactive
approach to
communication

s Operational
excellence

The Company regularly considers how 1t meets varnious requlatory and
statutory obligations and follows veluntary and best practice guidance,
and how any governance decisiong it makes can have an impac: on

its shareholders and wider stakeholders. both in the shorter and in the
longer-term

The 3oard recelves quarterly regulazory compliance monitonng updates
from the investment Adviser.

The Board receives quarterly comphance updaies from the AIFM regarding
the Company's compliance with its investment pohicy and the 'nvesimen:
Adviser's compliance with the Investment Management Agreement.

The 3oard also has access 10 the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, statutory and governance
ma:sters for consideration by the 3card at its quarterly meetings and as
and when recquired.
isimportant for the Company to build and maintain relanonships with
local authornties as they have an important role in identifying areas

of high demand. agreeing rents and referrals to the Company's asset
managemen: tnihiatives.

The Company will engage with the local authornty commissioner erther
directly, or through specialist consultants, Approved Provider and care
provider parners as part of the Company's due diligence 1o ensure that
each property being acquired has been comrissioned by the relevant
local authonty and tha: ren: levels have been discussed and agreed.

The Company has arranged debt facilities from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meeungs and
presentations *o ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialogue helps to support the credit relationships.

The Company has reaffirmed 11s ‘nvestment Grade High Credi: Quahity
Ratng from Fizch Ratings Limited of A" {semor secured) and a Long-Term
DR {lssuer Default Ratuing} of ‘A-" with a Stable Outlook.

This will enable the Company 1o pursue tis swrategy n relation to debt
funding, in addinion to continuing to work with the Company's existing
lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relationships

During the year, the Board considered and closed a five year term debt
facility with Deutsche 3ank AG. “urther informanon can be found on
page 25.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

HOW wWe engdge

Continued
Qur stakcholders Key areas of interest
Communities e Acceptance

The Company's
asse:s rely on a
strong. positive -
CoNnNecion

with the local
communities in
which 11s business
operates.

Eharity partners e

of care in the
communty
Availability of
local facilities for
tenants

A key componen: of the Company's portfolio 1s that the properties within
1t are set within community environments so that indrviduais are able as
par: of their care plan to 1nteract with the local community rather than
being golated.

This is achieved 1n consultaton with local authorines in determining
that the inthai setungs are appropriately diversified within the respecive
community and are not clustered 1n a way that would lead to 1solation.

This assists the indmiduals and also ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-:o-day basis. care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies 10 ensure posiuve relationships
with neighbours and gsurrounding dweillings. The activizies within the
Company's properties crea:e employment within the local communuty for
both housing and care workers.

Delivering
needed support
10 viulnerable
adults

Improved
wellbeing of
villnerable adults
ESG performance
and sustainability

The Company supports a numkber of organisations whose obiectives
are to provide improved ouicomes for vulnerable adults affected by
homelessness and other care needs.

The Company commiuts targeied financial support <o fund specific
programmes which help those affected by homelessness by teaching
them skills and offering suppor: 10 prevent them from being in that
position again.

The Company ensures regular calls and meetings with our charity
partners to update on progress and projects being undertaken, as well as
atending even:s in support of their work.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Principal Decisions

2rincipal decisions have been defined as those tha: have
a maternal impacs: o the Group and 1ts key stakeholders.

in zaking these decisions, the Jirectors considered their
dunies under section 172 of the Act. Principal decisions
made during the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

In 2022. the Board considered and agreed a new
approach o *he Company's lease model with the goal
of supporung addiional regulatory comphance and
addressing percepions of risk. The new requilatory
clause enables Approved 2rowviders to achieve greazer
allgnment between income receipts and lease habilities.
set achievable capi:al sclvency requirements agains:
lease obligations and demaonsirate a further degree of
risk sharing.

The new lease clause has. following detalled negouation
wmcluding legal input. recaived approval from he boards
of two 1mitial housing assoctations with whom it had
been discussed. The Company had previously sough:
and obtained formal written confirmation from its
valuers that the inclusion of a clause of this type within
che Company's new and exisung leases will not of itself
cause a diminuation 1n the value of those leases orin the
anderlying assess.

Takeover Offer

As announced on ¢ May 72023, the 3o0ard made the
demsion ro recommend o shareholders an all-cash offer
of 80 pence for each share of the Company by Wellness
Uniry Zimited (a wholly owned subsidiary of CX Asser
“oldings Lumied).

Although the 3card believes the offer undervalues

the long-rerm prospec:s of the Company. the 3card
recogrises tha: the Company and the sector in which

11 operates faces a number of challenges in hight of the
current macro environment and outlook. This includes
*he considerable negative senument in the pubhic
markets towards the Company and the social housing
sector which the 3card beheves are unlikely -0 he
overcome in the shor 0 medium term and will conunue
to have a matenal impac: on the Company's share price
prospects. ‘n addition, despite delvering on revenue,
NAYV and dividend growth since 120, the Company’s
shares have traded for some time ar an enrrenched
discoun: 1o NAV.,

On 23 June 2023, the Offer hecame uncondinonal.

Updates to PDebt Arrangements

During the yvear, the Board considered and closed a new
frive year :erm debs: facihiy of c.£/7 milhon with a major
European bank lender.

The facilizy was deployed in full to redeem the
Company's exisang facility with Lloyds Bank of

£60 million as well as providing additional hquidity. As a
result. all of the Company's debt facilities are a° 100% fixed
or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

During the year, the Board montored the decline i the
Company's share price and 1n response, the Board agreed
he implementation of a share buyback programme
under certain parameters, which 1s being operazed by the
Company's Joint Brokers.

Surther informanon on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page 50.
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established 1n 2016 with the purpose
of dehvenng long-term responsible, s:able returns o
investors and achieving positive measurable social
impact and 55G benefirs on a large scale. t should
achleve thig as a result of introducing long-term equity
caprral into the social housing sector with a partcular
focus on care-based community housing By doing so,
“his would fornm a brnidge between equity investors and
the social housing sector and bning together aspects of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed the largest por:folio
of care-based community housing in the UX that provides
long-term homes for more than 4.5C0 indwviduals across
half -he local authontes in tngland and Wales.

As a resul: of this success, the Company exiended 1is
mandaze to be able to enter into ransactions directly
with the NHS and with leading chariies with an interest
1n the provision of speciahst housing that has a strong
care or suppor: element, 1s consisten: with public pohey
and whose costs are met by the pubhc purse for which 1
offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Cormpany's iInvesimen: objecuve 18 o provide
shareholders with an aztracuve level of income, together
with the potenual for capital growsh from invesung in a
por:folio of Social =omes, which benefits from inflaiion
adjusted long-ierm leases or occupancy agreemern:s with
Approved Providers and o deliver, on a fully invested
and geared basis, a targeted dividend yield of 5% per
annum’, which the Company expects T0 Increase broadly
i hne with inflation.

Investment Policy

The Companys invesimen: pohcy 1s o mvestin a
diversified por:folio of Social Zomes throughou:

the Lnited <ingdom. The Company inends 10 mae:

-he Company's Invesimen: objectve by acquinng,
wypically indirectly via Special 2urmpose Vehicles.
por:folios of Social =omes and enzenng 1o long-lerm
mmflation adrusted leases or occupancy agreernents

for *erms prnmarlly ranging from "¢ years to 40 years
with Approved “roviders, where all managemen:

and maintenance okhgations will ke serviced by the
Approved “roviders. The Company will no: underake
any developmen: acuvity or assume any developmen: or
congtruciion nsk. —owever, the Company may engage in
renovaiing or cusiomising exisiing homes, as necessary.
The Company may make pruden: use of leverage o

finance “he acquisiiion of Social =omes and o preserve
capr:al on a real basis

The Company 1s focused on delivering capnal growth
and expects to hold 1ts Por:fohio over the long erm and
‘herefore 1t 18 unlikely that the Company will dispose
of any par: of the Zortfolio. 'n the unhkely event that a
part of the Porifolio 1s cisposed of the Directors inzend
to reinvest proceeds from such disposals 1in asse:s in
accordance with the Company's iInvesiment policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company invests and manages the 2ortfolio with the
objecuve of delivering a high-quality, diversified Portfolio
<hrough the following invesimen: restrictlons:

e he Company only invests 1in Social =omes located in
the United Kingdom,

s the Company only mmvests in soclal Homes where the
counterparty o the lease or occupancy agreemen: 1s
an Approved Provider,

e nolease oroccupancy agreemenst shall be for an
unexpired pertod of legs than °C years. unless “he
shorier leases or occuRancy agreemensts represent
par: of an acquisiiion of a porifolio which the
nvesimen: Adviser intends o reorganise such that
“he average term of lease or occcupancy agreemen: 1§
increased to !5 years or above;

e he aggregate maximum exposure 10 any single
Approved Provider 1s 25% of the Gross Asse: Value,
once the capual of the Company 1s fully inves:ed;

e no mves:men: by the Company in any single
geographical area, 1n relation :0 which the houses
and/or apartmen- blocks owned by the Company are
located on a conuguous or largely conniguous kasis,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Agse: Value of the Comnpany:

¢ he Company only acquires completed Social =cmes
and wnll not forward finance any developmen: of new
Soclal —omes;

e ‘he Company doss no’ invest i other allernauve
invesimen: funds or closed-end invesimen:
compantes; and

e he Company 1s not engaged in shor: selling

The investmen: limizs detatled above apply ar the ime of
‘he acquistiion of the relevant inves:mens: i the 2ornfohio
once fully invested. The Company would no: be required
o dispose of any iInvestmen: or o rebalance the Porfolio
as a resulr of a change 1n the respeciive valuatons of 125
asse’s.

Gearing Limit

The Direc:ors seek o use gearing o enhance equty
resurns. The level of borrowing 1s se: on a praden: basis
for the asget class and seeks o achieve a low cos: of
funds, whils: mamn:aiming the flexibilizy in the underiying
secunty requiremenss and the siructure of hoth the
2or:folio and the Company

1 The dividend yield 15 based on the anginal PG puce of 100 pence per Ordinary share The target dividends arte targets only and do not reptesent a pratil folecast
There can be nuw assurance thar the fargels «an o will be met and should not be laken as an indication of the Company s expected or aclual future resulis
Accordingiy potential investors should not place any rehance on lhese largels in deaieding whether or net 1o invest 1n the Company or assurue that the Company
will make any distnbunons at all, and should decide tor themselves whether or not the larget diwvilend yields are reasonable or achievable



Strategic Overview
Continued

The Company may, following a decision of the 3oard.
raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the
aggregate borrowings of the Company 1s always subjec:
to an absolute maximum of 40% of Gross Asser Value
calcuiated at the ume of drawdown. Current gearing 1s
35.67% (2022: 34.13%)

Debt is secured ar asset level, whether over a particular
property or a holding enzity for a particular series of
properties, without recourse 1o the Campany and also
potentially at Company level with or without a charge
over “he Portfolio (but not against particular assets),
depending on the oprimal s:ructure for the Company and
having consideraton to key mencs including lender
diversity, cost of debt, debt type and masurnty profiles.
Otherwise there will be no cross-financing between
mvesiments in the ?orifoho and the Company will not
cperate as a common treasury funciion beiween the
Company and 11s investmen:s.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose to utilise denvatives for
effiment poriffolio managemen:. 'n parucular, the
hrectors may engage 1n full or partial inzerest raze
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the nsk of interest
rate increases on borrowings incurred 1in accordance
with the geanng himits as par: of the managemen: of the
Por:folio.

Cash Management

The Company inves:s in cash, cash equivalents. near
cash instruments and money market instramen:s.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

REIT Status

The Directors conduc: the affairs of the Company so as o
enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for the purposes
of Par: 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 2620 {and the
regulatons made thereunder).

Culture

The Directors agree “hat estabhishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culture among he Board and n its
interaction with the ‘nvesimen: Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will support the delivery of 118
purpose, values and stra:egy. The 3oard seeks 0 promo:e
a culure of openness, debate and integrity throcugh
ongoing dialogue and engagement with 1ts service
vroviders, principally the ‘nvestment Adviser.

Ag detailed \n the Corporate Governance Statement,

‘he Company has a number of pohcies and procedures
1in place o assist with maimntaining a caliure of good
governance, including those relaung to diversity and
Direczors’ confhicts of interest. The Board assesses and
moniiors compliance with these policies as well as the
general culture of the Board through 3oard meeings and,
in partcdlar, during the annual evaluanon process which
1s underraken by each Director (for more information, see
‘he performance evaluation secion on pages 56 and 57,

The Board's culture itself 15 one of openness.
collaboration and construciive debazte 1o ensure the
effective consnbution of all Directors, paracularly 1in
respect of the Board's decision making. Consideration
of our stakeholders 1s embedded 1n the Board's decision
making process. Please see our secton (72 Staement on
pages 7/ 1o 2b.

Measure Explanation . Result
Increase in NAV Target ic achieve capiial appreciation whilst
per share maintaining a low risk strategy from enhancing

fram (PG {2022: 12.3p per share 126% [from {PO).

the qualty of cash tlows from investments, by

physical improvement of preperties and by

creating a significantly diversified, high-qualizy

. ... borlolo
Dividends per
share targeted a dividend of 5.70p per share.

” For the yeargﬁ‘dégél'-L\Ec-ﬁ--mz_ozg._tl_';é Eéfnpraﬁn';i “Total dividend of 5.70p per share declared for the

year to 31 March 2023 (2022: 5.55p).

Number of local
authorties.
Approved
Providers and
care providers

Targe: risk mitigaion through a diversified
porifolio (once fully inves:ed) with no more
than 25% exposuare to any one local authority or
single Approved 2rovider and ne more than 20%
exposure to any single geographical area. once
the capital of the Company 1s fully invested.

As a' 31 March 2023
& 178 local authority pariners (2022 178 local
authority pariners)
19 Aporoved Providers (2022: 18 Approved Providers)
e 131 care providers (2C22: 130 care providers)

The Company's largest single exposuare 1s to Falcon

Heousing Associauen CIC and currently stands at 19%
{2022: 19%}. The largest geographucal concentration 1s
in the South West, being 14% (2022: 16%).

Loan o

Targeted toial debt drawn no more :han 40% of
Gross Asses gross &ssels.
_everage)

Leverage as at 31 March 2023 of 35.61% of qm_'%%
assets (2022: 34.43%).
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Definition

Purpose

Performance

Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA

‘The Company is a member of the turopean ?ublic Real Zstate Agsociation {"R2RA) 5PRA hag developed and defined
the following performance measures 10 give rransparency, comparability and relevance of finrancial reporing

across entitites which may use differen: accounting s:tandards. The Company 1s pleased o disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with E2RA guidance. These are all Al:ernative Performance Measures of

he Company.

EPRA Earnings

Zamings from operanonal
acuviies.

A key measure of a
company's underlying
operatng results and an
mdication of the extent o
which curren: dividend
paymen:s are suppor-ed
by earmings.

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV™)

EPRA NAV memnc which
assumes tha: entities never
sell assets and aims
represent the value reclired
to rebuild the entty.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets

(“NTA")
Z2RA NAV metnc which

assumes tha: enunes buy

and gell assets, thereby

crystallising cerain leveals of
unavoldabie deferred 1ax.

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (“NDV")

LPRA NAV memnc

which represents the
shareholders’ vahie under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred :ax,
financial instrumenss and
certam other adiusiments
are calculated o the full
ex:en: of their habilizy, nes
of any resuling tax

The ZPRA NAV se7 of metncs make adjusiments to the NAV per the financial statemen:s 1o
provide stakeholders with the most relevan: mformaron on the fair value of the assets and
habilizies of a real estate invesimen: company. under differen: scenarios.

EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
29,810,000 673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000
2 203 71 2o
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share

iBasic and 4 cod ponoe

dioed oo

A oA oenes

109.96
VA
108.38

e o o

e

e

107.97

Past performance 1s no: a reliable indicazor of fature performance “or detaited workings reconciling -he abowve
measuares o the 73S results, please see Appendix © 10 these financial stazemensts on pages 122 <o 725,
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EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY”)

Annuahsed rental
mcome based on the
cash rents passing
at the balance
shee: dase, less
non-reccverable
property operaiing
expenses, divided
by the market value
of the property
with {estimated)
purchasers’ cos:s.

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield (“NIY™)
This measure
Incorporates an
adjustmen: to the
EPRA NIY 1N respect
of the expirazion of
ren:-free penods

{or other unexpired
lease incentves such
as discounted ren:
periods and stepped
ren:s).

A comparable measudre for porifolio
valuations. These measures should make 1©
easier for investors to udge themselves, how
the valuatuon of portfolio X compares with

por:zfolio v,

EPRA Costs Ratio

Admirisratve and
operating costs
(nclhiding and
excluding costs

of direct vacancy)
divided by gross
ren:al income.

A key measure to
enable meaningfal
Measurement

of the changes
inacompany's
operaing cosis.

EPRALTV

Debt (Including net
payables but net

of cash balances)
divided by the market
value of property
ancluding net
recelvables).

A key (shareholder-
gearing) meric

1o determine the
percentage of deb:
comparing ¢ the
appraised value of
the properies.

EPRA Vacancy Rate

Estimated Marke:
Renral Value {("ERV™ of
vacant space divided
by EXV of the whole
porsfolo.

A 'pure’ (%) measure of
INVESTMant Property
space that 1s vacans,
baged on ZRV.

EPRA NIY

EPRA Topped-up

EPRA Costs Ratio!

EPRA LTV

EPRA Vacancy
Rate

Pag: performance 1s no: a rehiable indicator of future performance. For detalled workings reconcihing the above
measures 10 the |7R3 results. please see Appendix © to these financial statements on pages "22to 125

1 The tanos inclusive o vacancy coses are the same as the ratio exclusive ol vacancy costs lor 2022, 2021 and 2020
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ORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

CIVITAS SOCIAL HIOUSING PLC

Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard considers that the risks detalled below are the principal nsks facing the Group currently, along with the nsks
detailed in note 31.0 o the finanaal statements. These are *he nisks that could affect the ability of the Company to deliver
178 strateqgy. The Board confirms that the principal risks of the Company, including those which would threaten 1:s future
performance, solvency or iqundity, have been robus:ly assessed threughou: the yvear ended 3. March 2023, taking into
account the emerging nsks such as the longer term. clirnate change risk. cyber security nisk and recraitment of s:aff a:
couanterparies nsk, and that processes are In place ‘o continue ~hig assegsment.

The Audiz and Managemen: Engagemen: Commuttee has drvided the Company's nisks into the following nsk type
categones:

& Sirazegy and Competlivenass;

e Operauocnal, including Cyber Cnime;

e investment Managemens:; and

e  Accounnung, Legal and egulatory.

Lach nisk contained 1n each category 1s reviewed for 17s impac: and probability by the Audis and Managemens
Engagement Commitiee at leas: twice dunng the year.

The Audit and Management “ngagement Commitiee takes responsibilicy for overseeiny the effeciiveness of nsk
managemen: and internal control systems on behalf of the 3vard and adwvises the 3oard on the principal nsks facing
“he business.

“urther details of sk managemen: processes that are 1n place can be found in the Corporate Governance Stazemen:
on pages 57 and 58. The principal and emerging risks and uncerrainties relaung to the Group are regularly reviewed
by the 3oard along with the tnternal controls and nsk managemen: processes "har are used 10 miiigate these ngke.
The 3oard acknowledges tha: the Takeover by Wellness Unity _imized may resuls in increased risk both dunng the
ransition and subsequently Specifically, the Directors have not had de:ailed visibility of the offeror’s pos: completion
funding for *he group or the detailed plans behind the inzentions statements mcluded within the announcement.
Oversight and momtonng during this period will take on critical impor:ance. The 3oard has 1dentfied one new
principal risk dunng the year {as set out in the hst of principal nsks and uncer:ainties). The risk associated with a
disruption o share prnice due T0 negaive senumen: in the social housing secior was idenufied as having the highes:
impact and likehthood. The nisk associated with promoiing the Company 0 generate inves:or demand was removed
as a principal nisk by the 3o0ard during he year as rhe Takeover Offer by Wellness Unizy Limited has reduced the need
for the Company 1o generate additional investor demand. "urther derails on this and the other principal risks and the
managemen: of those rigks are described below:

Very High
High
3]
T .
o, Medium
g
Low
Very Low
Very s . . Very
unlikely Unlikely Possible Likely Likely
Probability




Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 suategy and Competitiveness 1isk

impact

The Company’'s snare price

is disrupted due to negative
sentment towards e socia.
housing sector following a
targeted a:tac« by a short seller
and pollution from other events in
the sector.

Thig risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
Z022.

The Company 18 iargeted
by a shor: se’_er or acuvist
snarenolder .eading o

a fal. in the Company’'s
snare price and a
widening of the discoan:
1o NAV.

Significan: numpers of
snares may need 10 be
rep.rcnased eading 10
a fal. in the size of the
Company and “iquidity
implications.

2 Stategy and compentiveness rnsk .
The Company and its opcrations
are subiect 10 laws and reguliations
enacied py nalional and .ocal
governmen:s and government
poiicy.

This risc remained a: ne same
levei as the year ended 3t March
FAVEYA

How managed/mitigated

The Board is committed (o maintaining
open channels of communica:ion with
shareholders and engaging in ways
shareholders find most meaningiul, in
order to gain understanding of shareholder
views. Further informa:ion on the Board's
engagement with sharenolders can be
found on pages 17 10 25.

The Board seeks 1o provide full disclosure
on the counterparties and tne structure of
rransactions so that all stakeholders are
kept relianiy informed on the Company's
business dealings.

The Board regularly reviews ‘he
Company's buyback policy 10 ensure :nis
is 1in alignment with the interests of the
Company and shareholders. The Board

is a.so mindfu. of the possibiiity o issue
shares and regularly reviews its policy in
“his area 10 ensure thart it is consistont with
“he Company's strategy. [ receives requiar
updares from the Company's Drozers (o
nelp inform its decisions in this regard.

Impact

How managed/mingated

Impact:
High

Probability:
Likely

Any change in the
-aws, regulations and/

or governmen: po_icy
alfeciing :ne Company
and its operations may
nave a maseria: adverse
etfect an the abiaty of Tac
Company 0 suooessiuly
oLIsUe 115 Invesimen:
Do.icy and mect is
invesinent opleciive

and en the value ol 1ne
Company and 1nc shares.

3 Stategy and competfivensss tisk

Impact

As a resut of compention from
other purchasers of socia. hiousing
properiies, the Company's ability
‘0 deploy capila. eftectively within
a reasonab.e timeftrame may be
resiricted or the net initial yields at
which the Company can acquire
properiies may decline such that
larget retuIms cannot be met

Tnis risk remained at the same
‘evel as the year ended 3! March
2022

The rate of capial
depioymen! wouid drop.
docreasing reinLrms o
shareho.ders.

The Company focuses on niche rea. cstaic
sectors where it pelieves the regulatory
framework and underlying demand
dynamics 10 oe robust.

The Invesiment Adviser nas strong 1indusiry
coniacts and has good knowledge on
no.icy opinion and direction.

The Board obtains regular Lpdates
from professiona. advisers 1o moniior
deveiscpments in reguiation and legislation.

low managed/mitigated

The Company nas sireng .inks with vendors

and a robust pipeline of fuwure acquisitons.

Tne Board regularly reviews the pipeiine
of potential acquisgiticns and moniors the
marxe' landscape.

The Board is aware of the current
competitive socia: housing mar<et and
recognises the impact this may have on
the Company's abillty to depioy capial
effectiveiy.

Impact:
Very high

Probability:
Unlikely

Impact:
High

Probability:
Unlikely
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

4 Investment management risk __Ilmpact

How maneged/mmtigated

Tenant defaulting undcr tae terms
of a lease. the shar term.
This risk remained at the same

‘evel as the year ended 31 March

2022,

l.oss of ren:al iIncome in

Impact:
Medium

The portfolic is highly diversified 1o reduce
the impact of default. Extensive diligence is
undertaken on ail assets, which is reviewed
and challenged by the Board.

Probability:

The Investment Adviser works proactively Likely

with Approved Providers to address any
potentia. concerns

The Board is provided with reguiar updates
on the tenants with any concerns raised for
discussion.

Tne Board has noted that the Company's
husteric leve. of defaults has been
immaterial.

5 Investment management risk Inipact o
The va.ue of (he invesimen:s made e valaation of the
by :ne Company may change from
lime to time according 1o a variety
of tactors, mecluding movements

fa'.. decraasing :
NAV and yicids of ine

Compdny's asses wo..d

How managed/mitigated -
The Company inves:s in pro‘ecis with Impact:
stable, predetermined, .ong-term leases in High
place with CPl or CPI plus 1% indexation
and iis strategy is not focused on saic of

in interest ra:es, inflation and Company. properues. Probability:
eneral marke: pricing of simi.ar ) . . . Possible
g P 9 Tne Board receives regu.ar updates on
investments. ) . -
factors that mignt impact investmen:
This nsk remained at the same va.Jations.
tevel as the year ended 31 March
2022 B B
6 Investment Management 1sk linpact e . _ .. Howmanagcd/mingated :
T ne curreni macroeconomic Less favouranlie sorrowing  The Investmen:t Adviser. AIFM and Impact:
environment: 1as increased tne tenms increcasa he Deposiiary moniior covenan:s in piace wizh - Medium
.evel of ris around he Company’s  financing cos:s reducing debt providers and presen: 10 :ne Board on
financing arrangemen:s reqgarding  re:urns ‘o shareno.ders. a quarier.y basis.
borrowing terms and covenanis. . . . . Probability:
The Invesimen: Adviscr lcverages the Possible
~ms was identified as a new rs< reLa:Jon;mps it a‘ready has in .ne-marset
during the year. K] form ~ong erm partnersmpa w1th deb:
oroviders at ra:es it already has achieved
on similar projec:s within the same
macro marxet.
The Invesimen: Adviser reports (o the
Board on discussions with panks whicn wi..
nighlight a: the earlies: opporiunity if this
T1IS< Nas increased.
7 _Investment managementnisk ~ Impact o How managed/mingated .
Due dihgence may no: revea. ail The Company wo..d The Company underiakes detailed due Impact:

facts and circumsiances tha: may
De relevant in connecion with an
invesiment and may not prevent
an acquisition being maerially
overva.sed or ren:a. sireams ocing
a: s

overpay for asse’s
impairing snareno.der
va..e reducing renta.
income and (horefore
relurns

Tnis risk remained a: :ne same
leve! as the year ended 31 March
2022.

di.igence on he proper:ies. :neir condition.  High
ine oropesed renta: .evels - penchmar<ing
agains: comparab:e schermes using boh
externa. consd.:ans where req.ired and

1.8 OWN proprietary datapase - and on tne
Approved Providers and care providers
invoived in cach proper:y o engure nat e
porcnase price is ronust.

Probability:
Unlikely

The Board considers tne due diligence
wndertagen wien apnroving acqulsizions




Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

Impact

i) !l_!veslmenlmanaqemenlrisk
Loss of key siaft a1 the Invesiment
Adviser.
This risk remained at the same

level as the year ended 31 March
2022,

Negative investor
senlimenl leading (o a
reduction in share price.
Reducrtion in ability o
source off market and
favouraple dea:s.

How managed /mitgated

9 Strategy anq competiftiveness .
The Company fails 1o respond 1o
issues telated to climate change,
either directly as enhancements
10 properties or indirectly via its
clima:e change reporting.

This risk remained a: the same
‘evel as the year ended 31 March
2022,

__dmpact

Decrease in the valde of
“he Company's assets and
a negative impac: on e
Company's snare grice,

10 Operational. including cyber crime
Sernious accident or poor
management amongs: Approved
Providers due o staff snortages
and ‘oss of compeence

This risk remained a: ine same
‘evel as the year ended 31 March
2622,

The Board considers the risk of the Impact:
Investmen: Adviser losing key staff and the High
succession plans the [nvesiment Advizer
has in place.
Tne Beard nhas noted the ongoing LP,I;IOI?:::;}IW'
expansion of the Investmen! Adviser's
§5.pport team.
How managed/muigated o
Regular review and consideration by Impact:
‘he Board inciuding the input of climate High
change specialists at the Invesiment Probability:
Adviser. Unlikely

Advice received from cxiernal professionat
advisers.

_ lmpact

How managed/mitigated

Rep.taiional damage lor
“he Company.

Reporting from Apoprovead Providers and Impact:

monitoring of Approved Providers by the High

Invesiment Adviser. Probability:
Unlikely

Emerging risks

Emerging risks are considered during the regular

risk review. and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they anse during the year. [Inpu: from the
Investmen: Adviser on emerging risks 1s considered by
“he Audi and Managemen: Sngagement Committee

Key emerging rigks idensified and considered during the

year inclhide:

e _ong-Term Chimaze Change - the impact of climate
change. over *he longer-term on the business. The
Company 18 commiited to undersanding 28G nsk,
including the parsicalar impac: of climae change
on the business. Chimarte change poses an indirect
risk <o the Company’s operaszions, the environmen:
and soclety, and rhe Board 15 aware tha: appropriate
action s required to reduce its imnpac:. The 3oard
uses the updates from the nvestment Adviger as they
relate to the performance of the company and the
impac: of long-term chimate change o help manage/

mitigate this rnisk.

e Cyber Secunty — the impac: of a cyber securty breach
wizhin the Company or 135 service prowniders. The
Aadir and Managemen: Sngagemen: ComIniiee
reviews and monitors the cyber securtty controls of
‘he Company's service providers on a regular basis to
manage/mingate this nsk.

Please see the Company's 55G Repor: on pages 37 ©0 16
for further desails.

The asting ules require premram-ligted commercial
companies 0 disclose in thelr annual report whether
they have reparted on how climaze change affec:s

their business 1n a manner consistent with the
recommendanons of the Task Force cn Chimate-related
Financial Msclosures (TCED), and (o provide an
explanation and other informasnionf they are unable

o do so. ‘naddiiion, the UK Government intends o
inroduce mandatory chmate-related disclosures to
supplement the requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Board has chosen not to adopt the requirements early
and expects these ‘0 be applicable o the Company it the
financial year 2024,
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The 3oard regularly reviews the posiuoen of the Company
and 1ts ability 10 continue as a going cOncern at its
meetings. The financial statements set ou: *he curren:
financial posiiien of the Company.

As a: 31 March 2023, the Company held cagh balances of
£356 muithon {net of operating and financimg amounts
due). The Board has evaluated he financial position

of the Company which has mainzained 1ts premium
investmen: grade ranng from -itch Ranngs Lid — a well
estabhished raing agency with a strong familiancy with
-he alzernattve healthcare real estate space. which gives
the Company confidence in the abiliy o raise future
debt and/or eqinty capital in order to fund the Company's
invesiments for the long serm and 1o facilizaie the
praymen: of dividends o shareholders. Based on these,
rhe Board believes that the Company 15 1n a posiiuon to
rmanage 1:s financial risks.

Various forms of senstivity analysig have been
performed, 1n particular the financial performance

of tenants and a reducion in passing rent. As at

3. March 2023, the passing rent would have o drop by
approximately 1% before any of the Company's interes:
cover covenan:s are breached. The propery values
would need “o fall by around 3% before breaching the
loan to vahie covenant.

The Company's performance 1n the even: of severe
but plausible dovmside scenarnios used for viakihy
are equally apphcable for going concern At the date
of approval of this repor:, the Company has sufficien:
headroom within s financial loan covenanss. The
Company also beneflis from a secure \ncome stream
from leases with long average unexpirad term leases.

_everage 1s prudenily maintained ar a leve] of less than
40% of Gross Asse: Value

The Company s aricles of association inchude a
requiremen: for the 2oard o propose an ordinary
resolution a: the annual general meeung following the
fif-h anmiversary from the imaal public offening of the
Company for the Company o conunuae 1n 138 curren: form
(the Conurriatnion Rezolunond. On 7S September 20272, a:
‘he Annual General Weelung, shareholders representing
298,478 435 voted n favour of the conunuaiuon of the
Company being 98 85% of those who voted.

On 9 May 20245 an announcemen: was made to the market
for an all-cash offer of the Company from Wellness Lnity
Limited, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asse:
Holdings Limited (CKA). On 23 June 2023, when the offer
became unconditional, CKA subsequently became the
Jinimate conroling pary of the Company, and a related
party under IAS 24. The Group's existing commiited deb:
facihinies contamn a standard change of contwrol clause
which has now been triggered due 1o the offer becoming
unceondinional This could resultin the existing commuiited
debrt facilinies being withdrawn. The Group does not have
wvisibiity of the post complenon funding for the Group at
thig 1ime. Therefore, this could create some uncerainty as
0 the Group's going concern position. The Direciors note
“he detalled intenttons statement included within the
announcemen: on 9 May 2025 which states that CXA does
no! envisage making any changes o0 the management
team nor any disrupilon 1o any counterpartues or

ta “he anderlying tenants. The condinions outlined

above indicate a matenal uncer:ainty which may cas:
significant doubt upon rhe Group and the Company's
ability to coniinue as a gomng concern. The financial
statements do not include the adjusimen:s thas would
resul: if the Group and the Company were unable 10
CONntinie as a going concern.

maving considered all of the above, the 3card 1s of the
opinion tha: the going concern basis adopted in the
preparaton of the consolidazed financial statemenss
15 appropriaze,

Viability Statement

The Directors present the Company's viabihty statemens
which summarnises the resulis of their assessmen: of
‘he Company’s curren: positon, 11s principal nsks and
prospects over a penod o 37 Varch 2028.

The Company acquires high-guahry propery with a
paracular focus on property providing care for “he long
erm. The properies acqutred are on long-terrn full
repairing and insunng leases 1n a secior of the marke:
with very high levels of need. The cos: base of the
Company 13 proporionaely low compared 10 revenue
and there 1s a2 high level of cerainy over cos: 2o be
mcarred On this basis, the Company 1s expecied 0 be
viabkle well beyond the five-year term considered in the
Company g tesiung below.

The assumpions underpinmng the forecas: cashflows
and covenan- compliance forecas:s were sensirised

‘o explore the resiience of the Company o the
poenualimpac: of the Company's principal risks and
ANCEraInies,



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a five-yvear penod for
the tollowing reasons:

i) me Company’s .ong-lerm forecas: covers a five-year
period;

ii) the length of service level agreements between
Approved Providers and care providers is typically five
years; and

iii) the Company's leases are typically 25 years on fully
repalring and ins.Jring ‘eases enabling rcasonabie
cerlainy of income over 1ne nex: five years.

The Company's ive-year forecas: Incorporates
assumpiiens related to the Company's investmen:
strategy and principal nsks from which performance
resulis. cash flows and key performance indicators are
forecast. The principal nsks are set out on pages 30 to 33.
Of these risks, those which are expected o have a higher
impac: on the Company's longer-ierm prospects are
those related o the curren: Macroeconomic environmen:,
which has increased the level of nsk around the
Company’s financing arrangements regarding borrowing
terms and covenants. The rigk assoctated with a
disrupion o share price due 10 negative sentiment in
the soaial housing sector beiwng 1denafied as having

the highestimpact and hkelihood. The Company has
considered 1ts sirategy over a longer term and, in hght
of the mheren: demand for the Company's properties
and the vulnerable namre of the uliimate tenant, the

nsk of change in future housing policy 1s considered

o be lmized. The prnincipal nsks are muigated by the
Company’s risk managemen: and internal control
processes, which funcion on an ongoing basis.

The Board. via delegaton to the Audit and Managemen:
Fngagement Commitiee, monliors the effectiveness of
the Company's risk managemen: and internal control
processes on an ongoing basis. The monitoring activities
are described 1n the Repor: of the Audit and Managemen:
Engagement Committee on pages 60 1o 62 and

inchude direct review and challenge of the Company’s
documented risks. risk ratings and conirols, and review
of performance and comphance reports prepared by

‘he Company's key suppliers and the independent
external auditors.

The 3eard of Ditecrors has carned out a robus:
assessment of the principal and emerging rnigks facing
the Company, including those that would threaten 1ts
business madel, future performance, solvency and
Lhaqudity. Where approprate, the Company's forecasts are
subjec: 1o sensitvry analysis, which involves applying
severe (but plausible) condimions and flexing a number of
assumptonsg simul:aneously.

The sensiuvites performed were designed to provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance in the event of severe but plausible
downside scenarios, taking full account of mizigaung
actions that could be taken 10 avold or reduce the impact
or ogccarrence of the underlying nisks ouilined below:

e 10% of renants defaulning under a lease The outcome of
-his scenario reduces profits on average over the five
year forecast by 18% per annum and reduces cash by
£20 muthon. However, the Board remains comfortable
‘hat drvidends could be paid and any habihties could
be gettled as there 13 still a sufficient level of cash in the
business Therefore the business remams viable over
‘he five year pennod and

e detenoraion in economic outlook, or a change in
government housing policy which could impact the
fundamentals of the social housing sector, including
a neganve impact on valuanons and a 5% redaciion
in anndJal renis. The outcome of the ‘severe downside
scenano was tha: the Company's covenan: headroom
on existing deb: (the level at which the investment
propeny values would have (o fall before a financial
hreach occurs) reduces by (3%, prior o any minigating
actons such as asse:t sales, which indicates that
covenants on existing facilities would not be breached.

The remaimung principal nsks and unceriainies, whilst
having an imypac: on the Company's business, are

not considered by the Directors 1o have a reasonable
hikelihood of impacung the Company's viability over the
flve-year pertod, therefare the scenanos outlined above
are he only ones that have been specifically tested.

Based on the results ot their assessmen:, notwithstanding
‘he maenal uncertanty ansing from the offer from CKXA,
“he Directors have a reasonable expectaion that the
Company will be able :o conunue in operanon and mee:
118 liabihitieg as thevy fall due over the five-year pertod of
~heir assessment.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO)) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023 March 2022

2.61 2.65

SonTee Cnotae manacd EPT gt
Fnergy 2erformance Certificates (5?Cs) are 1ssued All rental properties are legally required to have an 57C
following the energy survey of a property by an energy in the UK and a good energy ranng indicates that the
assessor. EPCs illustrate the energy efficiency of properies residen:s of the property will benefit from:
and gwe a properwy an energy rating from A {very + Lower energy kills - energy efficien: properaes will
efficien:) 1o G (nefficient). Zach LPC1s vahd for 0 years and resuls i comparably lower residen: consumption and

includes a hist of recommendations that provide guidance therefore reduce energy bills
on how the energy efficiency of the property could be

e ower carbon footprin: - increasing the energy
improved to reduce energy bills and carbon emissions.

efficiency of the propernes will lower carbon emissions

e mprove property value - improving the energy
rating will also likely enhance the value and ensure
consisten:ly low void levels at the properties.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acvity Il Domestic/Homes

A | 08%
0.2%

sl 39.8%
I 10.9%

40.9%

- N4A%
36.3%

Source Civilas relained EPC dala

Domestic/Homes

—T -

=0
2=
3
=
zZE
=
z 2
=2
o
Q:—"
Oz
o]
c 2
z3a
A=
» 0
g =
“n

i
~



CIVITAS SOCTAL ILOUSING PG

[
[+-]

Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction - EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a

continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvemernt works, renovations and

scheduled post-completion works.

D342

EN1
FO00

G 0.0

Civitas 557 properties "end o offer larger accommodarion for tenants “han conventonal social housing or cther private
dwellings. The properies are predomnancly siree: properies bink pre 1940 with sohd walls.

As showr in the :able below, the energy performance of the Civitas portfolio compares favourably againg: the

performance across all housing iendres as repored in the 2020/27 Snghsh Soustng Survey |

H35). Civitas S5H properies

have a larger proporion of detached and semi-detached propertes compared o social rented and private rented

dwellings.

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band

Mean

- . - A/B c D E F G Ratsiggp
Owneroccupied 29 400 468 78 22 03 657
Private rented 30 45 47 88 37 12 649
Socialrented 35 652 281 23 07 02 701
All lenures 30 445 427 71 22 05 663
Civitas domestic (March 2023) 11.0 409 36.4 11.7 00 00 671

Source Enghsh Housing Survey (2021) Annex Table 28 Energy eficiency ranng bands by 'enure 2021 & Annex Table 27 Mrean SAP sahing by tenure, 2021



E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

‘ON

The collaboration with £.ON has been based on the
adoption of a 'fabnic first’ approach ta reducing the
porfolios carbon footprnint. Detalled retrefit surveys
idenzify the porenual 1o ins:all cavizy wall insulation, loft
mnsulanon, external wall insulation, air scurce heat pumps
and solar 2V and bastery storage at targeted properties.
The mstallazion of these energy efficient measures {where
considered viable}, utihsing availlable government grants
and other funding sources, maximises value for the
Company and for our counterparties. 'I'he envircnmental
enhancements are being delivered at no cost to our
Approved Providers

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

Working with Approved Providers, the ongoing

Phasge 2 retrrofi: surveys are being undertaken o refine the
implementaton programme and dentity the best method
for reducing the :ctal carbon dioxide emissions {and

fuel costs) associated with individual propertes over the
mediuam or long :erm. The overall energy performance of
the porifolio, as idenufied on Environmental Performance
Certificates (EPC) reports data, has improved over the last
12 months. The proporon of properties with EPC Rating
A-C 15 currenty ¢.55% and “he carbon footpnint {estmated
frorm propery charactensucs) has reduced by 2% per Civitas
senancy (from 2.65 tonnes of CO?/renancy in March 2022 o
2.61 onnes of CO2/tenancyl.

A single storey cottage built dunng the late 1800s. Capital works were required to make some improvements to the
general appearance of the property and deliver energy improvements to create an uplift in the energy rating.

CSH mitiated two professional surveys — the first to understand the requiremen:s to undertake necessary repairs and
improve the asset condition - the second to understand the energy improvement options available. The works were
carefully planned and resulted in an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

New UPVC windows and front door installed
txternal wall insulation

Repairs ‘o roof and loft space

Adcditional insulation into the loft space
Replacement modern kitchen

Decoration throughout including floonng upgrades
Installation of high heat retention storage heaters

Additional ventilation installed

The EPC rating has improved from a Go an E.

CS8H is in the process of installing a dual ariff electricity meter which will continue to improve the tPC rating to D.
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Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

November 2022
The Good Economy (TGE) — Novembaer 2022

TGE, independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated
impact objective and the target outcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for

“The portfolio continues to
provide homes for peaple
with a range of support

needs, including leamning

disabilities, physical

supported housing
across the country,

@

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living in Civitas
properties receive
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective
Supply Quality
[ncrease the Improve the

supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of properties
new 1o soclal
housing at the point
of acquisition

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authorhes

quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with Approved
Providers, signing
off on adaptions to
ensure properties
continue te mect the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas has consistently
provided support for
charitable organisations
whose activities align with
the Fund'’s core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

“Civitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stock
by running a retrofit
programme alongside
energy supplier EON."

Outcomes

0Qo

Contribute
Towards

Value

Qffer value for
money for the
public purse

Wellbeing
Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

£3.51 (5 created
in social value

53% of respondents
reported an

improvement in for every £1
their independence of annualised
between investment

their previous
accommodation and
their current home




Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supparted and worked with the following chantieg since [20;

The House of
St Barnabas

LORDON

ar
y

-~
\/\/ )

THE NETWORK FOR WOMEN
WORKING N 50CAL HOUSING

Little..
Sprouts

the
are
workers
charay

The Choir with No Name

The results of an anonymous 2022/23 survey about the experience of choir members at choir

demonstraze the consistently posiuve impact and the value of CWNN work in improving the

hves of people Impac-ed by homelessness:

« 89% reported a sense of belonging at chour

= 90% feel valued a: choir and said chowrmimproved their confidence

= 85% have made mearnungful friendships at choir

« B4% sad choir helps them feel less 1solated

= 88% sald choir helped them feel more opurmistic about hfe

= 83% repor-ed a greater sense of purpose and fulfilmen: as well as feehing mezivated wo oy
new things

= 80% reported improved mential health

The House of St. Barnabas
The House of St. Barnabas 1s a social enterpnise member's club tha: helps .ondon's homeless
people back into work, through its Employment Academy.

Employment Preparation 2rogramme:

« J00% of working graduates are sausfied with their job hours

= 95% are sansfied with their job security

« 52% are sarisfied wath their pay

« 95% have overall job sausfacton

* 97% say our mentors have had a posiuve impac: on their qualhty of hfe

WISH - T
WISE 15 a membership-based network for women working across every discipline of UX housing.
with a focus on champloning posinive outcomes for women working in the sector. Ciwviras support
contnbutes to the champiloning of posiave outcomes for women working in the sector.

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity
_ittle Sprauss Eealth and Wellbeing Charity 1s dedicated to improving the health and wellbeing
of our communry through cooking workshops, recipe bags, community food shops, “check
and chatter” programmes and surplus food collecuon and disinbution. Civitas supports

Little Sprouts with the operational costs of the chanty, particularly during COV'D-19. The funds
were used to open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemen: tool 1o help
address physical, social, mental and financial 1ssues.

The Care Workers’ Charity
The Care Workers' Charity (CWC) exists to help care and support workers through cnisis using
financial support and support centres. Civitas suppor funds rtaiming of mental health ‘first aiders”
o provide each CWC member company, wtth the training and $o0ols o provide beter mental
health support 1o the care workers.
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Choir with No Name (CWNN) has been running choirs
involving people impacted by homelessness since 2008,
growing from a first rehearsal in ~.ondon with just five
people, 10 six thnving choir communities, singing with
over 700 people and performing for tens of thousands of
people adrass the UK every year We currently have chotrs
in London, Liverpool. 3nighton, 3ummingham, Cardiff and
Coveniry, with plans o launch more choirs over the next
few years,

The Choir with No Name formula 1s simple, but 1t works:
weekly choir rehearsals all year round followed by a

hot meal wogether, and exciing, aspirational gigs for
everyone to work r:owards and look forward to. Our chors
are supporve, safe spaces for people going through a
sough ime, empowering them o feel more able tc tackle
she challenges they face. We are curren:ly evalving our
way of working into a more co-produced and culurally
democratic approach, with choir members getiing more
involving in the design and delivery of their choirs, which
15 a really excrang transformanon for the orgamsation.

Creauve programmes are extremely effective 1in achieving
posiuve autcomes for people impacted by homelessneass.
They tackle inequahty. iIncrease social inclusion and
challenge prejudice 't can help people 1o progress

thewr wider interests, which 1s especially imporan: in
reducing anxiery and lonehness that can ofien affect
people mpacied by homelessness. even when they
maove on to independen: accommodation. We supporn
members 10 make friends, improve their wellbeing. build
confidence and skills, and positively impac: their personal
circdmstances cutside of choirn

N our mos? recent 2023 member survey, 89% said they
felr a sense of belonging at choir. 90% sawd 17 helped
mcrease “heir confidence, 8574 sald bemg in choir gave
them an tncreased sense of purpose and falhiiment and
75% reporied tha: thelr parmcipation in chow has helped
them achieve a: least one posiuve life change ouiside
chow. including secunng housing, finding work or better
manadgemen: of addiciions. We are extremely proud of
“hese resylts.

We established our parmnership with Civitas Social
Housing Ple i 2027 and have been exiremely grateful
recipients of ongoing suppor: for the cos's of deliverning
our weekly rehearsals and foot s:omping qigs every year
Thanks 0 Civiras, we can keep our doors open, the music
playing and our members singing; providing something
o look forward to every week and gigs (o work towards, a
chance “o socahse with their friends. ear a ho: dinner, and
alumarely feel seen and heard.

A word from our chotr members:

Ruthie’s Story
When 1 first started singing with CWNN 1 was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christinas concert, ] was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved. § think it's because you just feel like you're

in a really safe space and that people genuinely care
about you. It just feels very loving and authentic.

There's been so many unforgettable moments and
so many emotional moments. It's amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the big thing is, trust. It's been
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and notice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well. It's been consistent. It

doesn't stop. ’,

Richard’s Story

66

I've sung all my life so when 1 heard about the Choir
with No Name I thought it could be for me. I was
living at the Salvation Army at the time, The best thing
about choir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs — I don't think 1 could've done
it without choir. When 1 talk to people who aren’t sure
if CWNN is for them I say, ‘Come along once, I'll sit next
to you and if you don’t like it you don’t have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and so far,
they've all come back! Fm 50 happy to have found
CWNN. In my first rehearsal I was so nervous, but by
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. I'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that's huge. ’ ,




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of 5t Barnabas

The House of St Barnabas ts a social enterprise and charity
“hat works to support pecple affecied by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Our vision 1s of a future
where lasiing good work, a secure home and a supporiave
newwork are a reality for those affected by homelessness.

Undearmpinned by our vibrant members’ club in Soho, our
Employment Academy provides on stle employment
and skills traming for people who have experienced
homelessness,

We work with around 100 people every year and 79% of
graduates repori their quality of life has improved since
participanng in the Employment Academy.

Qur mentonng component 18 the key to cur success

and, thanks 1o support from Civitas, we are closer o
succeeding in our mission of 'Good Work, Good Fome' for
all our graduases.

Mentoring at the House of St Barnabas 1s not traditional
m the way that professional mentoring requires a similar
set of knowledge and experiences. it 18 relanonship-based
mentoring which 1s based around interperscnal skills

and commurnication. The purpose of the role is 1o work
~ogether with zmployment Academy staff to suppor:
peopie Ino work and help them progress.

Our mentors have had a positive impac: on quahty-of-life
changes for 97% of responden:s.

Jill and Ellen

=llen began her journey as a mentor Dy paricipating

n our two-day training, which provides extensive
preparation for this very special role. She quickly followed
4p by artending the mentoning speed dating’ even:
where she me: several recent graduares looking to be
paired with a mentor. Zowever, she was contacted by

“he Mentonng Team 1o ask f she would be interested in
mentonng someone she hadn's had the chance 10 meet
because they couldn's azend the 'speed daung' even: due
-0 childcare responsibilities.

This is how Ellen met Jill

NIl and her young daughter found themselves homeless
1 2021 Jill didn't have a job and didn't know what she
wanted ‘0 do etther Unsure of where ‘o go or what "o

do, she turned 10 a sccial worker for help, who arranged
emporary accommodation for 1l and her daughter.

Then Ill was putin touch with Fouse of St 3arnabas. Afler
graduatung frorm the bmploymen: Jreparation Programme,
she had the opportunity 1o be paired with a mentor.

Ellen and Nl met for theur first mentonng session at the
Brnitish Library. They quickly connec:ed over the fac: that
Jll had a five-year-old daughter and Ellen has experience
of bringing up young children in London. ztllen had lots
of suggestions for free activities for children. This bailt
hll's confidence <o attend gallenes and museums with her
daughter, which she had never done hefore

As they developed their mentonng relanonship, Slten
also helped Jill to update her CV and cover letter. She
also encouraged Jill o sign up for free computer lizeracy
courses and provided support with Jill's apphcanon for
a winter fuel allowance as well as making sure that she
recelved her Chnsimas benefit bonus.

1l has since secured a job as bans:a at a 3oho members’
club on a par:-time basis so she can balance her childcare
responsibilities.

Jil¥'s Story

66

I didn’t know what to expect from the House of St
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, 1 thought it
wasn't really for me. But after my first week, I loved it!
Everyone there understood what I was going through,
day by day 1felt more confident and more comfortable
being there. It felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk to, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it's definitely more than just a course.
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Governance
Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas part1c1pates in the folIowmg frameworks

which don't issue a grading.

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

Operating Principles for
Impact Management

¥

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management

SUSTA!NABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals

Tha mpac: Vanagemen: ‘roect

» =g glokal forum for baildinmg
consensus on how o measare,
manage and report impact

34 practtionar communty of

nee

over 2000 arganisaions and

The Dperanng nnciples are a LM counines adopied
framavrork for mvestars for “he D50 Agenda for Susainable
desiyn and implementanian of “her Developmen? and s 7Y
AT TAnAgemean. CeTTIE, Suztanalle developmens Goals
o SrEarmg chas unypace (S)GsY

Imvestors ronsid=ranions are nsegraed « The 5 2Gs call for worldwde
« Crovidss a st of norms + chr AUTION among governments,

Tohe mvesTmenT

and a sharsd and hohsae baasiness and awil sociery to end
understanding of impact . Affers- ponerTy

« Zag five core dhimensions of

Create a hfe of digniy and

et Ahat? Who? Zow mach? . t.d.gh i w}m hcan be desigred opparninty for all. wrhim the
Contrnbunon and sk 0 ke teeds of anomdradaal toandanes of the plane:
TN « Companies are encouaradged -
[IESIER S IE prev ; : ols select which goals are uhand
andd approaches, or specific witth Therr Basin auavies

and report on hewrs They ars
wrotking o achieve tham.

:HW}‘cll.' M=a8 ir=men” frameworks
o iy RArAres ars

-—-'ii){-‘-c"'t—‘ti TOROCONTITE T

learn from

implemsns the e 1es

o orther s they

Sector Specific

s an 2arly adopter of the Sazainakbiliy Reporing 3
developad through a collaborasion bemvresn hou
signed ap sarly adopters and endnrcr‘rq
« Over G0 \lgned ap adoprers and 20 endo
= therr and 43 crierta for -3G reporing L‘* hu 1SN A830013710NS
« Caalitanve and «uantanive and are idennfied ay core and enhanced redgi
sropg <SG performance
= At help the s Jish 3 credible meamngfal and cons
sactal and governanoe (830 performances
'-hqrwd “Goanternatonal framewnrks md dndar[
Calobzal 2eporing moanrs .
iEeraTiont and /

he Smanddard? The S-andard,
anks lenders and inves-ors, has over 00

Sranclard for Social —ousineg o

SITUT A8E0CT4TIONS.
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United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“*UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs

Provide high-quality, energy efficient homes
Acquire High-Quality Homes incorporating adaptations for people with

lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuals reguiring a high level
of care

o O o Local job creation during construction

Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/

refurbishments and care providers on
responsible employment terms. including
living wage
Offer local apprenticeships and contribute to
local community events

Provide Value for Money for public care and
housing budgets by enabling vulnerable
individuals to move cut to instituiional and
residential settings

Provide Value for Money

Buy and convert existing and newly
Increase Supply campleted properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity

to deliver high-quality service and outcomes
@ Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the long term

Green lease terms to be agreed with the
counterparties

Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviser, has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners throughout the last
year. providing shared advice and learning through:

) s [ ] ol
Weekly meetings with Regular seminars
key operational statf

Monthly and quarterly
meetings 10 review

Monthly compliance
monitoring

strategic priorities
and key performance

S e

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operaticnal performance. This support builds on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations.

.
Monthly Seminars

C N has contnued to undersake monthly governance CI hoass quuarerly Approved Provider semimars on a
and heal’h and safey monconng across the portfoho regralar basis The nexs sennnar 18 expaciadd o be held

. n Summer 204
Approved Yroviders have demoenzrarend resilisnce

and continued gh levels of complianee wich health
S anfery srandareds,
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Governance

Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such

as GRESB (formerly Global Rea) Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.

MSCi

SUSTAINALYTICS

FIre—r——

EPRA

REAL EVIATE A53QCIATION

What is it?

GRESE 1« “he leading nnbihry benchmiark
for the global real est ssmen:s take
place anmuaally and are guided by factors thas
mvestors and the mdisiry constder ;o be mazenal
weues in the susamabihry performance of real
asser mves ments. The benchmark assessmans
covers more than 840 property companies, 257
funds and developers

s,

MSCI ESG Ratings provide insigh o =3G

2 oand opporan tes wrhan mul-agse olass
porfohog Yao rame VL0 comanes according
o ey exposare Toonchnnry siogradionanT S50 nweks
and therr albaley o manag s hoge nsks relasve o
mdnery preers

3

Sustainalytics measure how well companies
proacivaly manadge the envirenmenal, socul and
sdes “hat are maost mazenal o “heir
o sded onoa stractarad, obiecnve and
=1t mahodology The

EPRA BPR Guidelines fi) 15 o mabing “he
frpnnectal s atements of pablic real 17
COrm A ST and more comparable
SUTOSE afo Aol o 2phianos h=
TATETATENG N e of The secror e a
“rhole aned ATUAPAL TR AT TOlS a7 T ATy
lotzal floers of caprrlinvo “he Sarogmearn ligmed
yres - or

EPRA sBPR Guidelines j>rovicie 30
of measanng sustmnaihy performan
A3 ars ranstiy the sTanednrds and o
faazamainh porieg for lis
COTRLAnSS e SRR

el real

norseranrror o f e
K ol oy
arel ek b
verforTg
30T Ll -
HTTIST
—urerrial poart.

averarded 2rher

=5G ranngs provide

How is CSH rated?

U= retmnend s A score follovning
“he (GRE5T sublic neclosare
g men: 25122

HAER

e TeRT GrOUD AVerige scor= of 3
s R a0 pasion wrrhan g
Comparnsen Group (L < Residenialt

= (3= MBS 25G ratng of BB

= IV has made relevant policies
avatlable ro V8C, and other raning
agencies throwgh hosting on
“he OV websize on behalf of the
Company

» This should be refleced wn brare
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michae! has over 40 yeaTs experlence in tne inves.maont
industry as a portfaio manager and of running ins:itutiona.
ousinesses and ra1ai. businesses at Fidelity and Garimore. He

sarves as a irustee direcror of tne BAT UK Pension Fund. tne Male 60%
Deuisene Bank JK pension schemes and as a trustee of the
Cooper Gay (Ho.dings) Limited Reurement Benefiis Scheme Female 40%

Michae! nas previous y served as a non-execu:ive Direcior of
several inves:ment rusts and a number of ind usiry associations
Michael has an M.A. in Economics from Cambridge Umiversity.

Michael was appoinied —o the Board on 24 Gotober 2016 and has
served as Chairman since his appomniment.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caroline is a charercd accountant witn over 23 years' experience at Brnst & Young LLP. Durning (nat ume,
gne speaidaised ih ine assel managemen: secor and deve oocd exiensive experience of invesiment
‘rusts. She was a memper of various technica. commiziees ol ine Assoctation of Investmen: Companies
She s a.so a non-exccuiive direcior and audi: commiiiee chair for IP Morgan Globa. Emarging Marce:s
Income Trust p.c. Internationa. Biotechnology Trus: p.c and abrdn European Logistcs Income ple.

Caroline was appointed o the Board on 24 Ociober 2018 and has served gs Andit and Managemen:
Engagemen: Commiitec Chair since ner appomn:men:.

Peter Baxter, Director

Poter nas over 35 years experience in the invesinren: managemaent industiry He 1s a direcor ol 3nowpa..
Irpac: Management Lid. a social impact invesumen: organisation. and a ‘rustee of Trust for London. a
chdtizap. e foundation He s aiso a non-cxecaiive direcior of B.ac<Rocs Crea'er Buropean Invesimen:
Trast p.c Previous.y, ne served as Chief Exec.uiive of O d Mulua. Assct Managers (JK) [id. and nas
wor<ed for Schroders and Hil Samug! in a varicry of invesimen: roies. He noids an MBA from London
B.siness Schoo and is an assoclaie of ine Society of Invesinren: Professions s

Peler was appoined o e Board on 24 Oc oper 2016 and 13 1ne Senior Indepeonden: Director and
Nominaton and Remuneration Commiiec Chairman.

Alastair Moss, Director

Alasiair is a propery deve.oomen: awyear witn over 20 years' experience and 18 a pariner a: Hi'
Dickinson He was a non-execuiive director of Nouwing Hi.. Genesis Trogt He is aiso a {ormer Chairman
ol ‘ne Invesiment Commitee of the Ciy of Tlondon Corporation. its Property Invesieen: Board and its
Planning and Transporation Commitiee He s a Trusiec of Marsna. 's Charity. He nas a.50 oeen a poard
memper of Sono Housing Assoclation and was a memoper of (he Area Board of CliyWes: Homes. He was
a Couancl:or a: Westminsrer City Councl for 12 years. inciuding ms tenwre ag Chairman of 1ne P.anning &
Criy Deve opmen: Commilice

Aasialr was anpoinied 10 ine Board on 24 Oconer 2015,

Alison Hadden, Director

Alson nas over 30 years experiende in 11 acusing indusry and nas ne.d a numoer of Fxec..:jve
DOSINONS &t Sevara. major A0 .8Ing associalions. Incoading CEO at Paradigm Housing. In 1necse ra.cs, sne
nas wor<ed wiin many of 1ne srakeno’ders inthe indusiry. inc.ding e Regu alor of Sacia Houlsing
Sae is currently Vice Chair and a memoer ot 1ne Governance Commiiee of Pea<s and Plaing Ho.sing
and Caair of Heyford Regeneranion, a lor-profi: Tousing Associaion operaing in tne Chcrwe  area

A.son was aoooinied o e Board on 21 MNaovemper 2019




Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company 18 a closed-ended investment company
and s a REIT which was incorporated in England and
Wales on 29 Septernber 20°6. The Company 15 the holding
company of a number of subsidianes and 1ts Ordinary
shares were admitted to trading on the Main Marke:

of the London Stock txchange on 18 November 2076

The Company Inves:s In properties or property-holding
SPVs, either directly or via a wholly-owned subsichary,
In accordance with the Company's invesiment objective
and pohcy.

Business Review

A review of the business and fuiure developments is
constamed 1n the Chairman’s Statemen: and investmen:
Adwiser's Report. The pnncipal nsks and uncertainties are
detaled on pages 30 o 33. See note 33.0 for a summary of
“he post balance sheet evensis,

Results and Dividends
The resulis for the year are shown on page 2.

The fellowing dividends were paid on “he Ordinary
shares during “he year:

i-:burth';:{uartel:ly 13875p per share

dividend paid on_'_a_B Jur}ﬂgzz
}‘;n'st q\;;a} - 14251 per share
dividend paid on 9 September 2022
Second quarterly; 1.425p pert sh are
dividend paid on 9 December 2022
Third quarterly T 425p per share
dividend paid on &V_arch 20%3

Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Fourth quarterly
dividend

©425p per share
paid on 9 June 2023

No final dividend 1s being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the Board are hisied on page 48.

All Directors served throughout the penod under review.

The Board consis:s solely of non-execunve Direcors,
cach of whom s independen: of the nvesimen: Adviser.
The Company has no executuve Directors or empioyees.

In accordance with Board policy. all Directors will retire
and, bemg ehigible, will stand for re-election at the AGM.,

Performance evaluanon of the Board, i's Commttees and
individual Directors 1s carned outin accordance with the
procedure set out on pages 56 and Y7

No irector 18 ander a coniract of service with the
Company and nc Direc:or or any persons connected
with them had a maternal interest in the ransacuons
and arrangements of the Company. Jetails of Jirectors’
remuneraion are set out 1n the directors’ Remuaneration
Report on pages 64 to 67.

The beneficial interes:s of the Directors in the secunues
of the Company are set odt In the 2itecors Remuneration
Repor: on page &67.

Through their Letters of Appointment, the Company
has provided indemnities 10 the Directors, 10 the exen:
permitted by law and “he Company's Articles, in respect
of habilizies which may arise 1n connection with claims
relating o their performance or “he performance of the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no other
qualifying third-panty indemniies in force.

The general powers of the Directors are contained
within the relevan: UK legislanion and the Company's
Aracles of Associanion. The Directors are encitled to
exercige all powers of the Company. subject -0 any
himizations imposed by the Aracles of Association or
applicable legislation. As set out on page 50, The Articles
of Association may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

At -he AGV held on 5 Sepiember 20272, the Directors were
auhorised 10 18s5ue equIty SECUTITIES UP 10 an aggregate
nominai amount of £6.0,736 (hemng approxmmately [0% of
the 1ssued Ordinary share capital).

The Company was also authonsed 10 disapply
pre-emprion ngh:s in respect of equiy secunzies and

10 185Ue equlITy securiies for cash dp o an aggregate
nominal amount equal 0 £610,736 {being approximaely
~0% of the 1ssued Ordinary share capital).

Purchase of Own Shares

A he AGM held on 4% Seprember 2022, the Directors were
granted the authonty 1o buy back up o 91.549.383 Ordinary
shares, beng "4.99% of the Ordimary shares \n 1ssue a2 the
ame of the passing of the resolution.

Durnng the year, the Board maintained the Company's
share buvback programme. under which a total of
6,050,000 shares have been purchased inzo reasury for an
aggregate amount of £4,624.9475C (nominal value £60.500,
represenung 0.97%) as at 3. March 2023

The authory to buy back ap to 9.,549.383 shares will
expre at the conclusion of the nex: AGM of the Company
or on S0 September 20235, whichever 18 earlier, when

a resolunon for 115 renewal will be proposed =urther
informanion will ke contained 1n the Nouce of AGM, which
will be circulared ro shareholders 1n due course

Current Share Capital

As ar 3 March 2023, there were 622,467,380 Ordinary
shares tn1ssue, of which "6.07/5000 shares were held in
reasury, representing 2.6% of the Company's total issued
share capiial The 1otal voung nghss of the Company as at
3 Warch 2023 vras B06.586.380.

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary Shares

sach Ordinary shareholderis entled o0 one vote

on a show of hands and. on a poll, 0 one vote for
every Ordinary share held. ‘The righ: to arzend and
vote at general meenngs of the Company may be
resthicted where a shareholder has falled o provide
informanon parsuan: 10 a nodice served under seciion
793 of the Companues Act 20C6. The Ordinary shares
carry the ngh: to receive dividends declared by the
Company. *rovided he Company has saushied all of
11s habihnes, dunng a winding-up of the Company,
<he holders of Ordinary shares are entzled 0 all of the
surplus asses of the Company.

Transfers of Shares

There 1s no resmcion on the rransfer of “he Company's
shares other than ‘ransfers 0 more *han four jomne
wransferees and :ransfers of shares which are nos fully
paid uap or where the wansferor or any oher person whom
“he Company reasonably believes 10 be interes:ed in the
ransferor’s shares has been duly served with a notce
pursaan: to gecnon 793 of the Companies Aot 2006,

There are no special nights with regard o control attached
T0 SECUTILEs; o agreemen:s hetween holders of secunines
regarding their transfer known to the Company: and no
agreements which the Company 1s party 1o tha: rmight
affect its control following a successfal takeover d

Articles of Association

The Company’s Ariicles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of
‘he shareholders.

As at the daze of signing this Report, the otal vaung
righ:s of the Company was §06.386,380.

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The 3oard has appoinied the nvestment Adviser, Civitas
nvestmen! Managemen: Limited, to provide invesimen:
advice and 1o agse: manage the property portfolio and the
assoclated day-10-day acuvines, including managemen:
of tenanted properies and markeung actiivines. CI VM 1s a
speclalist mvestor 1N social housing propery. with a focus
on specilalist social housing, and has exiensive expenence
n gocal housing and real estate INvestmern”,

The duties of CIMV include *he sourcing of invesiman:
opportantties that meert the investmen: criteria of ~he
Company, controlling the acquisition of approved
properies, asset managemen: of all propertes within
*he por:foho. ongoing monioring of the properies and
senants, malhaning comphance with all relevan: rules
and regulatons, and providing markeung and investor
relations services 1o “he Company.

Detalls of he fees payable 10 the nvesimen: Adviser are
descrnibed 1in note 8.0 of the financial starements. The
kasig for the calculaton of the nvesimen: Adviser's fees s
based upon the 7R3 NAV.

The agreemen: with C.M 15 serrmmnable on no? less than
.2 months nouce by erther party, such notce not 10 explre
earlier than 30 Vay 2025,

The performance of the nvesimen: Adviser has

Leen reviewed on an engoing basis throughous the
penod by the 3card at s quarierly meenngs A formal
annual evaluaiion g also carned ou: by the Audiz and
Vanagemen: tngagemean:t CoOmmiiiee

The 3oard considers a number of factors inclading
nvestmen: performance, the quality and quan:iy of
investmen: opporauniies presented, “he skills and
experience of key graff and the capabihty and resources

of the nvesimen: Adwviser 1o deliver saasfaciory
performance for the Company. The Soard 1s sanisfied with
“he performance of the ‘nvesimen: Adviser and considers
178 continued appointment 1o Be in the best interests of the
Company and 128 shareholders.

The 3oard has noted the intentuon of Wellness Unity
imrred {a wholly owned subsidiary of C{ Asser Zoldings
“rmited o mamtain C1vizas nvesimen: Manademens
simred as cnves:men: Adwiser to the Company once the
Takeoveris compleed On 23 June 2023, the Takeover Offer
became uncondiiional



Report of the Directors
Continued

AIFM

GI0 Capital Limited (*G.0" or the "AFM™) has been
appointed as the Company's AI-M with effect from

24 Auguast 2017, The AI°M currently recerves a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis poin:s of the Company's taotal NAV for its

services and the agreement 1s terminable on three months’

notice by either party.

Depositary

Indos Financial amited was appetnted as the Company's
Depositary with effect from 1 June 2018. The Depostary
provides cash monitonng, safekeeping and asset
vertficanion and oversight functions as prescribed by the
Alternative Tnvesiment Zund Managers Directive. The
Depositary receives an annual fee of £59 0C0, net of VAT,
plus 0.006% of the first £350 millhion of any new equity
capital raised per annum and 0.003% of further equity
raiged per annum. subiject 1o a maximum fee of £.50,0C0
per annum. The agreement 1s termimable on six months’
notice by either parsy.

Administrator

The Company has appoinied Lunk Alternative Fund
Adminisirazors Limred ("Link™ as the Administrator

of the Company and its subsidianes, with effect from

28 February 2078, to underake the accountancy and other
admimistrazive dutes of the Company. _ink 1s a specialig:
admimistra:or for invesimen: funds. providing support
funcions and experuse talored for this industry.

The Administrator recerves a ixed base fee for the
provision of 1's services ‘o the Company as well as an
en:idement 10 addimional vanable fees for dutles relanng
w0 corporate acuvizies. The agreemens s terminable on a
least s1x months notice by ether party.

The dunes of tThe Administrator include the maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary books and records,
excluding those mamiamned by the ‘nvestmen: Adviser,
monizornng comphance with apphcable relevant rules and
requlaions and other administrauve ¢daties as required.

Company Secretary

nk Company Matters Limited was appointed as the
Company Secretary to the Company with effect from

28 March 2018. The Secretary recetves a fixed fee for the
provision of its services to the Company. The agreemen:
was for an imnal penod of one year and thereafter

automancally renews for succesgive periodsg of 12 months,

unless terminated by either party on a: least six mon:hs’
noice.

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers 1s reviewed

on an ongoing basis throughous the penod by the

Audrr and Management angagemen: Commitiee and
formally once a year. The Commitree congiders a number
of factors including performance of duates, the skills

and expenence of key staff, and ~he capability and
resources of the service provider 1o debver sansfactory
performance for the Company.

The 30ardd 15 sansfied with the performance of the service
providers appeinied by the Company and considers their
contnued appoimimen: to be in the best intares:s of the
Company and its shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 31 March 2023, the Company had been informed of
‘he following disclosable interests in the share capital of
the Company:

Mumber of Percentage ol

Ordinary Total Voting

—_ . . .shares = Rights
‘nvestec Wealth & Inves'men: limited 62,653,871 10.33

Skandmaviska snskilda 3anken A3 60.66° 457 10.00

{(publ
Standard Life Aberdeen 504925441 5.03
M ) ST nal Services .
Massachuset:s Tinancial Services 50,300,144 506
Company

Tilney Smith & Willlamson _imited 28.844825 476
Legal & General Group 2lc {Group) 18,235,740 m

3lackRock, Inc Below 5%

Continuation Vote

‘n accordance with its Arnicles, the 3oard proposed an
ordinary resolution "hat the Company should conunue
n 1ts currens form o shareholders a: the AGM held on
5 Seprember 2022 As the resolunion was approved by
shareholders, the Company will therefore contuinue 11s
busmess as presently constituied and wall propose a
further continuanon resolution at the AG™ 1n 2027, The
3pard 1s mindfal that. as the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Uniy Limized {a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
CK Asset noldings Limited) has on 23 June 2024 been
declared uncondinional, the resolutions proposed and the
format of the Company's future AGMs may be impacred.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The listing rule 9.8.4 outhnes a series of requiremen:s
for listed companies 1o disclose cerzain items. The
Orectors confirm that “he Company s required o make
a digclosure in respect of the diversily requiremeants
outlined 1n “1sung Ruale 9.3.6 (9). This disclosure can

ke found on page 56 There are no further disclosures
recquired in relauon to Lisiing Rule 9.8.4

Financial Instruments

The Company unlizes financial insiraments i 1's
operations. The financial instrurmenss of the Company a:
3 March 2023 comprnised trade receivakles and payables,
other debtors, cash and cash eguivalents, non-curren:
borrowings, curren: borrewings and denvatives.

Other than 1is fixed interes: rate debt facilities, 1718 the
Direcrors’ opinton thas the carrying value of all iinancial
instrumen:s on the Conschidated S:atemen: of lNnancial
Posgitton 1s equal o their fair value.

For a more detalled analysis of the Company's financial
risk management, please refer 1o note 37 0 of the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The 3oard has considered the requiremen:s "o disclose
the annual quan:ity of emissions 1n tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalen: for acninties for which the Company
15 responsible. The Board beheves that the Company

has, from a formal reporing perspective, no reportable
emissions as this reporing falls under the lessees’
responsibillty as par: of the terms of their fully repainng
and msunng leases: emissions produced from either

the registered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed 1o fall under the
responsibility of other partes; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside -he scope
of the G=G rotocol Corporaze Standard. ‘n relanon o
the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reparing (82C 0,
implemen:ed by The Compantes (Directorg Repory and
“imred Tabihity Parinerships (Fnergy and Carbhon Report)
Requlattons 2078, for the yvear ended 3. March 2023 the
Group 1s considered 10 e a low energy user.

Regardless of the obligatnons of other parmes. the
Company takes the 1ssue of environmensal enhancemen:
and emissions senously as part of vs overall 3G sirategy
and is evaluaung the portfoho, working wrh housing
maragers, 1o congider where 12 can bnng abour further
enhancements and Improvements

“urther desatls can be found in the Snvironmental, Social
and Governance repor: on pages 37 10 46

Political donations

No political donanons were made by the Company or s
subsidianes dunng :he year or the prior year.

Charitable Donations

n addiion o 1ts direct investments, the Company plays
a broader par: withun the communities in which it
wortks. Whilst recogrusing “he practcal imitazions tha:
all financial inves:ors face, C1vitas suppor:s volantary
organisanons that are acave wizhin the broader housing
and homelessness environmen:. Civitas also intends. as
par: of 17 broader financial and operasional reporang, o
provide a commen:ary on the positive social change
and impac: tha: results from “he inves:men:s ha: have
been made.

The following charzable donatnions were paid dunng the
VEeAr:

Charuy Donatior:
Thélr wih No \\Jafne N o E‘JEBU
—ouse of 57 3arnalkas £30.728
WIS= £6.690

£ 0000
LG.C00

The Care Workers' Charity

’T‘gtal

Independent Auditors

‘n ‘he case of each rectorin office a: he date the Repor

of the Directors 1z approved:

e cp far as the Director 18 aware, there 1s no relevan:
audi mformanon of which the Group and Company's
audizors are unaware: and

F64758

e 1heyhave taken all the steps that they cugh: to have
saken ag a Director n order 10 make themselves aware
of any relevant audi: informatnon and to estabhsh tha:
-he Group and Company's auditors are aware of tha:
informasion.

PricewatrerhouseCoopers LLP has expressed 1:s willingness
to continue To act as auditors of the Company and a
reschution for ns re-appointment will be proposed at the
2023 annual general meeung. The 3o0ard 1s mindful that,
should as :akeover offer by Wellniess Unity Lamited {a
wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of CK Asset doldings
_imized) has on 23 June 2025 been declared uncondiional,
-he resolunions proposed and the forma: of the Companys
AGM may be impacied.

Takeover Offer Process

On 8 May 2024, the Company announced that the 3ecard had
reached agreemen: with Wellness Umity Limited (a wholly
owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asset Saoldings lamited’
{+he 'Offeror’} on the terms of a recommended all-cash
offer for the entire 1ssued share capiial of the Company, 1o
he mmplemented by a Takeover Offer (the "Offer™.

Under ~he terms of the Offer, each shareholder will be
entuled (o receive 80 pence 1n cash for each share heid
in the Company. n addimoen, shareholders who wereg on
the register at the close of husiness on 79 Vay 20235 werte
en:led “o receive and retain the fourh quarer dividend
of 1425 pence (n respec: of -he penod ! January 2073 1o

3 wvarch 2023

Tarher on 22 May 2023, the Company Issued a circalar o
shareholders with respect 1o the recommended cash offer,
which ser out tha for shareholders o acceptthe Offer a
“orm of Acceprance must be recewed by The Recerwing
Agen: nolater than 27 July 2024, Subsequens to this. the
date for shareholder “orm of Acceprances o be receved
by the Receving Agen: was broughs forward 1o 23 Juane
2023. On 23 June 2023, The offeror announced tha: the offer
was declared unconditional.

The Roard, which has been advised by the Company's
Iownt 3rokers (Zanmure Gordon and aberam) as 1o the
financial :erms of *he Offer, considers the terms of the Offer
-0 be fair and reazonakble,

The Offeror has indicated 17s 1inzention (subjec: 1o “he Offer
being declared unconditional with the Offeror obraining
75 per cen: or more of the voung rights of -he Companys,
w0 deligt the Company from the London S:iock mxchange
Mawn Marke: for hsted secunies and thereafier re-regiser
“he Company as a privaze limited company as soon as
pracicable following the cancellanion of isung and
-rading of the Company's shares. This process will take
place following the release of the Annaal Repor.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance S:atement, ‘he epor: of the
Audi and Managemen: mngagemen: Commitee and the
Drectors’ Remuneranon Repar: form par: of the Repor: of
“he recors.

Approval

The zepor: of the Direcors has been approved by ~he 3oard.
3y order of the 3oard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secreary
28 Jane 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY >
SV
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Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Lisung Ruales and Migclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require histed companies to disclose
how hey have apphed the principles and complied

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

10 which the issuer 1s subject. The provisions of the UX
Corporate Governance Code (‘UK Code’), as 1ssued by the
SRC 0 July 2018, are applicable to the year under review
and can be viewed ar www.frcorg.uk

The 3oard has considered the principles and
recommendatons of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance {"AIC Code™} as issued by the A!C in February
2019. The AIC Code addresses all the principles set out in
the UX Code, as well ag setting out additional pnnaiples
and recommendations on 1ssues that are of specific
relevance 10 the Company as an invesimen: company.
The ©RC has confirmed that AIC member companies
whao repor: against the A/C Code will be meening their
obligations in relation to the UK Code and “he associated
disclosure requiremenss of the “CA. The A.C Code can be
viewed at www.heaic.co.uk.

The 3oard conswders that reporing agamns: the principles
and recommendaons of the A'C Code provides
shareholders with full dezails about the Company's
corporate governance comphance,

Statement of Compliance

Sxcept as set out below, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the AiC Code throughou: the year
ended 41 March 20235

Provision 23: Jirectors are not appointed for a specified
cerm, as all irectors are non-execunve and the 3oard
believes that a Director's performance and their
conanmted conmbution 1o the running of the Company
1s of greater importance and relevance 1o shareholders
than the length of 1tme for which they have served as a
Mirector of the Company ~ach nrector 1s subject to the
election and re-election provigions set our In the Arficles
which provide that a Director appoinied dunng the year
is required to reqre and seek election by shareholders

at the nex: annual general meeung following thearr
appomimen:. Thereafer the Jirectors intend o offer
themselves for re-eleciion annually and will aim to no: be
on the Board for more than nine years

Tha U Code melades pronasioms relannig 1o

e the role of the chief executive; and
e execuuve dIrectors remunerainon.

The Board considers that these provisions are not relevan:
<0 the posttion of the Company, being an exrernally
managed investment company. In pariacular. all of the
Company's day-to-day management and adminisirative
func:ions are outsourced to third parties. As a resuls.

the Company has nc execunve Directors, employees

or internal operaucns. The Company has therefore not
repored further in respec: of these provisicns.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the 3oard

15 regponsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate strategy.
corporate governance, risk assessment and overall
mvestment policy. The Direciorg have overall
responsibility for the review of invesimen: acuvity and
performance, and the supervision of the investmen:
Adwviser which 1s responsible for the day-to-day asse:
managemen: of the Company’s portfolio.
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The 3oard consists of frve non-executive Jireciors. it
seeks o ensure that 1z has an appropnate balance of
skillg and expenence. and considers tha: collectively, 1t
has substanual recent and relevan: expertence of pubhc
company managemen:, the UK real estate sector, social
housing and invesimen: comparues. All the Jireciors are
independen: of the nvesiment Adwiger and the ATFMV.

The 3card has adopted a schedule of maters reserved
for decision by the 3oard, including inrer aha.
determining the Company's investmen: objecave and
policy, and gearnng and dividend pohecies. This schedule
of masers reserved for the Board 1s avallable on the
Company's webslie.

The Directors ensure that nisks are effecavely managed
through robus? policies and procedures, supperied by
vhe ngh: values and culture. The Board's primary focis
1s the sustainable long-term success of the Group to
dehver value for shareholders, taking 1nto accoun: other
stakeholders.
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

Tha 3oard s responsible for investment decisions, other
“han 10 *he exient delegated o the A'°M and/or the
‘nvestmen: Adviser, and the appoiniment, supervision
and momtornng of the Company's service providers,
including amaongst others, the AlFV and the .nvesimen:
Adwviger. The Board s responsible for the intenim and
annual financial statements of the Company and, in
conjanction with the A TM, also approves the penodic
calculaton of the Net Asset Value.

The Chairman, Michael Wrobel, was independent of

the Investmen: Adviger ar the ame of hig appoin:ment
and 13 deemed by hus fellow Directors 1o conunde o be
independent in character and judgement and free of
any conflicung relattonships. He leads the Board and

15 responsible for 11s overall effectiveness in directing

the Company. 'n haison with the Company Secretary, he
engures ha: the Direciors recewve accurare, umely and
clear informanoen Mr Wrobel considers imself o have
sufficien: nime o commi: to the Group's affairs. Ze has no
significant commitmen:s other than those digcloged in
his biography on page 48. The role and responsibilities of
“he Chairman are clearly defined and se outin writing, a
copy of which s available on the Company's websre

Jerer 3axier 1s the Senlor Independen: Director of

he Company —~e provides a sounding board for

*he Chawrman and serves as an intermediary for the
other Directors and shareholders. =e also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chairman and -akes the lead 1n the annual evalaation
of the Chairman by the other Directors. The role and
responsibilinies of the Senor independen: Direcror are
clearly defined and set our in wrniting. a copy of which 1s
avallable on the Company's websile

The 30ard has no se: policy for the length of tenure of
Drectors although it keeps in mind the recommendanons
of the AIC Code dunng succession planning .7 18 the
Joard's policy for all Jirectors o szand for re-election
annually. Recommendatons for election/re-eleciion of
Drectors are made on an individaal basis following
rgorous review, Jireciors are appoin-ed under letvers of
appomnimen: coples of which are availlabie for inspecaon
at the requstered office of -he Company and ar the AGV

Board Operation and Culture i

The Board meets formally at leagt quarzerly, but also
mee:s on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considering
potenial transacions and associated due diligence.
The 3oard will meet 0 consider and, 1If appropna:e,
approve the acquisiiion of properies recommended

by the inves'ment Adviser. The Investment Adwviser
prepares an Investment >roposal Paper (2P 10 respec:
of the proposed acgunisitions which includes details

of the rransacuon and due diligence reports. Upon
review of the (7P, the Board contemplates the structure
of “he transacuon, any nsgkg attached o the proposed i
trransacion and how these would be muigated/managed,

and rhe impac: of the ransaciion on the value of the

Group's property portfohio, follovwnng advice from

“he valaers.

“or the purpaese of monionng the portfolio, the Board
recewves periodic repotss from the AITM and the
Investmen: Adviser, detailing the performance of the
Company. The 3oard delegates certain responsibilines
and fancuonsg o the Audr and Management Engagement
Commitzee, which has wrnizzen terms of reference.

To assis? ~he 3oard 1in the day-1o-day operatons of the
Company, arrangements have been pu:in place o
delegarte autheriry for performing ceriain operaiions o
the APV, the Tnvesiment Adviser and other third-pary
service providers, such as the Admiristrazor and the
Campany Secretary

The Chairman demonstrazes objective judgemen:, |
promaotes a culiare of openness and debate, and

facthrazes effecuve contribations by all Jireciors The

Jrectors are required 10 act withiintegn:y, iead by

example and promore this ¢ubiure within the Company. i

The 3oard seeks 0 ensure he alignmen: of the

Company's purpossa, values and strategy with the culmare

of openness, debate and im:egn:y through ongoing

dialogue, and engagemen: with the ‘nvesimen: Adviser

and the Company's other service providers. The 3oard

and the nvesiment Adviser opera‘e i a s4pporive, !
co-operaive and open environmens

The 3card schedules yvearly meenings with “he board of
‘he nvestmen: Adviser, one of the purposes of which 1s
w0 recewve an insigh: o the culure of the nvesimen: |
Adviser



Corporate Governance Statement

Continued

The calntre of the Board 18 considered as par: of

the annual performance evaluation process which

is undeniaken by each Director. The culwure of the
Company's service providers 1s also considered by the
Audir and Management Engagemen: Committee during
the annual review of their perfcrmance and while
considering their continuling appointmen:.

The Company mainzaimns Jwrectors and Officers’ liabily
msdrance on behalf of the Direcrors at the expense of
the Company, which was in force dunng the year ended
31 March 2023 and remains in force as at the date of this
repor:. The Board has agreed arrangements whereby
Directors may take independen: professional advice

in the furtherance of their dunes. The Company has

alzo indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Arucles of Associaton.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Direcrors 18 reviewed as par: of
the annual assessment of the Board.

The Board has determined that each Director remains
independent in characier and judgemen: and 1s free of
any relatnionghips or circumstances that threaten their
independence of the Company or its .nvesimen: Adviser,
‘n partcalar, none of the Directors have ever been
execunves of the Company or the Investment Adviser,
have had a matenal direct or indirec: relatsionship

with the Company or i's s:takeholders, have recerved
disproportionate fees, have close family relationships
with stakeholders or represen: significant shareholders.

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agenda s approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance of

each meenng o the non-executve Jirectors and other
arendees A typlcal agenda includes: an analysis of
portfolic performance and exposure; an update on

“he iInvesiment pipeline; the Company's financial
performance; updates on investor relations; statutory and
regqulatory comphance; and any corporate governance
matters. Relevant papers on the ems inctuded on the
agenda are circulated in good time 0 the members of
*he 3oard and 1:s Commuitees, in advance of the meeung

The nvestment Adwviser aitends the Beard meetngs
together with represen:aftives from *he A~V and
Company Secrezary. Representanves of the Company's
other advisers are also invited 0 attend 3oard and
Commitiee meeungs from me to time.

The number of 3oard, Audir and Management
Engagemen: Commitee and Normination and
Remuneration Committee meetngs held duanng *he year
ended 31 March 2023 along with the attendance of the
Ddirectars 1s set out below

Auvdit and
Management
Engagement

Nomination and

Quartetly Roard Remunetation

o Meelngs commiitee commilies
Number Numbet Numbet
entitled Number entitled Number enttled Number
attend  altended  toattend  attended  toatlend attended
Michaet
Wrobel 4 4 3 3 1 1
A.astair
Moss 4 4 3 3 1 1
Alison
Hadden 4 4 3 3 1 1
Caro.une
Gulliver 1 1 3 3 ! 1
Peter
RBaxier 4 1 3 3 1 1

The 3oard 15 scheduled "o meet on a quarerly basis.

in addition 0 these meeungs the 3oard also me: on
shree occasions o approve the NAV and dividend
declarationg and on a further .1 occasions on an ad hoc
basis.

Committees

The Company operates “hrough “he 3oard and 1ts “wo
Board commitiees. namely the Audi and Managemens:
Engagemen: Committee and the Nominaticn and
Femuneraion Commitee (the "Commuiiees . The Board
evaluates the membership of the Committees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audit and ¥anagemen: kngagemen: Commitiee
compnses all Directors. Carohine Gulliver, the Chair of
<he Audir and Management Fngagemen: Committae,
18 a Chartered Accountant and 1s considered o have
recen: and relevant financial expernence. The Audit
and Management =ngagement Committee as a whole
has competence relevant to the real eslate Invesimen:
Company sector.

The Chairman s a member of the Audit and Managemen:

“—ngagement Committee, but does not chair 1t Hig
membership of “he Audir and Management Engagement
Commitzee 1s considered appropriate giwven the small
s1ze of the 3oard and the Chairman's knowledge of

*he finaneial services indus:ty A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audit and Management Sngagement
Commutzee 1s avallable from the Secretary and on the
Company's website.
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The Commitee meets at least three t1imes a year and
reviews the scope and results of the axternal audit, 178
cos: effectiveness and the independence and objeciivity
of the external auditors, including the provision of
non-audit services.

The Commitzee also reviews the terms of the ALTM
agreemen+* and the [nvesimen: Adviser agreemens, and
examines the effectiveness of the Company’s in:ernal
control systemns and the performance of the A. 7V,
Investment Adwiser, Adminisirator, Depositary, Company
secretary and Reqistrar, and other service providers.

The Repor: ofthe Audit and Management nngagemen:
Committee 1s set ot on pages 60 1o 62

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nominaton and Remuneranon Commiiiee (s
comprnsed of all Directors and the Chairman 1s the Senior
ndependent Director, Peter 3axter. The Nominaon

and Remuneraon Commitee meets as required for the
purpose of considernng recrualimen: o and removals from
-he Board; levels of remuneratnion paid to the Directors;
and review of the DJirecrors’ Remuneraion eport and
Remuneranion Policy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneranon and Nominanon Commiiiee is
available on the Company's webisize and 1s availlable by
request from the Company Secrezary

Board Diversity

The Board acknowledges the TCA rules on diversity and
inclusion on company boards.

The 3oard s compnsed of a mixiare of iIndwiduals who
have an appropnase balance of skills and expenence ‘o
mee: the futare opportunimes and challenges facing the
Company. Appoinimen:s 0 he 3oard are made pnmanly
on mertt. though the 3card understands the importance
of diversi'y in corporate governance and takes in-o
consideration a varewy of demographic atnbuses

and characiensies when making decisiong on 138
composiion. The 3oard 15 aware of the new Lisung uile
thatis on a comply or explain’ basis which incormporates
she recommendanons of the Zarker and Zampion-
Alexander Reviews which considered how ethnic,
culzaral and gender dwverstty could be improved on LK
bxoards. The 3oard has discussed ‘he new ethnic diversity
disclosures requnred, namely, that from accounnang
periods slaring on or after | Apnl 2022

ar atleast40% of individuals on the 3card 10 be women:

D) atleas: one senior 3oard posiion 0 be held by a
woman: and

¢ atleas: one individuai on the 3oard o be from a
mnorty echme Lackground

n accordance with Lisung ule 9 Annex 21, the below
wable, in prescnbed formas. show the gender of the
Directors at the vear ended. The data below was
collected through self-reparung by the Directors.

Number of

Number of Peicentage on seniot positions

Gender Idenlity or sex Board members the Board (%) on the Board

Men 3 60 2

Women 2 40 -
Not specified/prefer

net 10 say - - -

h Number of

Numinber of Percentage on senior positions

Ethmic background Roard members the Beard (%) on rhe Board
White Britisn ar 9iner

Whnite {including

minoarity waite

GIoups) 5 100 2
Mixed/Mutiole Ethmic

Grouos - —- -

Asian/Asian Britisn

B.acxk/African/

Cartboean/Biack

British - - -
Otner ethnie growp

inclading Arab - - -
o gpeciticd/prefer

Bl NNTS] say - - -

The 3oard s mindful tha:, ar present, 11 does not comply
with the new erhm< and gender represeniation in
seniar pogition diversity requiremenss and, the 3oard.
via the Nomination and Remuneraion Commiiiee. 1s
*aking appropriate seps 1o ensure that 3oard succession
planning rakes “hese diversiy regdirements im:o
considerarion.

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the induchon of new Jirecrors has been
established, including the provision of an inducuon pack
contamning relevan: informasion akbour the Company,

17 processes and procedures and meeungs with the
Charrman and relevan: persons at “he nvesimen: Adwiger

Performance Evaluation

“or the year under review, the 3oard underook

an internal performance evaluanuon by way of
gqaestonnaires designed 1o assess the sirengths and
mndependence of the 3oard and the Chairman, individaal
wrectors and the performance of *he 3card's Commirees
The areas considered are:

¢ che frequency and effecuveness of 3oard and
Commiree meaings,

e che size composiion and relevan: expenience of *he
3oard;



Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

a cheindependence and performance of the hirerars
and the Roard: and

« thetraining requiremen:s of each Jrecior.

The evaluazion process 1s facilizated by the Company
Secretary under the Chairmans direction and structured
o provide reciors with an opportunity to express
“heir views 1n addition o answering specific guesuons.
Peter 3ax:er. as the Senior ndependen: Director, leads
‘he appraisal of the Chairman. The Board underiook an
external 3oard performance evaluanon in 2021 and 15
cogrmisant of their advantages. 7t will keep this opuon
under regular review.

The Company seeks o ensure rha: the Board has a
Ekalance of skills and experience that are complementary
and enable the Board 10 operaze efficiently

All of the Directors have assessed their other ongoing
commitmen:s and are satusfied that they can commut the
1nme necassary to execate their dutes 1o the Company.

No significant issues were identified dunng the evaluaton
process. 'The Normination and Remunerasion Commitee
considers that all of the curren: Jirectors make an effective
contribatton and have the requisite skills and expenence
to continue 10 provide able leadership and directuon for
the Company. [ was agreed tha- all Jirectors should be
recommended for re-elecnion a the next AGM. The 3oard
1s mindfut that, should as Takeover Offer by Wellness

Ly imited (a wholly owned imdirect subsidiary of CX
Asser Soldings lamiited) has on 23 June 2023 been declared
uncondional, the resolations proposed and the formas of
<he Company’s AGM may be impac:ed.

The 3card concluded thar each Director brings considerable
gxpertise and experience to ~he Board and “he 3oard
operates with good independent thought and challenge,

Al 3oard members have assessed their ongoing
commutmen:s and are satisfled tha: they can commi: the
dme necessary ‘0 execiute their dutes to the Company.

The Beard also uses the performance evaluaton as an
opportunty o review and discuss strategie 1ssues for
~he Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All Dnrectors have a siatutory responsibility to avold
s1vuations where a confher of interest exists, or may

ex1st, between the Company and an enity that the
Jrecor 18 erther direcily or indirectly involved with

The Board has procedures in place 1o idenufy poential
conflicts and resolve any that should anse. 'n the case of
a conflict of inzeres:, the nature and exten: of the conflicr
are assessed against the existing internal control grrugture,
and the resulis of this assessmen: and achons taken o
resolve the conflic are documenrted in the minuzes of
“he relevan: 3oard meeting. No conflicts of interes: arose
during the penod.

Health and Safety

tealh and safery 1s of pnme 1mportance 1o the

Company and 1s considered equally with all other
busimess management activiiies 10 ensure protecion of
stakeholders, be they tenants, advisers. suppliers, visitors
or others. The Board regularly discusses health and safety
issues with the Invesiment Adviser

The Company 1s commtied o fostenng the highest
standards in health and safety as 1t believes thar all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preventable All
our stakeholders have a respongibilizy 10 suppoer: the aim
of ensurnng a secure and safe environment, and all our
stakeholders are 1asked with responsibility for achieving
this commiimens.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Direc:ors are responsible for the systems of Internal
conirol relaang to the Company and 17s subsidianes,
and the rehabilizy of The financial reporung process and
for reviewing their effectiveness, ensuring that the nsk
managernen: and control processes are embedded in
day-to-day operations.
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An ongoing formal process, 1n accordance with the

“RC Guidance on Risk Management, nrernal Con:rol

and Related Tmancial and Business Reporing, has been
eszablished foridenufying. evaluating and managing the
principal and other nsks most kely -0 impac: the Group.
This process, which 1s regularly reviewed. ogether with
key procedures established wih a view o providing
effecuve financial control, has been 1n place throughout
‘he year ended 4 March 2023 and up o the date of this
REpOrt.

The Audit and Managemen: fngagement Committee has
n place a formal procedure for perferming an ongoing
robust assessmen: of the Group's nsk management

and inzernal conrrol systems. A nisk marrix has been
es:ablished against which the risksdenified and the
controls 1in place t¢ mitigate *hose nsks can be monitored.
The risks are assessed on the basis of the likehhood of
hem happening, the impact on the business if they were
o ocear and the effectiveness of the controls in place

o mitigate them ‘narnving at 11s judgement of whas
rsks the Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company's operazions in the ligh: of he following faciors:

e ‘he na:ure and exten: of risks which 17 regards as
acceptakle for the Company to bear within iis overall
business objecave;

e :he threa: of such rnisks becoming reality:

e the Company's abhiny -o reduce the incidence and
impac: of nsk on 11s performance; and

e thecos:othe Company and benefits related to the
Company and third parnes operaung the relevan:
controels.
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The risk matrnx 15 reviewed twice a year by the
Commitiee and at other umes as necessary. The principal
nsks facing the Company are se? out on pages 30 to 33 of
hig Annual Repors, together with the processes apphed
‘o miagate those risks

COn an annual Basis, the Committee reviews the conrol
repor:s of 1ts key service providers and the auditors note
any deficiencies Innternal controls and processes that
have been dentified duning he course of the audr:.

The Audiz and Managerrien: ~ngagermnent Commitee 1s
mindful of these key risks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging nisks such as the impact of the ongoing
Lkraine-2ussia confhict, long-term chmate change and
cyber secunty which have the potential to affect the Group.
The Comrnirree ensures that the 3oard takes appropnate
advice and debates the 1ssues facing the Group.

At each 3oard meeting. the 3oard receives repor:s from
‘he nvestmen: Adviser. the Admunistrator, the AW and
she 3roker in respec: of comphance acuvines. Company
financial performance and financal postion.

The con:rols, which are regularly reviewead, aim o
ensure that the asse:s of the Company are safeguardead,
proper accouning records are maincained, and the
financial informanon used within the business and for
publicaion 1g rehiable The nsk managemen: process
and Company sysiems of internal conirols are designed
0 manage ra:her than ehminate -he risk of failure 1o
achieve the Company's objeciuves and can only provide
reasonakble, bu: not absolure assurance agains: masernal
miss:zatemens: or lOss.

The Directors have carmned out a review of the effectiveness
of the Company's rsk managemen: and nternal conzrol
sysiems as they have operated over the penod and ap w0
she daze of approval of the Annual Reper:. Junng the course
of the review, the 30ard has notidentified nor been adwvised
of anry farthngs or weaknesses which 10 has determined o be
significan:

The Directors have considered the appropnateneass of
esmablishing an mternal audir fincion and, having regard
<0 the structure and natare of the Company's acivities,
has concluded that “he funcuon s unnecessary. The Auadn
and Vanagemen: ~ngagemen: Comirruee will review
on an annaal ka=is the need for this funcion and make
appropriate recommendations 1o the 3oard.

Financial Reporting

The 3vard operates the following key controls in relation
-0 financial reporiang:

e he 3pard and Commitiee members review quarnerly
managemen: repor:s and supporang documents thas
are provided by the nves men: Adwviser,

e “he 3o0ard has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and paymen:s 1o third partes: and

e the Commirtee members and Board review all
financial information and announcements prior
0 publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibillly as
mtegral to how 11 conduc:s 1ts business. ‘115 committaed to
being a good corporate crizen and behaving responsikcly
with a demonstrated ransparency of approach.

To achieve this goal. the Company applies “he {ollowing
principles 10 138 operations.

Business Conduct

The Company's investmen: decisions are made on the
basis of generaung shareholder value and ensuring

che long-term success of the business The selecuon of
supphers will be made independently by the Company's
Diractars upon advice from the ‘nvesiment Adviser

and 1n the bes: interests of the Company. The Soard

will ensure that approprate conirols are in place 1o
guaran:ee Independence from the gupply chain.

All customers and supphers will be reated fairly and
responsibly.

The Company will no: provide financial suppor: o
polimcal partes or polizicians.

'The Company 1s resolutely opposed 10 bribery and
corraption. The Company will no: uge any tllegal or
improper means 1o furher 1s business interes:s, nor will
17 accept any forms of inducements intended o influence
s inves men: decisions.

Governance

The Company will protec: the mnteres:s of 17s shareholders
and other stakeholders through comphiance with relevan:
legal and reqgulatory environmen:s, and “hrough effeciive
managemen: of busimess nsk and opporanty.

The 3oard will ensure tha: 1:s members are ‘nily i
independen:, are competen: and have the resources and

suppor: requlred ¢ perform theiwr duties opaimally, and

“ha: the 3o0ard’s decisions are made 1n the bes: interes:s

of the Company and 17s shareholders. The performance

0f *he 3oard will be regularly reviewsad. and Direciors will

retre as and when deemed appropriaze by the 3oard in

accordance with bes: pracuce



Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible invegtor
and believes that 11 1s important 10 invest In specialist
soclal housing properiies in a responsible manner in
respect of environmental, ethical and sccial 1ssues. The
Inves:ment Adwviser’s evaluanion procedure and analysis
of the properaes within the portfohio includes research
and appraisal of such matiers, and akes into account
environmen:al and social pohcies and other business
198ues.

Turther detalls on the social impac: of the Company's
mvestments are included i the Sccial impact repor: from
The Good Fconomy, a summary of which can ke found
on page 10

The Company recogmnises that environmental prozection,
resource efficiency and sustamable development are
necessary to ensure that environmental damage 1s
Iimred and furthermore that where relevan:, posiuve
achons should be saken o 1mprove the existing
environmen: for funure generations.

Transparency

The Company aims 0 be transparent, and o ensure
thaz it commurnicates with 1its shareholders and
orher stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
anderstanding of 128 business.

The Company maintains accouniang documeniaion
tha: clearly identifieg the srue nature of all business
transacions, asse's and habihues, in ine with the
relevant regulatory, accountng, and legal requiremen:s.
No record or entry 1s knowingly false, distorted,
incomplete, or suppressed

All reporang 1s matenally accurate and complete and

In compliance 1n all matenal respects with stated
accounting policies and procedures The Company dees
not knowingly misstate or misrepresen: managsament
informanon for any reason, and the Company expects ‘he
same ¢ apply o its suppliers.

The Company may be required tc make siatemen:s

or provide reports 1o regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other governmen: depariments, as well as 1o
the media. The Company ensures tha: such statements or
repor:s are correct, urnely, and not misleading, and that
they are delhivered through the appropnrate channels.

The Company provides, through 1:s website, its Annual
Repor: and other statements. appropriate informauon
to enable shareholders and stakeholders to assess

-he performance of 1zs business. [t comples with

the apphcabile laws and regulanons concerning the
disclogure of informanon relataing to the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that its propertieas which
are assocazed with the provision of health services
provide significan: value-adding facilities in the
commurniiies where 1t 1Inves:s.

Relations with Stakeholders

Detalls regarding *he Company's engagement with 17s
stakeholders are get out within the Strategic Repor:t on
pages 17 10 25.

Approval

The Corporare Governance Sratemen: has been approved
by *he 3oard.

3v order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited
Company secreary

28 June 2023
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audir and Managemen: Zngagemen: Committee (the
‘Committee”} oversees the financial reporiing process for
*he Company, with consideraiion of the internal controls
and nsk managemen: of the Company, and oversight of
~he Company's complhiance with accounung siandards
and regulatory requirements. it also oversees the
performance of the invesiment Adwviser and the Company's
administrazve and company secretarial support.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commiiee 1s chaired by Carohine Gulliver and
comprises all the Jirecrors. The Commitiee operates within
wntten erms of reference which are avatlable on the
Company's website as derermined by the 3oard.

The principal funcions of the Commitiee are to:

e oversee the financlal reporiing process for the
Company and monvor “he integnvy of the finanaal
statemenss of the Company and “he Group, including
sheir complance with accounung standards and
regulatory regquirements:

e advise the 3oard, where requegied, on whether the
Annual Repor: and financial stazements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the informauon necessary for shareholders
-0 asgess the Company's positnton and performance,
business model and srateqgy;

¢ review and montor the internal financial control and
rigk managemen: sys:ems of the Company,

e montar and review annually whether an inzernal
audiz funcnon s required;

e review the nvesinen: Advisers whistleblowing
arrangements:

e approve the appoimniment re-appolniment or
removal of the external audrors, and approve their
remuneranon and terms of engagement,

e manage ‘he relatuonship between the Company
and the ex:ernal audizors, inchuding reviewing hetr
independence and objecavity and the effectveness of
“he aadn process;

¢ develop and implemens a policy on the engagemen:
of the external audizors “o supply non-audi: services;
and

e review and monitor the performance of, and
contracnial arrangements with, the Tnvesimen
Adwviser, “he ALZM and ocher service providers.

s within the Commitiee's terms of reference for s
members o seek mdependen: professional advice, a:t the
Company's expense, as required in the furherance of 1is
dumes

Meetings

The Commirree mees three 11rmes a year, on "wo
occasions, par: of the meennyg s held with the external
audiiors withou: “he nvesmen: Adviser presen: The
Cormmizzee me: three 1imes in the financial year and “he
meellngs were azended by each member as se- out on
page bs

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluaion of the performance of the
Commuttee 1s disclosed on pages 56 and 57.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process foridenafying,
evaluaung and managing he principal and emerging nisks
faced by the Group. ~uriher details can be found on pages
57 and 58,

The principal risks and unceriaintes iWdentified from the nsk
register and a descriptlon of the Group's nsk managemen:
pracedures can be found on pages 30 w0 53,

Activities During the Year

The Commuitiee considered “he Annual Repor:, Half-Yearly
Report, any other formal financial performance
announcements and any other matters as specified
ander the Commuitee's terms of reference and reporied o
‘he 3pard on how it discharged g responstbilizies

The Commitiee discussed and considered the external
audit performance, ohjechivity and independence, the
exrernal auditors re-appoinimeant, accodning policles
and Aliernatve Performance Meagures, significan:
accountung judgemen:s and esumates, the need for an
nzernal aadit funchnon and the nsk register.

The Commuttee concluded “hat an internal audi:
funcnon would provide minimal adduional comfor:
ar considerable exira cogt to the Company. .n:emal
assurance 15 achieved by the exisung sysiem of
monioring and reporing by thurd parnes which “he
Committee views as appropriaze and adequate. The
ex:ernal auditors are also provided with third pary
internal controls repor:s and addinonal informauoen,
as requested.

2unng the year, the Commiiee also conducted a
comprehensive review of the key agreemen:s with

118 service providers, and a detailed review of the
performance, composiTion, personnel, processes and
m-ernal control sysiems of the ATV, a review of all of
‘he Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers. The discussion included an assessmen: of
performance and saizabihty of the services provided
n the context of the fees pavd to each prownider and a
review of the terminanion penod of each agreemen:.

The Commiztae considered the rerms of the ‘nvasimen:
ManagemenT Agreement To ensuare 1 contindes o reflect
“he commercial arrangemenss agreed berween the
Company and ‘he nves:men: Adwvizer and was sausfied
‘hat this was the cage.

The Commree discussed and considered the Takeover
Offer by Wellness Unity .tmized {a wholly owned
gubsidhary of CX Asser “oldings amedt including “he
work undertaken by the Company in relauon o the offer,
s impact on the Company's risk profile and on going
concern



Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Committee considered the key accouniing esimares
and judgements underiying -he preparation of the
financial statements focusing specifically on

Vaiuation of Investment Property
The valuanion of the property porfoho 1s crucial to the
gratement of financial position and reported results.

After discussion with the ‘nvestment Adviser, “he
Commitiee has determined that the key risks of
misstatemen: of the Company financial statemen:s relate
1o the valuation of Investmen: property.

The valuations of the iInvestment properties at the end
of the financial year were independently performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited {"JL.7. whom the Commitiee
considers 1o have sufficient expertise, experience and
local and nanonal knowledge of social housing and
suppored housing o undertake “he valuations.

L. also conducts ininal valuanuons of properies on
acquisition. The Directors have ensured tha: J_. has
appropnate procedures 1N place 10 engdre there are no
ndependence confhcts with the services provided o
-he Company.

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Commiitee that
‘he method of valuation has been applied consistently
dunng the year. It furrher confirmed -ha: dunng the
course of the period. ]’ was regularly challenged by
the investment Adwviser on the assumprtions used in the
valuation of the Company's inves ment properies 1o
engure robus: and appropniaze methods were being
applied. The ‘nvestmen: Adviser discusses these areas of
challenge with the Commutzee.

The audizors met separa‘ely with JLL and reported back
c0 the Commitiee on 118 challenge of the valuanons

and assumptions. The aadniiors were satisfied that

the valuanions had been prepared using appropnaze
methods and assumptions, and had been prepared in
accordance with R:CS Valuanion - Professional Standards.

As explained in note 15.0 to the fiinancial statemenss,
the approach adopted by the Company 1s to recognise
inmvesmen: properies at fair value, with the famr value of

the property being based on valuauons performed by JLL.

The revaluanon of the investmen: properteas gave rise 10
a revaluazion gamn of F2,640.000 m the penod.

Takeover Qffer

The Commuitee considered -he valuation work
undertaken by JL_ {as ingiructed to act for the Company.
Zanmure Gordon (UX} limited and Liberurn Capiral
Limized} with respec: o the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Loy _imited (@ wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of CX
Asse: Holdings Limied). The valuation methodology used
by JLL was consisient with that used during the valaauon
far the year ended 37 March 202% and had the same
valuation clate.

Maintenance of REIT Status

There are a number of conditicns that a company {or
prncipal company of a group REIT) needs 10 satisfy in
order 1o become a REIT and rematn within the reqime.
The UK RE'T regime affords the Group a benehaal tax
rreatmen: for income and capital gains. providaed certain
criterta are met There 1s a risk that these REIT conditions
may not be me: and addimional tax becomes payable by
‘he Company. The Board regularly reviews ihe EIT tests
“hat are performed by the Administrator.

The Board 1s satisfied that :he Company has mamniained
its REIT status throughout the year.

Going €Concern

The Committee considered the Company's Going
Concern and Viability Statemen: for the yvear ended

3: March 2023 in ligh: of the Takeover Offer and ms impac:
on the Company's debt posiiion. [t agreed the wording
dsed in the Independent Audiors Report which makes
reference 1o the matenal unceramty dentfied.
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Misstatements

The nvestment Adviser confirmed o the Commitiee that
11 was not aware of any matenal misstatemen:s made
mcentonally 1o achieve a paracular presentation

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Faving reviewed the presentations and repor:s from “he
mvestment Adwviser, the Commitee 15 sausfied tha: the
financial statements appropnately address the cnincal
iudgements and key esumates, both in respec: of the
amoun:s reporied and ‘he disclosures.

The Committea 15 also satisfied thar *he significan:
assumpiions used for determining ~he value of assets
and habilities have been appropnaely scrutnised and
challenged and are sufficiently robus: Accordingly, the
Committee has concluded that the Annuaal Repor: and
financial statemens:s. taken as a whole, are fair, halanced
and understandable, and has recommended their
appraval 1o The 3oard on tha: basis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenute

As a resul: of the U{s implementation of the Ell's
mandatory audi: firm rotation requiremenss. *he Company
15 required 1o ensure that the external auditors contract
1S put ous to tender at leas: every ‘en years. with the
proviso that no single firm may serve as the Company's
ex ernal auditors for a penod exceeding 20 years.
ncewaternouseCoopers UL was first appomted as the
Company's auditors with effect from March 2017 't 1s
intended tha* the external audi wall be pu: out o tender
no later than for the financial year commencing @ April
2026, which 1s ten years afier the Company's ininal hsung.

Saira Choudhry 1s the audit pariner allocated o the
Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The audit of
the financial statemenss for the year ended 3° March 2023
15 her second as senior statutory auditor of the Company.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

Asg part of 18 annual review of the effectiveness of

the exiernal audi: process, the Commitiee oblamed
assurance on the gaality of the external audi: from 175
own evaluaucn, the audit feedback documentation and
from correspondence and digcussions with the audit
partner, invesiment Adviser and the Adminustrator.

The audirors demonsirated a good understanding

of the Group, and had identified and focused on the
areas of greates: inancial reporung nisk. s reporting
<o “he Comrmittee was clear, open and thorcugh. The
Commitiee has assessed the professional scepticism and
challenge of managemen: judgemen: by the audhtors
and 1s sausfied ~ha: the audirors have demonstrazed
these Tor example, the external auditors conducted a
review of the work conducted Ly Ji7 i evaluaung ~he
investmern: property valuations in which “he external
audchtors showed appropnae professional scepicism
and challenge of judgement. The Commiitees assessed
‘he challenge provided by the external auditors via the
exwernal audiors repors provided at the year end and
half year end meetings and quesuoned the external
audrrors as appropnae The Audit and Managemen:
—ngagemen: Committes Chairman also met with the
ex:rernal auditors throughod: the audir and half-yearly
review processes To ensare that the exzemal auditors
ware aligned with the Commitees expeciations. The
Committee congsidered the advice included in the

FRC Craciice Aud on Audrr Guahty when making this
Jadgement,

The “C's Audi: Quializy nspecions 2epor: on the aadrs
carned ou: by ?ricewaterhouseCoopers .2 was also
considered by the Commisiee On “he basis of “hese
facrors and assessmenss, the Commizee has concluded
thar the external audi process has been effecuve.

The Commizee assessed ‘he exiernal audrors’
independence, qualifications, relevan: experience,
and effeciiveness of audir procedures. 'n advance of
each audit the Comrmmustee obraing confirmancn from
the external auditors thar they remain independen:
and ha? the level of non-audi fees are nor an
independence threat

Non-audit Services

The Commiitee has put into place a policy for the
prowvision of non-audlt services o the Company by the
audiiors which 1s 1n hine with the recommendations se:
outin the FRU's Guidance on Audit Committees {20:6) and
‘he requirtemen:s of the "C’s Revised Sthical Standard
{20:9). The general intenion of the Committee 1s o avold
the provision of non-audit services hy the auduors. other
than the review of the half-yearly repor, as thege have
rhe potenual o compromise the independence of the
auditers. The Committee acknowledges that in ceriain
gimianons 1t may be appropnace for the external auditors
o provide such services 1o the Company for a variety of
reasons iIncluding cost effecuveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relazionship between the 3oard and

the exzernal audizors. All non-audit fees are approved by
the Commitee in advance. Where non-audit fee levels
are constdered sigmificans, the Commitee considers the
appropnatenass of the independence safeguards putin
place by the audizors.

The to:al fees paid 10 ncewaterhouseCoopers L2 during
~he penod. net of VAT, to:alled £44.,000 (2022: F402.000] of
which £83,000 (2022 £44,000) was concerning non-audit
services for the review of the half-yearly repor and

£l (2022 £62.000 for non-audl: services concerning a
planned 3ond ‘ssue which was posiponed)

The audrrors were selectad for the non-audir services
relating ¢ the posponed 3ond ssue foliowing careful
consideration by the Commiitee. The Commitee
beheved that the abkxlity for the audirors wo audit the
Company's financial stazemen:s independen:ly would
no: be impacted by this work. 171s standard pracace for a
Company's external audiiors 1o underiake this rask.

Note 9.0 0 the consolidazed financial statements
detalls all services provided and -o:al fees paid o
ricewaterhouseCoopers __2 for the financial year
ended 3" March 2023 The Comrtree considers
“ricewarerhouseCoopers 1.2 10 be independen: of the
Company

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking in:0 accoun: the performance and effectiveness of
-he audiors and he confirmaiion of their independence.
‘he Commitiee has recommended o the 3oard “ha: a
resoldiion o re-appoin: 2nicewarerhouseCoopers 1.2 as
*he Companys audizors ke put o he shareholders ar the
forrhcoming AGWV.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman, Audls and ¥anagemen: cngagemen:
Commiiiee

28 une 2023
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nommauon and ermuneranon Commiitee presents the
Report for the year ended 3. March 2023

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominauon and Remuneraiion Committee COMPrises
Peter Baxter. as Chairman, and the enure Board, all of
whom are non-execunve Diractors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the Board and are avatlable on
the Company’s wehagi-e.

The Nominauon and Remuneration Committee’s principal
duties are as follows:

Nomination

« 0 review ‘he siructure, size and composition of the
Board, including us skills, knowledge. expenence and
dwersity, including gender and ethmicity;

e o consider the succession planning of Directors,
raking o account the challenges and opportunines
facing the Company and ‘he skills and experuse
needed on the Soard in the futire:

e 0 be responsible for identifying and nommna:ing
candidates ‘o fill 3oard vacancies as and when
they anise;

e 0 review annually the time required from
NON-8xeciliIve rectlors:

e 10 review the resulss of the Board performance
evaluation as 17 relates 1o Board composiaon and
guccession planming:

e 10 review annually potennal conflicts of interes:s of
Dwrectars as disclosed to the Company and develop
appropnae processes for managing such conflicts; and

¢ torecewve and consider updates from the ‘nvesimern:
Adwviser on 1's own succession planning activities.

Remuneration

s ‘o determine and agree with the 3oard, a formal
and ransparent procedure for developing pohcy
on the remuneraton of the Company's Chair, Aud:
and Managemen: Fngagemen: Commitee Chair
and non-executive Directors;

e« 0 ake nto account all factors when considering
“he Remuneraion Policy which it deems necessary,
including relevant legal and regulatory requirements,
‘he provisions and recommendazions of the A'C Code
of Corporate Governance and associated guidance:;

* 0 review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance
of the Remunerazion Policy;

¢ 0 abiainrehable up-ro-date information about
remuneranon ih other companies of comparable
scale and complexity and marke: practice generally;

e 10 be responsible for establishing the selection
cntena, selecing, appoinang and seting the terms
of reference for any remunerasion consuliants who
adwvise the Commutiee; and

e 0 ensure that contractual terms on terminanon, and
any payments made, are tair to the indmvidual, and the
Company. tha: failure is not rewarded and tha: the
duty to mitigaze loss 1s fully recognised.

Activities During the Year

The Committee meetg at least once per year. Dunng he
year, the Committee has:

« considered the 3oard’'s remuneration in view of the
responsibihities and time commitments for overseeiny
‘he affairs of the Company. in hght of the Articles of
Associauon as well as the level of dividend paid <o
shareholders during the year;
reviewed ‘he Directors skiil marmnx;

e considered the Board's current succession plan, and
agreed tha: 1m would be prudent for the Soard to
phase the recruizment of additional Directors going
forward o allow progressive roation of Direciors and
facihzate effeciive succession planning:

e appointed a Sub-Commitiee 1o ke responsible for
conducing the recraitment process o wdentfy a new
candidate for appomtmens 1o the 3oard;

e engaged recrnintmen: agency, Qdgers Rerndston, o
assis: with the search for a candidaze:

e reviewed the results of the 3pard’s 2023 performance
evaluaton process, the details of which can be found
on pages 46 and 57, and

e sausfied itself thar each non-execunve Jirector
serving at the end of the year remains independen:
and con:inues o have sufficten: sime to discharge
*heir responsibilinies ‘o “he Company.
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The Company 1s supporive of the new Lisung Rules
being 1ssued by the Sinancial Conduct Authony

on diversity and inclusion on company boards. The
Commaitiee 1s considertng a range of candida‘es from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversity pelicy can
be found on page 56.

The Direcrors' fees were consideraed by the Committee in
Febraary 2023 Duning 178 consideraton, the Committee
ook into account the faciors of clanty, ssmphceity, nisk,
prediciability, proporaonality and alignment of Company
culture 't also obtained the mos: up-to-date indus:ry
remuneraton comparigson o aid 1in 1:s decision-making.
Please see The Directors’ Remuneration Repor: on pages 64
w0 67 for details on Director remuaneration.

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Nominaton and femuneranion Commiiee

28 June 2023

}}\‘\ IUL{M W j

CE0E SLNNODOY ANV LHOJEY
O BNISNOH TVIDOS SYLIALD

o
«



oo
==
o=
Zz &
Z5
sz
= =<
=z
]
"o
i
<k
=5

k

=]
Wb

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Introduction

The Remuneration 2olicy of the Company 1s set by

“he 3oard. A resolunion (o approve the Remuneration
Jolicy was passed at the AGM of the Company held

on 5 September 2022. The policy provisions ser ous
below will apply until the Remuneration ?olicy 1s

pui to shareholders for approval a: the AGM of the
Company in 2025. There are no changes proposed to
the Remuneranon Policy. The Remunerauon 2olicy 18
binding and sets the paramerters within which Directors’
remdneraion may be set,

Policy

The Remuneration 2olicy of the Company 1s o pay us
non-executive Directors fees that are appropnate for
the role and the amoun: of ume spent in discharging
thewr dutes, tha: are broadly 1n hine with those of
comparable real eszase invasiment companies and that
are sufficien: 10 atract and retam suirably quahfied and
experienced mdhviduals

Directors' Remuneration Components

component

Annual fee

Director

Chatrman

Non-execdive rectors

Annual fee

Chair of the Audr: and Managemens:
-ngagemen: Commitiee
Al reciors

Addizional fee

Addimonal fee

_:.Xp&nseq All reciors

Rate at 1 April 2023

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may also be reviewed when new non-execuive DIrec:ors
are recruited to the Board. The Directors of the Company
are entitled o such rates of annual fees as the Board

at 1.8 discrenion shall from ime 7o itme determine The
Chairman of the 3vard and the Audiz and Managemen:
“ngagement Committee Chairman are enttled 1o receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflecung their additional dunes and responsibilines.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change :akes place
during he financial year.

in additien o the annual fee, under the Company's
Aracles of Association. if any Director 1s requested o
perform any special dunes or services outside their
ordinary duties as a Director, they may be paid such
reasonakle addimonal remuneranon ag the 3ocard may
from time o otme determine.

(and 1 Apnil 2022)

E55000

PU[pOVSVE"V(?f R}'}mllr\f’l‘allq{:\i —_—
Commuimen: as Chairman of a public
company'

F£34000 Commimment ag non-exacuive Jirectors of
a public company-

£5.600

“or addinonal responsibilinies and nime
commirmen:’

-or extra or special services performed n
“heir role as a Direcior

Jscretonary

n/a Reimbursemen- of expenses incurred 1n che
performance of dunes as a Jirecior’

1 The Company s policy 1s tor the Chaitman ol the Board to be paxd a higher fee than the other Directors 1o teflect the more onerous role
2 The Company s Arlicles ol Assaciation lumit the aggregate tees payable 1o the Board ol Directars 1o £250 000 per annum

3 The Company s palicy 1s tor the ¢han of the Audit and Managemeni Engagement Committee 10 be patd a higher lee than the Gthet Dieciors to eflect the more
onerous roje

4 Thus 15 a provision of the Company s Aricles Additonal tees would only be paid in exceptional coeumstances in relanen o the perfolmance of extra or special
services

S Directors are enhiled 1o claim expensas tn respect of duhes undertaken in connection with their role as a Dueator

The Company has no employees Accordingly there are no differences in poliey on the remuneratcn of Directors and rhe iemunera iton of em ployees

Na Director1s entitted 1o recerve any lemunaerdnon which s pertarmanee related As a resull, there are no performance condinons in relanon 1o any elemeants of the
Directors remuneration in existence o setout n this Remuneration Policy

Oirectors and Officers habihry insurance cover 1s Ag all Directors are non-execisive and there are no

maintained by the Company on behalf of the Directors.

Oirectors are entidled to be paid all expenses properly
mcarred in asrending 3oard or shareholder meeungs
or otherwise i or with a view o the performance of
“heir dunes.

employees, 'he Company does not operate any share
option or other long-term incentive schemes and the
Jirectors fees are not subjec: jo any performance crizera
No pension or other reuremen: breneflr schemes are
operated by ~he Company for any of 175 Direciors.




Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No Director has a service contract with the Company. The
Directors are appointed under letters of appointment.
Theirr appomntmen: and any subsequen: termination or
retirement 15 subject to the Articles of Association. The
Directors’ letters of appomntrnent provide tha:. upon the
rerrmunanon of a Mirector's appomtment, that Director
mus: resign n wning and all records remain the
property of the Company The Director's appointment
can be t:erminated in accordance with the Arucles of
Asgsoclation and without compensation. There 18 no
notice penod specified 1n the Arnticles of Assocanon for
the removal of Directors and all Directors are subjec: 1o
annual re-election by shareholders,

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneration package for any new Chairman or
non-execdtive Director will be the same as the prevalling
rates deermined on the Lases sel out above. The 3oard
will not pay any introduciory fee or incentuve o any
person to encourage them 0 become a Director, but
may pay the fees of search and recraiimen: specialists

1n connection with the appoiniment of any new
non-executllve Direcior.

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees being
paid o Jdirectors would be taken inio consideration by
-he Board when reviewing levels of remuneration.

Remuneration Report

The Board presents 1158 Directors’ Remufieralion Repor:

1 respect of the year ended 3 March 2023, The 3oard
has prepared thig report in accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups {(Accounts
and wpor:s) (Amendmens) Regulatons 2013, An ordinary
resolunion for the approval of the Jirectors’ Remunerasion
Report will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company's audizors 1o audr certain
required disclosures. Where disclosures have been
audited, they are Indicated as such. The audizors” opinion
is included in the auditors report on pages 71 1o 78.

Annual Statement from the Chairman

I am pleased to presen: the Directors’ Remuneraiion
Report for the year ended 31 March 2023

Durning the year under review, the Board, via the
Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, was
responsible for setting the Company's Remuneration
Polcy and Directors' fees.

The report from Nomination and 2emunearation
Cormmi:tee can be found on page 65

The Directors are remunerated for ther services at such
rate as the Jreciers shall from sime 10 tme determine.
The Board has se: three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman. one for other Direcors, and an addiiional

fee that 15 pald to the Director who chairs the Audit

and Management Engagement Committea. -eaes are
reviewed annuaily 1n accordance with the Remuneration
Policy. The fee for any new Jirector appownted wiil be
determined on the same basis.

directors’ fees for the year ended 3. March 2023 were

ar a level of £53,00C per annum for the Chairman and
£34,000 per annum for other non-execusive Direciors. The
Chairman of the Audis and Management ngagement
Commirzee recerved an additional fee of £5.000 per
AN

There were no ather paymen:s for exra or spemal
services in he year ended 31 March 2023,

A7 the AGM held on 5 September 2079, shareholders
approved the amendment o the Company's Arucles of
Associtation which increased the maximum aggregate
annual remuneraion payable 1o Directors from £200,0C0
o £250.000.

The Direcrors’ Remiuneraton Policy was approved
at “he AGM held on '5 Seprember 2022. There will be
no significan: change n the way the Remuneraion
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

The Directors’ Remuneration 2olicy will nex: be presented
to shareholders for approval ar the Company's AGM 1n
2025.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Directors' Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served dunng he year recewved the following emolumensts:

Year ended 31 Mairch 2023

__Year ended 31 March 2022

Taxabte Change Taxable Changeo
Director L Fees benetits Total 102023 Fees _ benehts _ Towl w2022
Michael Wrobel (Chairman) £53,000 - E53000  192% E52000 - £52000  400%
Alastair Moss £34,000 - £34,000 216%  £55,28D - B55.280 4.00%
Alison Jadden £34,000 - £34,000 2.16%  £33.780 - E53.280 4.00%
Caroline Gulliver £39,000 - £39,000  188% £38.280 - £38280  6.55%
Peter Baxter £34,000 - E34000  216% £33.280 - £45280  4.00%
Towal o £194000 - £194,000  £90i26 - £198720

The amoun:s paid ‘o rthe Oirectors were for services as
non-execuiuve Mrecrors. Taxable benefits included 1n the
above talle are in regpec: of The amoun:s reimbursed o
Directors as travel and orther expenses properly incurred
by them 1n the performance of their duties. There are no
vanable elements in the remuneraton payable 1o the
Jirectors.

under the Company's Arucles of Association, the otal
aggregate remuneration and benefiis in kind of the
oirectors of -he Company 1s subject to a maxamum of
£250.000 1n any finanaial year Any change 1o thag would
reqilire shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Drectors do no: have service contracis with the
Company bu: are engaged under letters of appoimimen:
gander which there 1z no enitlement to compensgaton for
loss of office. irectors are subject o annual re-election
by shareholders,

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Civitas FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

170 - ’7’

150

70

Company Performance

The following graph compares the perfarmance for the
perntod from (PO on 18 November 20°6 t0 37 March 2023,
“he rotal shareholder rerurn of the Company's Qrdinary
shares relative o the IS8 All-Share ‘ndex and =T5=%
Real Zstate Index. Although the Company has no formal
benchmark, these indices have been selected as the
“TSE All-Share representg all compames of a similar
caplzal size, and *he consiruents of the 7T5- 350 Real

e ndex are UK-baged real esrate companies and are
“herefore considered o represer: “he mos: appropriase
comparauve,

50 —
18 Nav 31 Mar
2018 2017

31 Mar
2018

31 Mar
2019

31 Mar
2023

31 Mar
2020
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The takle below sets out. In respec: of the year ended
S March 2023

a) the remuneration paid 10 the Directors; and

b) the disinbunions made 10 shareholders by way of
dividend.

Year ended
21 March 2023

Year ended
1 Mareh 2022

__ £'000 - -
Directors’ remuJneranon 194 90
Dividends pawd so Ordinary
shareho]de[s __%4,4_59______3__4,@93

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There 15 no requiremen: ander the Company's Articles
of Assoclation or the rerms of their appointmens: for
Directors to hold shares in the Company.

As at 31 March 2023, the Dwrectors (including their
connecied persons) had beneficial interests in the
following number of shares in the Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary Ordinary

. shares  shares
‘Michael Wrobel 200,000 120,598
Alastair Moss 11,766 11,766
Alison Zadden 31,937 -
Carchne Gulliver 58,832 58.832
Peter Baxter __ 82085 82,065

There have been no changes to Jirectors’ share interes:s
between 31 March 2023 and the date of thig Repor:. Fach
Dwrector has accepted the recommended all-cash offer
made by Wellness Unity Limited for the enure 1ssued
share capi:al of the Company (the 'Offer in respect of
their own beneficial holdings.

Noane of the Directors or any persons connecied
with them had a matenal interest in the Company's
transactions, arrangements or agreemen:s dunng
*he year.

Voting at AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved at

the AGM held on 5 Sep:ember 2022 and the Directors’
Remunerazion Report for the year ended 3 March 2022
was approved at the AGM held on 15 Seprember 2022 The
votes cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

Vn[(-:s for! Vo-tns agail n‘s:
% of votrs % of vores Votes Total
Resolution cast . cast withheld vates cast
Te approve
the Direciors’
Remuneraion
Repor:
To approve
the Jirec:ors’
Rermuneraion
Policy

99.65% 0.35% 266554 296369.243

99.63% 0.87% 283,007 296,569,243

1 Votes tor include discretionaly proxy voles granted 1o the Chairman by
shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company is commitzed to ongoemng shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest in voing ouicomes.
Where there are substannal votes against resolutions

m relation to Directors’ remuneranon, the Company whll
seek the reasons for any such vote and will detatl any
resuliing achons in the Jirectors’ Remuneration Report.
3oth the approval of the Directors’ Remuneraion Repor:
and the Directors’ Femuneranon Policy rescluilons were
approved by shareholders a7 the AGM on 15 September
2022 The 3oard recerved no feedback from shareholders
on :hese resclutions.

Approval

The Direciors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the
Board and signed on 1ts behalf by

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

28 June 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Jirectors to prepare financial
statements for each financtal year. Under tha: law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statemen:s
1n accordance with UX-adopted internaional accounting
standards and the Company financial gratements in
accordance with Lnited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accouning Practice {United iingdom Accounting
Srandards, compnsing RS 107 "Reduced Misciosure
Tramework”, and apphcable law)

Under Company law. Jirec:ors must not approve the
financial sratements anless they are satsfied thas
they give a rrue and fair iew of the gtate of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profiz or loss of
the Group for that penod. 'n prepanng he financial
staremen:s, ~he dractors are redquired ro:

e select sulzable accounung pelicies and then apply
rhem consistently;

s state whether applicable UK-adopied internanonal
accountng standards have been followed for the
Group financial sratements and United <imgdom
Accountng Standards. comprising “RS “01 have been
followed for the Company financial statemen:s. subjecr
o any maz:enal departures disclosed and explained in
“he financial statements:

¢ make judgements and accouniing estimaces rhas are
reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial stTatements on the going concern
xasis unless 1t 1s inappropriate (o presume that the
Group and Company will confinde 1in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the
asse:s of the Group and Company and hence for aking
reasonable steps for “he prevention and derection of
fraud and other irregulariies

The Drectors are also responsible for keeping adequase
accouniing records thas are sufficlen: o show and
explain the Group's and Company's rransachons and
dizclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the
hnancial posinion of the Group and Company and
enable them o ensure that the financlal statemente and
the Direciors’ Remuneraiion Repor: comply with the
Companies Ac- 2008

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
inzegriry of the Company's financial szazemen:s publizhed
orn the ulhima“e paren: Company’'s website. Laqgisiation

in the Lnized <ingdom governing the preparanon and
disgsemination of financial statements may differ from
legislanion in other junsdictions

Directors’ Confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annuyal Repor: and
Accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fair. balanced and
understandable and provides the informauon necessary
for shareholders o assess the Group's and Company's
posiiion and performance, business model and strategy.

Fach of the Directors, whose names and functions are
hgred 1n the 3oard of Directors, confirm tha: so the beg: of
“heir knowledge:

e he Group financlal s:atements. which have been
prepared in accordance with UK-adop:ed inzernational
accouning s:andards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, hablhites, financial position and profir of the
Group;

e ~he Company financial stasements, which have
been prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, compnsing SRS (0L give a true
and fair view of the assets, habilines and finanomal
posiion of the Company: and

e the Group Strategic Repor: inchides a fair review of the
developmen: and performarnce of the busmess and ‘he
postion of the Group and Company. ‘ogeher with a
descnpiion of the principal nisks and unceramies tha:
17 faces.

Approval

This Statemen: of Directors’ Responsibilitiies was
approved by the 3oard and signed on t1s kehalt by:

Michael Wrabel
Chairman

28 June 2023
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternative nvestment fund
Manager (the "AI"M"} are each domiciied 1n the United
Kingdom, the “CA Handbook rules require that, among
other things, the AIFM makes available the following
mformastion to shareholders of the Company under the
ATFMD {as implemented 1n the UX) and to notify them of
any matenal change to information previously provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company's
wekbsite: www.civitassocialhousing.com

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)(a)(b)}(h))

The investment sirategy and objectives of the Company,
the types of asse!s it may invest n and the investment
techmques - may employ, associazed nsks and any
mmvestmen: restrictions are laid outin the investmens
objecuves and policy and other sechions of the

Annual Repor:.

“or information about the circamstances in which

the Company may use leverage. the types of sources
permized and the associated nsks and any restnictions
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-uge arrangemenss, shareholders are directed o the
disclosures contained in the invesiment cbjecuves and
policy section of these financial statements as well as
specific Ail'M.D related disclosures further below

Under the “CA's Listing Ruales, 10 which the Company is
subiec:, 17 needs the pnior approval of 1is shareholders “o
make a matenal change to1ts investrnent pohoy.

Since the Company 15 closed-ended without redemption
rights, ligadry nsk management 18 fimireed 1o the
liquidity requaired o meer the Company's obligations in
relation 10 115 financing arrangements. The A7V utulises
various risk assessment methods to measure the nisk of
vor:folio Miguidry ;o mee: the Company's obligaions.
This measurement enakles the provision of management
Information to *he A"V and the 3card of the Company to
enable these ngks to be monitored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(1){c))

The Company is a public imited company hsied on the
London S:ock zxchange. The Company 18 ihcorporated
ander the laws of England and Wales. The constitutional
documens: of the Company s 1tg arucles of association
which may only be amended by way of a speaal
resolution of 118 shareholders. Upon the purchase

of shares, an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Company. A shareholder's liabihty o the Company will
be hmited to the amount uncalled on their shares

As the Company 1s incorporated under the laws

of England and Wales, it may not be possible for a
shareholder located outside that junsdiction to effect
service of process within the local junsdiction in which
‘hat shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a substantial portion of the asse:s of the Company
may be located ouiside a local junsdiction in which
a shareholder resides and, as a result, 1t may not be
possible “o satisfy a judgement against the Company
in such local junsdiction or to enforce a judgemen:
obtained 1n the local junsdicnion’s cour:s against

+he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
{e) and (f))

The ALTM (G10 Capizal Limited) 1s a privaze limited
company with s reqistered office at 3 More London
Riverside, _ondon S5 2AQ. GG Capital Limited 15
authornised and regulated by the Tinancial Conduct
Authority ({RN 648953). i1 has been appointed by he
Company to manage the Cempany under an AV,
Agreement with effect from 24 Augus: 2077
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The AI7M is responsible for porifolic managemen:
and risk managemen: and monizoring of the asses of
“he Company and has discretionary authority over the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s assets.
with power o give guaraniees and undertake other
rransactuons on behalf of the Company subject “o the
provisions of the AI7M Agreement. The AFM s also
responsgible for ensuring compliance with the AFMD.

The AT M's duries under the AIMM Agreement are owed
:0 the Company as a whole rather than directly o the
shareholders, whether individually or in groups The
3oard of the Company 1s responsible under the A"V
Agreamens: for represenung the Company in s dealings
with the ATV

‘n order to comply with 11s regulatory obligations, the
AFM holds professional indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and (£))

‘ndos Mnancial aumited (the “Deposizary”™ has been
appoimnted as the Deposizary of the Company under

a Deposizary Agreemen: in accordance with ATFMD
requirements. The Jepositary 1s a company ncorporated
m Sngland (regis:ered numher 08255973) whose
registered office 18 at 51 Fenchurch Street, London

EC3M 3JY. t1s authonsed 1o acr as a Depositary by the
“CA(TRN 602528). The Depositary 1s responsible for
safekeeping of the Company's inves ments. including
holding in custody those inves:men:s which are required
0 be held in custody and verifying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other inves:meants, and
for cash momtonng.
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depositary's duties under the Depositary Agreemen:
are owed to the Company as a whole and not directly to
shareholders, whether individually or in groups.

The invesimen:s of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held in custody by the Deposiary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1)(qd))

The independent audnriors of the Company for -he year
ended 31 March 2023 were PricewaterhouseCoopers L2
The auditors’ duties, which are set out on pages 76 and
77, are owed "o the Company as a whole. They have a
statuzory responsibility o repor: 20 “he members of the
Company as a whole m relanon "o the sruth and fairness
of the Company's s:ate of affawrs and profi: or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g))

‘The asses of the Company are valued in accordance
with *he provisions se: ou: 1in the Valuauon “olicy. The
‘nvesment Commitee which has been setup by the
AT respect of the Company and 155 asses adds a
further level of oversight 1o the valuaton process as set
ourin the Corporate Governance secuon of the Annaal
Repor:

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i))

The Company 1ncurs cos:s in the form of deposi:ary fees,
custodian fees, bank fees and charges, markeung fees,
auditors fees, lawyers fees, fund admimisiranon faes,
company secretanal fees and other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j))

Mo preferennal nights have been granted 1o any
ex1sting shareholder.

The Company and the AI”M are commuzed o ensunng
~hazt all sharehoiders are reared faiwrly and in accordance
wiith UX company law. They have no: and will no: enter
N0 any arrangement: with one shareholder which
could result in any overall maserial disadvantage "o “he
other shareholders,

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23(1){1))

The Company is closed-ended and does no: provide for
redempnion or repurchase of the interes s of ordinary
shareholders a: their reques..

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
(k), 23(1}{m) and 23(1}(n))

The hisworic performance of the Company. o the exten:
avallabie, has been disclosed o shareholders in the
Company's Annual and =alf Yearly Repor:s, which

will ke sen” 0 sharehaolders and are available from
hip //evizassocialhousing com/.

The latest NAV of the Company 1s published 1n -he
latest Annual or Half Yearly Report or quarterly
NAV announcement.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1){0))

The Company doeg not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)1{p).23(4),23(5))

nformation about the Company's nsk profile and nsk
management, total leverage and any matenal change 1o
“he arrangemen:s for managing the Company's hquidity.
the proportion of assews (1f any) subject 10 special
arrangemen:s arsing from hgquidity, the maximam
permuited leverage or the grant of nghts of re-use of
collateral or guarantees in relation o leverage will be
provided 1n the Company's Annual Reports or on the
Company's website hup//enntassocialhousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23(4)(c))

The appointmen: of the AV as the AI7M of the
Company under the ATTV.D means tha: 17 1s responsible
for nsk management and the ongoing process of
1denufying, evaluaung, monizoring and managing

the nsks facing the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the AITMD. The Board keeps the AI7M's
performance of these responstbilities under review as
par: of s overall responsibilizy for the Company's risk
managermen: and inernal conrols.

The prnncipal nisks of the Company are set out in the nsk
managemen: section in the Annual Report The ATTM's
risk managemen: sysiem incorporates regular review

of these risks and the eszablishmen: of appropriaze rnsk
himits and internal conirol processes 1o mitigaze the
rigks. The sensimivity of the Company o relevan: nsks s
further detalled in the risk managemen: sectton in “he
Annual Repor..

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified in the invesimen: okbjecives and pohoy in
“he Annual Repor:. the Company has the ability ©o puzup
T0 a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Asse: Value and the ATV oversees the use of leverage <o
ensure that the use of borrowing 1s consiszen: with this
reculremens. everage 1s calculated using gross assets.
with vanous adjusimen:s, divided by ne: asse:s.

Under AT7V D, “he Company 1s required o calculate
leverage under the 1wo methodologies specified by
the Direcuve, the 'Gross Method' and the 'Commiimen:
Yethod ', the difference being tha: the Commiimen:
Method allows certamn exposuares o be offse: or netzed.
Jsclosures are made on the websie of the Company.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion
N OUT OPINION.

e Crvizas Social Housing 2LC's group financial statements
and company financal statemen:s {the “financial
statements’ give a true and fair view of the siate
of the group’s and of the company's affairs as a
31 March 2023 and of the group's profi: and the group's
cash flows for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internauonat
accouning standards as applied in accordance with
the provisiens of the Companies Act 2006;

e he company financial staiements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepied Accountng Practice (United Kingdom
Accourting Standards, inchading 738 107 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law);, and

e he financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audiied the financial s:tatements, incladed
within the Annual Repor: and Accounts {the "Annual
Report”™), which compnse: the Consohdated and Company
Starements of “inancial ?osition as at 31 March 2023,

the Consolidated 3:atement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consohdated Statement of Cash Clows, and “he
Consohdated and Company 3atements of Changes

In squity for the year then ended; and the noes 0 the
finanaal stazemernts, which include a descrniption of the
significant accounting policies.

Qur opnon 18 consistent with our reporing o the Audi:
and Managemen® Engagemen: Committee.

Basis for Opinion

We condiucted our audit in accordance with ‘nternational
Srandards on Audinng (UX} (" SAs (UX)) and applicable
law. Our responsibiliues under [s4s {UK) are further
descnibed 1n the Auditors responsibihties for the audit of
-he financal s:atements secaon of our repor:. We believe
*hat the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and
appropnate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group 1n accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our
audit of the financial statements in the UK which includes
the 'RC's sthical Standard. as applicable 10 listed public
interest entes, and we have fulfilled our ocher ethical
responsibillzies 1n accordance with hese requirements.

To the hes: of our knowledge and belief, we declare
“ha: non-audit services prohibiied by the “C’s Zthical
Srandard were no: provided.

Other than those digclosed in noe 90 to the Consolidated
financial stazemen:s, we have provided no non-audi:
services .o the company or uits controlled undertakings in
the penod under audi.

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

in forming our opinion on the financial stazements,
which 1s not modified, we have considered the adegquacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 to the Consolidated
financial stazements and note 2.0 to the Company
financial statements concerning the group's and the
company's ability 10 coninude as a going concern,
respectively. On 9 May 2023 “he Board of Dwectors of
Civitas Social Housing 2LC {*CSH' or ‘the group™ and the
3oard of Directors of Wellness Unity Limited {an indirec:
wholly-owned subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings .amized)
{collectively referred to as "CX" announced that they
have reached agreemen: on the terms and condidons

of a recommended all cash offer for the group. On

2% June 2023, the offer became uncondiional. The group's
existing committed debt facthties conzain a standard
change of conirol clause which, from that point forward,
could result in the existing commutted deb: facihities
being withdrawn. The Directors have not had detailed
visibihty of CX's post completion funding for the group
and company or the detailled plans behind the intentions
statements mmcluded within the announcement These
conditions, along with the other martters explained in
note 22 to the Conzsolhidated financial statements, indicate
the exisience of a marternal unceriainty which may cas’
signiftcant doubkt about the group's and the company's
ability to conurde as a going concern The financial
statements do no: include the adjustments that would
resul: if the greup and the company were unable 1o
CONNNUe as a going COncerrn.

n auditing the financial statemen:s, we have concluded
-has the directors’ use of the going concern kasis of
accouning in the preparason of the finanmal statements
i appropriae.

Our evaluation of the direciors assessment of the groups
and the company's alzility 1o continue o adop: the going
concern basis of accounting included.

+ We obtained managements latest forecas:s tha:
suppor: the Board's assessment and conclusions with
respec: to the going concern kasis of preparaton of
the financial statements.

s We checked the mathematical accuracy of
managemen:’s forecasts.

e We evaluazed and challenged forecasts and sensutiviy
analysis preparad by management to ensure they
are reflecave of both the curren: environmen: and
considenng the nisk of a severe and prolonged
economic downturn We have assessed the extent
and plausibility of these scenanos in light of current
circumstances. We evaluated the directors’ plans
for furare actions in relation o their going concern
assessment. should rhese be required.

e We agreed the inputs to these analyses o the audiied
financial informanon or obtained corrohorative
suppor: for key assumptions as applicable.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

e We have assessed the deb: covenan:s as well as
managements asgessmen: of posaible breach of
covenants agreeing the mnpilts 1o the audired resul:s
We have evaluaied management’s §resg (ests on the
covenants.

e We also considered whether Crvitas debt financing
would impac: the abthty of the group and company 1o
conunue as a golng concern, Specifically we have had
consideranon around any debt that 18 coming due in
the gomng concern period.

n relatnon 1o the direciors reporung on how ‘hey have
applied the UK Carporate Governance Code, ather than
the mazenal unceramnty identified in note 2.2 1o “he
financial statements, we have nothing material 10 add or
draw attenuen o 1n relazion <o ~he direciors’ statemen:
In the financial statemeants abour whether the directors
considered 1t appropnate to adept the going concern
basis of accounting, or in respec: of the directors’
identficanon in the iinancal statements of any other
material ancertaincles 1o the group’s and the company's
abiluy 1o conlinue o do so over a penod of at leas:t
swelve mon:hs from the daze of approval of the financial
stazemens,

Our regponsibihnes and the responsibilizies of *he
direc:ors with respect (0 going concern are described (n
“he relevan: secuons of thas repor,

Qur audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

¢ e talored the scope of oir audls to ensure tha: we
performed enough work 20 be able to give an opimion
on ‘he financial statemensg as @ whole, saking into
account the structure of the group and “he company,
rhe accouning processes and controls, and the
indus:ry m which they operate. The group consts’s of
a single reporrable segment

Key audit matters

e Marenal uncerainty related ‘o going concern
« Valuanion of investmen: propery (group!

Materiality

s Overall group matenalrty: £:0.0 million
(2022: £'0.4 milhon) based on "% of 1otal assets.

e Overall company materiaiizy: £8.2 million
(2027 £8.2 million} bagsed on % of 1otal assets.

s Jerformance materiahty: £7 5 rullion (2022 £7.8 milhon;
(group’ and £6.2 millton (2022 £6 2 mithon) (company).

e Specific group matenalty: £1.3m (2022: £L.5my for
certain financial statement line iterms that impact
adjusted profit before tax (AP3T) - based on %% of
AP3T APBTIs equal to profi: before tax adjusted for
the fair value movemen:s n inves:ment propery and
fair value movemert:s onh interes: rate dervatves.

The Scope of our Audit

As part of desigming our audit. we determined matenaley
and assessed the nisks of matenal misstarement in the
financial statements,

Key Audit Matters ‘

Key audit masters are those maters that, in the audrors’
professional fudgement, were of mos: significance

m the audir of the financial statements of the current
period and inclide the mos: significan: assessed risks
of mazenal migstarement (whether or not due to fraud)
idenzified by the audizors, including -hose which had
the greatest effec: on: the overall audr: sirategy: the
allocanon of resources in the audit and directing the
effor:s of the engagemen: seam. These maters. and any
commen:s we make on the resulis of our procedures
“hereon, were addressed inthe context of our audn

of the financial stazemenss as a whole, and i forming
our opintan thereon, and we do nat provide a separate
opinieon on these maters,

n addiaon o going concerr, descrilzed in the Matenal
dancerainsy relazed 1o gomg concern section above, we
deermined he matrers descnbed helow 10 be the key

audi masers 1o be cornmumeared in our repor:. This s
no- a compleze lis: of all nsksidentfied by our audr:

Abiluy to conunige as g going concern (Coniinuallon
Resolunon}, which was a key audi: matier las: year. 1s no
longer included because the Continuanon Resoluiion
vore was passed in September 2022, Otherwise, the key
audi: masers below are consisten: with last year
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Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Key Audit Matier

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Property (Group)

Refer 0 the Repor: of the Audit and Management
Engagement Commitiee, note 3.1 20 the Conso:idated
financia. statements, Significant estimate - valuation of
invesiment property and note 150 o :he Consotidazed
tinancia! siatemen:s. Invesiment property.

Tnvesiment properties are he.d a: a fair va.uc of £953.4 mi.lion
as a- 3 March 202% in the Consolida-ed Statermnent of
Financia’ Position. The va.uation of the group’s nves ment
oroperty is :ne Key component of the ner assct value and
underpins the group's resut lor ine year The result of the
revaluation this year was a gain of £2.6 miliion, which is
accounted for within ‘Change in fair value ot investmen:
properties’ in the Consc idated Statemren: of Comprenensive
Income The group's invesimen: praperty oorifolio consis:s of
speciaisi socia: housing properties iocated in England and
Wales which are lel to Aporoved Providers ot social housing
on .ong-lenn .easaes.

Investmen: property va.Jadions welc carried out by a taird
pary va.uer, Jones Lang LaSalle (TLL or the Valuer). The
Valuer was cngaged ny 1he Direciors and performed rheir
work 1In accordance wit the Royal Tnstit.ace ot Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) RICS Valuation - Proiessional S:andards and
the requirements of Internadional Accounting Standard 40
‘Invesiment Properny’

in delcrmining 11e va Je of a property, the Va_.er has

lEFen INfo accoun: propery-specille intormaion Inc..ding
‘he ease lerm and renta_income payab.e They appiied
assumplions o arrive al e discount raze wnicn 18 anoiner
<ey inpu: o (ne valuation. Tnis has reference 1o net inla.
yie.d and CPI grow:n rate walch are inf. yenced ny pravai’ing
mar<e: conditions and comparaoic 'ransactions wnere
appropriatc

The valuation of 1ne groug’s investmen: property porifolio
wag idenzified as a £¢y audi mailer given the valiation

is inherently subjec:ive due (0, among other factors, tae
individual nat.re of each propery. s location and the
expected future ren:al sireams 10r Inatl paricd.ar Dropersy.
Tae significance of tho estimaics and 'wdgemeans involved,
coap.ed with the fact that only a smal. pereentage difference
in individua. propeny valuaions. waen aggregated. coua.d
resu. in @ materia. missialemen. warranted soecific audit
focus in this area.

Given the inheren: s.pjectivity mvoived in the valuation

of the property porticlio, and therefore the need for deep
marke: knowledge when delermming the mos: appropria:c
assumptions and e ‘echnicalities of valuation methodo.ogy.
we engaged cur internal valuation experts (qualiflied
chartered surveyors) 10 assist us in our audi: of this area.

Assessing the Valuers’ Expertise and Objectivity

We read the Valuer's report and confirmed that the approach
used was consistent with the RICS guidelines. We assessed
tne Valuer's qua.ilications and expertse and read their terms
of engagement with the group. determining that inere were
no matters -hat affected their independence and objectivity
or imposed scope (imitalions upon ‘hem. We a.so considered
lees and oiner contraciual arrangemenis tha: might exist
between the group and the Valuer We found no evidence 1o
suggest (hat tne objectivity of the Valuer was compromised.

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

In our testing, which involved the use of our interna. real
estate va..alon expers. we considered the assumptions
utitised by the Valuer within tne val.ation, including
unders:anding how these assumptions ware deveioped.
We a.so performed benchmarcing where observable
market evidence was availabie We cnalienged the Valaer
regarding the impac: of the regulatory cnvironmen: on
invasior sentiment and asse! va..es. We attcnded meetings
with managemen: and nhe Valuer at whicn the valLaion
metnadoiogy and the ey assumptions weare discussed.
We cha..enged neir approach o the valuations, and (ne
rationaie pehind the more significant va:uanon assump:ions
adopied. Where ass.mptions were ouiside the expeciad
range, we andertook furiner invesugauons, he:d further
discusgsions witn the Va.uer and cbtained cvidance o
s.pport exp.anations received. We a.so challenged 1ne
Va.uers as 1o the exien: they nave la<en inio accodnt mnae
impact of clime nange and related E5C considerations
within 11e va.catnons. Tne responses provided by ne
Va.uer and supporiing evidence, enapled us 10 consider
.he propery specific factors tna: may have had an impac:
on value, including recen: comparab.e transac:ions
where approprnate, We concluded that the assumprions
used by the Valuer were consisient with our expeciallons
and comparab.e pencnmar<ing and marxe: rransaction
information for the asset tyoc.
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Data Used by the Valuer and Legal Title

We validated 1ne data used by the Valuer and found that il
was consisien: with “he infermation we audited Tas data
inciuded inputs sach as curren: ren:, rent indexation (CPT or
CP111%) and ‘easc term. which we nave agreed on a samrpie
basis 1o execuied ‘eass agreemen:s as par: of our audit
work. We verified .ega. ownership of properiics throagh
independent title deed confirmaticns on a sample oasis.

We concluded that the assumptions used In 1ae va.Jaluons
py the Vaiuers were suppor:able in .ight of the evidence
ohtained and tne disciosures within the Annual Repor: are
sufficient and appropria:c. We nave no issues 1o report in
respect of tnis work,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
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Continued

How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored “he scope of our audit to ensure “ha: we performed enough work o be able to give an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole. rfaking 1nw accoun: the siracrure of the group and the company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the indus:ry in which they operate.

The group's properties are spread across 159 s:atutory entines with the group financial statements being a
conischdation of these entines. The group's property portfcho represents a coherent and diversified portfoho with
similar economic charac:eristics and, as a resuls, the whole porifolio of properaes represents a single operaing
segment or componen:. and we have scoped our work accordingly. All work was carned out by ‘he group audit team
with additonal procedures performed on the consolidanon 1o ensure sufficien: coverage and appropriate audnt
evidence for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole.

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

in planning our audit, we madea enquinesg with management 10 unders:and the exten: of the potential impact

of chmate change risk on the financlal srazements. Our evaluaton of this conclusion included challenging key
judgements and esamates in areas where we considered that there was greatest potential for chmate change
Impact. We paracularny considered how chimare change nsks would 1impact the assumpnons made 1n the valuanen
of Investmen: properies as explained in odr key aadr: mater above We also considered the consisiency of the
disclosures in relanion to chimate change made within the Annual Report, and the knowledge obtained from our audit
Using our knowledge of the business, we evaluated managemensts risk assessment and resulting disclosures where
significant.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our apphcatnion of mareriality. We se: certain quan:itatuive thresholds for
masenalizy. These, rogether with quahzative considerations, helped us 10 determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, uming and exten: of our audi: procedures on the indviduaal inancial statement ine items and disclosures and
In evaluaung he effect of misstatemen:s. hoth individually and in aggregate on the financial statemen’s as a whole.

3ased on our professional judgement. we determined matenality for the financtal statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements — company
Overall P00 milaon (2622 FI0 4 mi.ion). f82Zmi1on 022 F8.2 miliion)
materiality
How we 1% of ota. agses 1¥ ol J0la. assc's
determined it
Rationale for The key measare of e group’s performrance 1s tne Tac company’s main aciivity 18 the no.ding of
benchmark va..anon ol invesimen: properiies and 11¢ vpa.ance myvestimen:s in siosidiaries On nis basis. we set
applied snee’ as a wao.e Given 1s, we se’ an overa.. an overa.. comopany macna.iy :eve. pased on
group materialdly .ove. nased on lota. asses. 0T assels

1 addirion to overall group materniahty, a specific group matenality was also applied -o cerzain financial statemen:
line 1zems ha: impac: Adpasied 2rofir 3efore Tax (A23T?, which g based on profiz before tax, adjusied 1o exclude
fair value movemen:s on inves men: property and denvanives. We set a specific averall matenaliy level of £.3
million (2022: £.5 millions, equanng o 5% of AP3T n armving at this judgemen:, we considered the fact *hat A?3T 15
a secondary financial indicazor of the group which s disciosed as 523A Zarnings in the Annual Jepor: refer *o the
Group S:rateqic Report where the term 1s defined in fulll,

We yse performance matenalizy 1o reduce 0 an appropnately low level the probabih:y that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatemens exceeds overall matenality. Speaifically. we use performance matenahty
in dezermining the scope of our audi: and *he natare and exten: of our zesung of accoun: balances. classes of
ransachaons and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance matenaliy was 75%

(2002: 75%) of overall marenah-y, amounang (o F75 milhon (2022 £7.8 million} for he group hnancial statements and
F£6.2 million (2022: £6.2 multhon} for the company financial statements.
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‘ndetermiming the performance matenality, we
considerad A number of factors - the listary of
misstatemen:s, risk assessment and aggregation risk
and the effectiveness of contrels - and concluded that
an amount at the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit and Managemen: sngagemen:
Commutiee that we would repor: to them misstatements
dennfied during cur audit above £500,00C (for 1zems
audited using overall mazenaliy} and £64,100 (for items
audited using specific groap maenality) (group aadit)
(2022: £4579,0C0 and £74,5C0) and f413,0C0 {(company

audit) (2022 £411,000) as well as miss:atements below
‘hose amounts that, in our view, warranzed reportiing for
gualitative reasons,

Reporting on Other Information

The cther information compnses all of the informarion

in the Annual Report other than the financial s:atemen:s
and our auditors report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other informauon
and, accordingly, we do not express an audlt opinion or,
except to the extent otherwise expheorly s1ated in this
report. any form of assurance thereon.

In connecton with our audn: of the financial statements,
our regponsikilizy 1s to read the other information and,
In doing so, consider whether the other information s
maerially inconsisten: with the financial statements

or our knowledge obiained in the audr:, or otherwnise
appears to be materially misstared f wedentify

an apparen: material Inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are reqaired to perform procedures
10 conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstatement
of the financial statements or a material misstalemen:
of the other informanon. If. based on the work we

have performed. we conclude that there 15 a matenal
misstatement of this other informaton, we are required
1o teport tha: fact. We have nothing o report based on
these responsibilities.

With respect 1o the Group Strategic Report and Repaor: of
the Directors, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been
incladed.

3ased on our work undertaken in the course of the audit,
the Compantes AcCt 2006 reduires us also 10 report certain
opiniensg and mazters as described below.

Group Strategic report and Report of the Directors

n our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit, the information given in the Group
Strategic Repor: and Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2023 1s consistent with the financial
statemnen:s and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

‘n hght of the knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environment obrained in
+he course of the audit, we did notidentify any maternial
migstatements in the Group S:rategic Report and Report
of the Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration

[n our opinion, the par: of the Directors’ Remuneration
Repor: 10 be audiied has been properly prepatred In
accordance with the Companies Act 2CC6.

Corporate Governance Statement

‘The Lisung Rules reguire us o review the directors’
statemen:s In relaton to going concern, longet-erm
wviability and tha: part of the corporate governance
statement relating o the company's compliance with

“he provisions of the UX Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review. Our additional responsibilities
with respect to the corporate governance stalemeant as
other informancon are descnibed in the Reporing on other
information section of thus report.
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3ased on the work undernaken ag par: of our audit, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governance staiemernt 18 materally congistent
with the financal stazements and our knowledge obtained
durnng the audit, and, excep: for the marters repored

in the sectiion headed "Material uncertainty related to
gowng concern’, we have nothing maternal 20 add or draw
atention ton relation 1o

e The direciors confirmaton that they have carned ous
a robust assessment of the emerging and prncipal
risks;

e The disclosures i the Annual Reporn that descnbe
‘hose principal nsks, wha: procedures are in place to
reniufy emerging nsks and an explanaton of how
theze are being managed or mitigated;

e ‘The direciors statement in the financial statements
abour whether they considered 17 appropnate 1o
adop: the going concern basis of accouniang in
preparng them, and their identfication of any
marernal unceriamnes 1o the groudp's and company’s
abihity so continue to do so over a penod of at leas:
swelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements;

e 'The directors’ explananon as o their assessmen: of
the groups and company's prospects. the penod ‘hs
assessmen: covers and why the penod s appropnate;
and

e The directors statemen: as o whether they have a
reasonable expectanon that the company will be able
o continue in operation and mee: 17s habilines as “hey
fall due over the penod of 11s assessmen:, including
any related disclogsures drawing aention o any
necessary qualificaiions or assumprions.

Onar review of the direciors statemen: regarding the
longer-term viabihty of the group and company was
gubzranially less in scope “han an audr and only
consigted of making inquineg and considenng the
direciors process supporing their statemens:; checking
that the gratemen: 1s 1n alignmentwith the relevarn:
srovisions of the UX Corporate Governance Code;
and considering whether the stazemens s consisten:
with the financial g1atements and our knowledge and
undersanding of the group and company and their
environmen: obramnad in the course of *he audi

n addition, based on the work underaken as par: of
our audn, we have conciuded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance sratemens 1s
matenally consistent with the finanmal s:atements and
our knowledge abtained during *he audit:

¢ The directors statement that they consider the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, 13 fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the informasion
necessary for the members to assess the group’s and
company's posttion. performance, business model and
SIratedgy;

e The secuon of the Annual Repor: Tha: describes the
review of effectiveness of nsk management and
mnernal control systems; and

« The secuon of the Annual Repor: descnbing the
work of the Audi and Managemen: Fngagemen:
Commitee

We have nothing o report in respect of our responsibiy
~o repornt when the directors’ statement relaung to the
company's comphance with the Code does no: properly
disclose a deparmare from a relevan: provision of the
Code specihied under the lisang Rules for review by the
auditors.

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Financial Statements

As explained more fally in the S:atemen: of Jireciors
Responsibilinies, the directors are responsible for the
preparauon of the financial statemenis in accordance
with *he applicable framework and for bemng sanisfied
~hat they give a true and fair view, The direciors are alzo
responsible for such internal control as they determine
18 necessary o enable the preparation of financial
srazemenss that are free from maternal miss:azemen:,
whe her due o fraud or error.

n prepanng the financial statements. he direcors are
responsikie for assessing the group's and the company's
abiliy o condanae as a going concern, discloging.

as applicable. ma:ers relazed 1o going concern and
as1ng the gong concern basis of accouning unless

“he direciors erther intend o hquidate the group or the
company or t0 ¢ease Operatlions, or have no reahisic
alretna‘ive bu: "o do so



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Our objecuves are 1o obiain reasonable assurance abou:
whether the financial statemsrts ds g whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to15sue an auditors' report tha: includes our opirnon.
Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but 18
no: a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n accordance
with [SAs (UK) will always detect a maternial misstatement
when It exisis. Missialermnents can anse from fraud or
error and are considered maserial if, inchividually or 1n the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financal statements.

Irrequlanes, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance wizh laws and regulations. We design
procedures 1n line with our responsibilines, outhned
above, 10 detect matenal misstatements in respect of
irregulantes, mcluding fraud. The exten: to which our
procedures are capable of detecing vregulannes,
including fraud, 1s detalled below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry.
we 1dentifled that the pnnapal nsks of non-comphance
with laws and regulanons related (o compliance with

the Real bstate ‘nvesimen: Trus: (RE[') status Part 12 of

the Corporaton Tax Act 2030 and the UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the Financial
Conduct Authonty, and we considered -he exten: 1o
which non-compliance might have 5 marenal effect on
the financial statements. We also considered thoge laws
and regulations tha: have a direct impact on the financial
statemen's such as the Commpanies Act 2006. We evaluated
managemesn:'s incennves and opporiuniies for fraudulent
marupulanion of the financal stazements including the
risk of overnde of controisl. and de:ermined -hat the
principal ngks weare related o posting inappropnate
journal entries o 1ncrease revende or rediuce expendizure,
and managemen: blas in accouning egtimates and
judgmen-al areas of the financial stazements such as the
valuation of invesimen: properues. Audi: procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

e Discussions with managemen:, including
consideration of known or suspecied ins:ances of
non-comphance with laws and regulanons and fraud,
and review of the reporis made by management

e Lndersianding of managemen:'s internal controls
designed o preven: and detect iregulariies;

e Assessmen: of maters. if any, reported to the Audit
and Managemen: chgagemern: Commiltee;

e Reviewing relevan: meeiung rmnutes, including
‘hose of the 3card of Dwrectors and the Audit and
Managemen: Engagement Commities:

e Review of ax comphance with the involvemen: of our
-ax specialists in the audit;

e Designing audit procedures 10 \ncorporate
unpredictabilizy over the naure, urmng and exzen: of
oudr asung of expenses,

¢ Procedures relating to the valuation of investrnen:
properties descnbed n the related key audir matier
above; and

¢ _dentifying and testing journal entnes, 1n parucalar
any journal enires posted with unusual account
combinanons and words.

There are inheren: limitatuons in the audit procedures
descrnibed above We are less lhikely 1o become aware of
instances of non-comphance with laws and regulanons
that are not closely relazed o evenig and transacions
reflected in the financal s:atements. Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatermnent due <o fraud 1s higher
shan the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error.,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealmen: by, for
example, forgery or intenional misrepresentations. or
through collusion.

Qur audit tesang might include tesung complete
populations of cerrain transacuons and balances,
possibly using daza audiung techniques. However, 11
typically involves selecting a limited number of items for
testing, rather than tesung complete populatons. We will
often seek 10 target parucular 1zems for tesung based on
thelr size or risk charactensues ‘n other cases, we will
use audi samphng 0 enable us 1o draw a conclusion
abou: the popaulatnon from which the sample 1s selected.

A farther desenpuon of our responsibihties for the
audit of the inancial statements s locared on the "RC's
websize at www.frc.orguk/auditorsresponsibihnes. This
descnphon forms par: of our audiors’ repor:.

Use of this report

Ttus repor:, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of 2art 16 of the Comparnies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, 1im giving
-hese opinions, accep? or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or 10 any other person to whom “his repor:
15 shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent m wriung.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required (o report
to you if, in our opinion:

s we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we require for cur audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

e the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appointed by the members on 31 March 2017 1o audit the
tinancial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016
and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023,

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4114R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard (ESEF RTS). This auditors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESEF RTS.

Sz a\wo(/t@

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londen

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Far the For the:
year ended year ended
31March 2023 31March 2022
£000 £'a0n
54,607 51.536
_a9ay @)
52,666 50.658
(211) 1206)
(6.217) (5.132)

(5,393) {3.909)

(11,821 (10.247)

240 12269,
43,485 52,680
148 7

(15,335) (10,608)

_ {2826) 2075

25,472 44,7541

25,472 44,754

- - - - - __ Note
Revenue

Rental income 5.0
Less direct property expelises 50
Net rental income

Directors’ remuneraion 5.0
Investment advisary fees 80
Genera. and administrative cxpnenses 9.C
Total expenses

Change in fair valuc of invesimens: properies 15.0
Operating profit

Finance income 0.0
Finance exocnse 1no
Change in fair value of interes: rate dervailves 216
Profit before tax

Taxazion 12.0
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share — basic and diluted 13.0

419p 72%p

Al amo.nis reporied in the Conso.idated Statemen: of Comprencnsive Income apove arise from continuing operations.

The noes on pages 84 to 110 are an inlegra. oar: of these consoiidaled financia. sialemen:s



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

M march 023 41 March 2022
£000 '

R Note E0uy

Assets o T - a o
Non-current assets
[nvestmen: proper:y 15.0 953,364 945,237
Otner receivables 170 24,783 23.519
[nrerest rae dertvatives 210 8,129 2131
) - - - N T Tese276 970887
Current assets
Trade and other recoivaiies 17.0 11,260 ‘ 12.865
Cash and cash cquivalents 18.0 35,588 53.337

T o T 46,848 56202
Total assets T B © 1033124 1037.089
Liahbilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables o 19.0 (9.300) (9.492)
Non-current liabilities
Bank and .oan porrowings G0 (361,915)  (352.050)
Total liabilities - T T o T @nas) (351542
Total net assets __' T _ T ~ 661909 §75347
Equity
Share capital 220 6,225 6275
Share premium reserve 730 292,626 297,526
Capita. reducton reserve 240 317,714 322,365
Retained earnings 25.0 45,344 54,331
Total equity - - T B6l909  E75547

260 10906p  110.3Cp

Net assets ber share — basic and diluted

These conso.idated financig! statzcments on pages 80 0 110 were avoroved ny 1ne Board of Dircciors ol Civiias Social [ouasing
PLC and autnorised tor issae and signed on its beaalfl oy

Mo |

Michael Wrobel

Cnalrman and ndependent Non-Executive Direcior
28 lunc 2023

Company INo: 10402528
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capual
snate premium reduction Retained Toial
woe M WS RS YRR
Balance at 1 April 2021 T T T 6228 297463 331140 43570 675198
Profit and tolal comorenensive incomce tor the year - - - 44,754 44754
Snares reissued lrom ircasury 23.C 163 484 - 647
Shares po.ught back in:o Treasury 240 - - {3.259) - (9.259)
Dwidends paid 14.0 - : (34.093) (34.083)
Balance at 51 March 2022 T A5 297626 322365 34331 575547
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 25.472 25472
Snares reiss.ed from reasury 230 - - - - -
Snares bougnt bacg INto reasury 240G - - (4.651) -~ {4.651)
Dividends paid 14.0 - - - (34,459) (34,459)

Balance at 31 March 2023 6225 292626 317714 45344 661909

ITAS SOCLIAL HOUSING

Tne notes on vages 84 "o 110 are an integra par: of (nese consolidated finangial stataments



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

T LY

For the year ended
yearended  51March 2022
31 March 2023 *Restated
I _ o _ Note £000 L:_UUD
Cash flows from opegii;ig activities
Profit for the year before :axanon 25472 44,754
- Change in tair value of investment properties (2.640) {12.259)
- Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives 2.826 {2.675)
- Rent and incentive siraight line adustments 436 397
- Bad deb: expense/(credin) 50 429 {17
Finance income (148) 7)
Finance cxpense 15,335 10,608
Increase in lease incentive receivanle (1,700) (2,611
Decrease/(increase) in trade and olher recervables 1044 (236}
{Decrcasc)/increase in trade and other payaoles (1,725) 551
Cash generated from operations ’ o o T 39,329 39.095
Intercs: received o L ﬂ o 7
Net cash flow generated from operating activities ] . - ] 39477 39102
Investing activities
Improvemen:s and parcaases of invesimen: propersies (4.679) 127.695)
Acquisinon costs (211) {1,640}
Purcnase ol subsidiary - including propery - (13.559)
3a:2 proceeds on sa.¢ of subsidiary  exc..ding property - o - - 2.695

Net cash flow used in investing activities  (4.890) j(im%l

Financing activities

Cosl of snares poughy into reasury 24.0 (4.651) (9.259)
Proceeds from shares reissued (rom treasary 24.0 - 919
Dividends paid :0 equity shareholders (34,576) (33.928)
Interes: ratle derivalive promiam paid 210 (8.841) -
Proceeds from e disposa. of inieres: rate derivauves 210 17

Banx porrowings advanced plaas 70.875 -
Banx norrowings regaid 200 (60,000}

Banx porrowing iss.ie cosis paid {3,148} (1.8G5)
Interest and security fees paid on ban< borrowings and derivaiives ) N {12,012) (8.5903)

Net cash flow used in financing activities (52,336) §§é.663)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17.749) (83.750)
Cash and (Eleequiva]ents at the start of the year - . 1’g 53,337 167097
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18C 35,588 53337

* Cash and cash equivalenils and monies held 1n restncied accounis ancd deposits have been restated as at 31 March 2022 tollowing clanficanon by IFRIC on
classiicaton of lunds with externally imposed restnicitons Flease refer fo details in note 2 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Cwvizas Socia. Housing PLC (tne "Company”) was incorporated 1n Fng:and and Wales under :he Companies Act 2006 as a pub.ic
company limited oy shares on 29 Sepremper 2018 with company number 10462528 under ine name Civitas REIT PLC. wnich was
suhsequenily changed 0 (he axisiing name on 3 October 2015

The address ot the registored office is 5ih Floor. 65 Gresham Strect, Llondon ECZ2V 7NQ Tne Company is regisiered as an
invesimen: company wnder section 833 of the Companies Ac: 2006 1n Eng.and and Wa es and is domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The Company did not pegin trading unti: 18 Novemper 2016 wnen the shares were admitted 10 irading on tne London Siock
Exchange ("LSE").

The Company's Crdinary shares are admited 1o tne Official Lis: of the Financia! Conduct Authority ("FCA’) and raded on
the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company and its supsidiaries
income, rogether wi

e "Groun”) is o provide sharehoiders with an aliraciive .eve. ol
“n e polentia, tor capiial growsn from invesing in a pordolio of social homes.

The financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopied internationa. accounting s:andards and wiin
tne requiremenss of the Companies Ac: 2006 as applicaple (o companies repor.ing ander those standards.

The Gro.ups conso.idaled financia. stazemen:s nave been prepared on a histoneca: cos! basis. az moditied for (ne Group's
inves:nient properies and derivative financia. insirumen:s at fair vaiue inroagh profic or .oss

e financia. information 1s presenied in Pounds Ster'ing whicn is also the funcional currency of e Group. and a.. values arc
rocnded o ine neares: (nousand pounds {(£'C00s), except where olerwise indicated.

Thae Gro.p beneliis from a secure income stream {rom long leases witn the Approved Providers. The Grodp's casn na.ancas as
a: 31 March 2023 wera £35.588.080. of wnich £2949.0C00 was he.d as restricied casn. Detalls of this can be lound in note 180

The Company and 1:s Investmen: Adviser. Civitas Invesimen: Management Limiied ("CIM”™) conin.e 1o wors ¢
Company’s major COUNerparies (o monlior ine posinen On ;
guidance wnere possiole Tne Board of Directors oe.eves tha:

O8SlY Wit U
e ground and. sno..d it oc needed, (o offer assistance and
he Company opera:es a ronus: and defensive ousiness mode.

and 11a: socia. nousing and gpecialis: healthcare are proving 1o pe some of The more reshien: sectors within tne marke:, given
thai ;ney are oased on non-discrellonary pwn.ic secior expendizare and (har demand exceeds supp V.

On 17 Novemper 2022, an exiension was granied tor tne faciity witn HSBC Bans p.c. whicn now expires on 28 Wovemoer 2075,
On 13 Fepruary 2023, e Company closed a new five year :erm deo: faciiiy of E70.875,000 with Deutscae Ban< AG. The faciry

nas neen depioyed o tedeem ne Company's revo.ving credit faclity wiin Lioyds Bank p.c of £6C.00C.00C as we 1 as providing
additiona. igudity. As a resuil, now a__dceb: facilities have fixed or capoed ra.es,

On 1 Decemper 2022, :n1e Company signed a faci.iy wiinanin donal .ender Sunsequent 1o trus, on 21 June Z023. ine
Company receiwved credr approved termrs for an addiuonal £61.0 mi.don fixed fachity pased on a 3-ycar SONIA rate a7 the
dae of draw down +135pos margin witn a ma:.rity daze of 3 August 2028, The eventua. drawdown on e laeility 18 sup et
coriain standard coosing conditions,

Casna f.ow forecas:s nased on severe put 0.aLsip @ downside scenarios have oecn ron, in paridc..ar ne finanaa. performance
of tenants and a red.cion in coniraced ren:. As a: 31 March 2023, (e ren: woud 1ave 1o drop oy aporoximae.y (0% oefore
any of izs .oan covenan:s are nreacned. A the date of approva. of tnis repor.. ine Company nas sofficien: neadroom wiinin its
financia. oan covenanis Tne Company a so benefits from a sec.wre income sireamr from eases witn .ong weigated average
Lnexpired e _cases As a resu’s the Direcors neleve Na: e Growp is we.l placed 0 manage s financing and ster
n.siness ns<s and at he Growp wil rematn vianle, conin.ing o operate and neel its lapluies as iney fa.. due

Tne Company's aric.es of association inc ide a requiremens for 1ne Board 1o oronose an ordinary reso.wion a:thc ann.a
genera. meeling folowing ne fifin anniversary from the intia. n.o.c offering of ine Company for ¢ Company 10 coninue
n i3 curren: form ¢ Coninuation Reso...iion). Tms vole was passed in Scptempear 2022 so e Company wi.. conlinue its
DLSINGSS as presenty consiilied and wi. progose 1ne same reso..lon a: ne AGM 0 Scplemper 2027 and every fifin ann.a.
genera. meeing mereafer




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

On 9 May 2023, an annoJncement was made 1o the market for an ali-casn offer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (CSH) from
Waliness Unity Limiied. a whol.y owned indirect sapsidiary ot CK Assets Holdings Limited {CKA). The offer became
anconditicna: on 23 June 2023, The Croups existing commited debt facilines coniain a standard change of conwrol ¢lause
which has now heen riggered due o the offer pecoming uncondizionat This could resu’t in ine existing commiited

debr faclitics peing withdrawn. Furthermore, 1ne Directors do not have visibi.ity of the post comp.etion funding for the

Group and Company a: ‘his time. The Directors note the delailed ntentions siatement inciuded witnin the announcement

on 9 May 2023 which siates that CKA does not envisage making any changes 1o the management leam not any disrupiion

10 any counterpariies or to the underiying enan:s. However, the conditions ou.ined above indicaic a maleria’ unceriainty
wnich may cast significant doubt upon the Group's and Company’s abiity 1o continue as a going concern. The Independent
Auditors Report inc.uded within the Annua. Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2623 also higaligihits this material
Lncer:ainmy. Therefore. notwithstanding the marerial uncertainty arising trom ne offer from CKA. ine Directors are satisfied that
ine going concern basis remains appropriate for tne preparation of the financial statements. The financia. si.atemenis do not
incude the ad'ustmenss that would result if tne Group and the Company were unap_e (o continue as a going concern

The foliowing new s.andards are now effcctive and have been adopied for the year ended 31 Marcn 2023,

e IFRIC Agenda Item: Fo.lowing ciarifica:ion by IFRIC on e classifica:ion of monies held in restricied accounts. monics
1na: are resiricied oy use only are classified a: 31 March 2023 as Casn and cash equivaients . As deiailed in noie 24, the
comparative palances have been restated where applicaole to reflect this change in classification.

e IFRIC Agenda Item: In Oc ober 20722 the IFRIC issted an agenda decision in respect of Tessor torgiveness of icass
payments (IFRS 9 and IFRS 18) {tne IFRIC Decision on Concessions’) This conc.uded mat losses incurred on graning
recrospective rent concessions snoJ.d be charged 10 the income statement on the date @at ine lega. rights ¢ income are
conceded (i.e immediale recognition in full rainer than smoothed over the life of the lease). The clarification nas not had a
imaterial impac: on the financial siatemenits.

e Amendments to IFRS 3 '‘Business Combinations’ (effective for periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2022) - gives
clarification on ine recogniiion of contingen® llaniilies a: acquisizion and c.arities that contungent asse:s should not be
recognised at Tne acquisition date. The amendmen:s have no: had a significan: impact on (ne preparatuoen of tne tinancial
glaemenss.

¢ Amendments to 1AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (etfective for periods beginning on or
aftor 1 January 2022y gives c.anification on cos:s 'o inc.ade in estimazing the cost of fuifiling a contract lor tae purposc of
assessing wheiner fha: coniract i onerous. The amendmrents have not had a significan: impac: on the preparauen of (e
financia: s:aemen:s.

e Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effeciive for periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2022) - gives
c:arificazion on :he fees an eniiy includes when assessing whether the ternms of a new or modified financia, .taoLty are
s.psiania.ly different from the terms of the original liapility The amendmen:s have not had a significant impac: on e
nreparaion of the financial stateman:s.

In March 2022, ihe IFRS Tnierpretations Commitice { TFRIC ) finalised a decision on ne classification of monies neld in restricied
accounss, such “hat menics tha: are resiricied oy use only, are ciassitied at 31 March 2023 as Cash and cash cquivalents’

Tne Group no.ds resirialed cash for tenani deposits and retention monies in relation (o deferred payments sub’ect to
achievement of cerramn condisions. olner retentions and casn segregated o fund repair. mainienance and improvement wor<s
10 bring ‘he properties 4p ‘o satisfaclory standards for tne Group and ne tenanis.

As a result ol the [FRIC decision. the Groap has revisized is poicy and inciudes these monics within tne classification ‘cash
and cash equivaien!s” Tae adjLsumen: has no impact on the classification of 1ne net asseis of the Group on the Staiemen:
of Financial Pasizion. nowever ihe movements on tncse baiances are now reporied in the Statement of Cashl.ows and
comparative figures nave been restated

Corrparative figurcs for cash and cash egaivalen:s have increased by £4.362.000 (31 March 2021 £3.278.000). Tnis nas
resulied in an increase (o the comparative figare tor cash genera:ed Irom operatons py £1.613.000 concerning movements
on deposit ba:ances and an increase o 1he net casn llow used in investing activities of £529.000 concerning movements on
relention monies.

The Group has not presented revised ba ance sheots as at 1 April 2020 within the {inancia. s:atemenss, in accordance with TAS 1
Presentazion of Financia. S:aicments and TAS 8 Accouning Policies. Changes 1in Accounting Esiimates and Brrors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The following table shows the impact of these adjustments in the prior year

31 March anz2

31 Maich 2022 Restatement Restated
I . _ _ o £'000 £000 R E'CO0
Group casmﬁ statement (extract) %
Net casn flow genecrated front operating activities 37189 1513 39103
Net casa flow used in investng aciivities (39.67C)  (829) __ (40199)
Cash and cash equivalents at the star: ¢t the vear 163,819 3278 187.697
Casn and casn egulvalents at the end of the year 48,975 1352 53337 '
Nct dearease in casn and cash equivalenis 7 (5{1.84@ 1.084 (33.760)

The foliowing are new standards. iInerprezations and amendments. which are noi yer effective and nave not oegn eary |
adopied in :ais financia. informanon, that wil, or may nave an etlect on (ne Group's futare financial siatemen:s:
« Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' (efiective for periods beginning on or afzer 1 January Z023) - clarify now companies

acooun: for deferred ax on iransactions s.on as easces and decommissioning ool1gations. The amendments are nol
expeciad (o have a significan: immpact on ine preparation of the financia. staiemenss,

s Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (cffccive for periods neginning on or after ! January
2023)  are intcnded 1o heip eniines in deciding which accoaniang po.icies o disclose in tneir inancia: sitaiements 7Nc
amendmen:s are no: expecied 0 have a significant impac: on e preparation of the financial stTatemen:s

e Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ {cifcciive for periods
peqinning on or atter 1 Jan.ary 2023)  inrroduce 1ne detinimon of an accounung estima:e and inciaide omner amendmen's
10 help entnes disting .ish changes in accounung estimates from changes in accosning poicies Tne amendmeants are
nol exsecied 1o nave a significan: impac: on tne preparaiion of the financia. salements.

* Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective for periods peginnng on or alier | January 2024)

clarnfy tnasiani s are ciassificd as eizher curron: or non-currens. depending on (ne rign:s na: cxis: a: the end of the

reparing pertod and noi expectations of or aciua. even's afler 1he reponing date Thg amendments a so give c.arilicanon
10 e dehinition of seiremren: of a 1api.iy. Tne amendmen:s are not expected (0 have a signilican: impac: on ne
oroparation of ne financia: statemen:s,

[FRS 8 Operanng 3cgmen:s req.ulres operating segmen's 1o ne identified on 11e oasis of interna. {inancia. repor:s anc.:
componen:s of e Groun 1nar ars reg..ary reviewed oy ine Chiet Goerating Decision Max<er, whicn in ine Gro.ds casc s

de egated -5 :he Tnvesimen: Adviser who nas formed an Execullve Tealr. in order [0 a..ocale 12s0.4rCes 1o (he segments and 1o
assess nelr oerformance.

Tag Interna. finanaia reporis recewved oy ne Invesimen: Adviser's Cxec.iive Team contaln hnancia information ata Group
ave as a wao.c and Thers are No reconcLIng Hems DeTWECT (e res. s coniained in inese repor:s and 1ne amo.unis reporied
N 1N¢ conse idaed financia; siaiemen's,

The Direciors consider The Growp's propersy por.fo.uo represcnis a conerent and diversified pordoro wiin sumlar economic
cnaracierns:ics and. as a res.w.t. Jhe wno.e pordo.io of properiies represents a sing.c operaiung segmen.. [n ine view of 1ne
Direciors inere is according.y ONc reporido.e segimen: wnder ine provisions of IFRS 8.

A..of :ne Growp's properies arc npased in tne JK Geograpaica. informasion is provided o ens.re comp.iance wiil e
diversification reqgu.iremrents of e Company. other tnan :1is no geograpiica gro.ping 1s contamned in any of the interna.
financia. repor:s provided "o :ne Inves men: Adviser's Execcive Team and. (nerefore. no geograpiaica. segmenia. ana.jsis 1s
required oy IFRS 8

The Direciors no: e regaremen's in IFRS 8 Paragrapn 34 periaming o enaties ander common contro. and confirm na:

P01 Ascand Tlome 30 .iions and Q.ua.izas Housing (as .essees of 1ne Company's invesimen: rea. es:ae) arc .nder common
conirol of The Soma. Howsing Famiy CIC ©TSHFY) The percentage and som fota. of 1ae Company's ann.a. contracied rent ro..
perlaining ;o these couneroariies as if iney were considered 0 pe a sing.e cusiomer can 2e found in nole 286 and on page 9
of :ne Ann La. Repor:.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

In the application of the Group's accouniing policies. which are descriped in note 4.0. the Directors are required "o make
judgements. estimates and assumpions about ine carrying amournits ot assets and .Japi.ities that are not readily apparen:
from: otner sources. The judgemensts, esiimates and associated assump:ions that have a significani risk of causing a maierial
adjustmens: 1o tae carrying amounts of assets and .abpilines within the financia. year are oui.ined below:

The Group uses the valuaiion carried ou: oy its independent valler as the fair val.ie of its property portfolio. The valaarion is

based upon assumplions including fusure rental income and the appropriate discoun: rate. The valuers a so mace reference (o

marke: evidence of transacrion prices for similar properties. Further informaiion is provided in note 15.0.

The Group's properiies nave becn independently va'ted py Jones Lang LaSalie Limited (JLL” or the "Va:uer”) in accordance
with the current Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ Valuation — Global Standards. incorporating the IVS. and the RICS
Va.uaiion Giooal Srandards 2017 UK national supplement (the RICS "Red Book”™). JLL is a well recognised protessional firm
within social housing valuation and has sufficien: curren: ioca. and naional snowledge of both social housing generaliy and
Specia.ist Supported Housing ("SSH” and nas the skills and inderstanding (o wndertake the vaiuations compe:ently.

With respect 1o tne Group's consolhidated financial statemen:s. invesimen: propcer:ies are va.wed at their fair value at each
ba:ance shee? date in accordance wizn [FRS 13. Fair value measuremen:s shou.d oe presented and classified using a fair val.e
hierarchy :hat reflects the significance of the inputs used in 1ne measurements. accerding 1o the following ‘evels:

Level 1 Unad;Jsred. quoted prices for identical asscts and .abi.tlies in active {typically quoted) marke's

Level 2 [npuis other than gquoted prices inc.uded within Leve. 1 (nat are observab.c [or (e assel or labilty. eitacr directly
{that is. as prices) or indirecy (that 1s. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inpu:s for the asset or liability Tnat are no: nased on observap.e market data (unooservab.e inpus). Vaiucis ine
Diractors’ beg: sstimace, nased on advice from relevan: xnow. edgeao e experis. Lse of recognised valdation
technigues and a determination of which assumptions shou.d be applied in valuing such assets and wiih
particular focus on the specitic atrnouies of ine invesmens 1nemsa.ves.

Given the pesooxe na.dre of eaca of ine Croup's invesiments. (ne pariic.lar requiremenss of due diligence and financial
coniTib.ation obiained from the vendors iogeincr with the recen: emergence of SSH. all of 1ne Group's invesimean: propertics

are inc uded in Leve! 3

The fair vaiue of Group's interes: rale derivatives s recorded in the Grouwp Statement of Financia: Position and is determined
by 1he regpeciive counierparies. The counierpariias use a namper of assumptions in determining the fair valies. incl.ding
csiimasions over falure interes® rates and future casna fows using onservaple yie.d curves.

B [ ! 5 : .o

The Group acquires suosidiaries that own invesiment properties A! the time of acquisinon. 1ae Group considers wnctaer cach
acqaisiion Iepresents e acguisition ol a nusiness or the acquisition of an asset Management considers the substance of The
assers and activiiics of the agquired entity in determining whetner the acquisiiion represenis tne acquisizion of a business.

Tae Group accounts for an acquisition as a husiness combination whcre an integraed set of activitics is acquired in addition
to the proper.y. Where such acquisitions are not judged to pe ihe acquisizion of a pusinass. they are not reated as business
comroinaiions. Rather. the cost 1o acquire the corpora:e entity 15 al ocated between :ne idenifiable agsets and liabilizies of 1he
entity pased apon taelr relative fair vaiues ar tne acguisrion date. Accordingly. no goodwil. or additiona: deferred tax arises.

There werc ne ¢orporaice acqguisitions made in the year

During :ne previods year, 2ae Group encered n:o a iransaction ‘o acqaire the freehcld properies operated by CPI Care Limited
Upon the acquisition of tne company: the properties were ransferred inio o:ner group companics and the company acguired.
a.ong wih 1's assoclazed operations. was so.d (o Tnvive Corundam Bidco Limited. Furiher dezalis are snown in note 15.0 1o the
financia. sialemenis.

The acquited companies mel ‘he definizion of a pusiness .nder IFRS 3, and e transaction was (nereforc recorded as a

business combina:ion.

Becaase the Group acquired he company with the inten: o sell the business. managemen: applied the shors-cut meinod
under IFRS 5 - Subsidiaries acguired with a view o resa.e. Under this mehod. tne subsidiary is recorded al tair valle ‘ess cos'g
to scll. and ihere is no requiremen: o fair value the supsidiary’s individual asses and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group has acql.ired invesimen: properiieg 1ha: arc subjec: o commercial properly leases with Approved Providers. Tne
Grouwp nas deermined. based on an eva.uation of the tcrms and conditions of the arrangements, particu.ariy the duration
of 1ne leasc 1eTms and minimam .ease paymen:s. that it remaing all the significant ris<s and rewards of ownership of these
oroperies and so accounts for the .eases as operating .cascs

Civitas Social Housing PLC is a Reai Estate Invesiment Trust (REIT). The UK REIT regime app.ies when entites meet certain
condiiions with the effect tha: the income profits and capital gains of e qualifying properiy rental business are exemp! from
tax. Within these condilions art least 9C% of the Group's proper:y income mus: be distribaied as dividends (o sharenoiders and
tne Group mas: ens.Lre (1at the propery renia: business represen:s more than 75% of total profits and assets

Fo.lowing the comp.etion of 1e offer, there is a level of uncertainty tha: the Group will remain in the REIT regime.

TAae prncipal accounting poiicies applied in i1e preparation of the consolidated financiai s:atements arc sei out below. The
po.icies have been consisiently applicd o a.l periods presented. unless oiherwise siated

Thne conso.idaied financial statemen:s comprige the financia information of the Group as at tne year end date

Supsidiarics arc gl eniities over waien 1ae Grodp nas control The Group controls an endity when the Group 1s exposed 10,

or nas rign:s 1o, variap.e retarns from its involverrent with :he eniy and has ae aoility "o affecr those retiurns 1arodgn 1s
power o direc: the activities of the en:ity Al inra-group ransacions. balances incommre and expenses are eliminated on
consolidaion The financia. informastion of the suonsidiaries 1s inciuded in the consolidated financaial statements from ne date
that conro! commences unt, tne date (hat conrn. ceases,

If an equity interest in a suosidiary is transferred out a conrolling interes: conin.des ‘o be held alier :ne ‘ransfer taen the
cnangs In ownersnip interes: is acco.wnted for as an equily ransacion.

Accounting oolicics of Tne sapsidianes are consisient with the oolicles adopred oy ne Company.

Invesimen: oroperty, wnich is proper:y ne.d 0 earn ren:a.s and/or for capiia. anpreciation. is initial y meas.red at cos.. teing
-ne fair vaiue of the consideraion given. incl.ding expendizire tnatis direcly atrioutapie 10 the acquisition of (ne invesimen:
oroperty Afler inria. recognition, invesmen: property 1s stated at iis lalr va.ie al the pa.ance sneei dale Gaing and osses
arising from changes in :he tair vai.e of invesimen: property arc Inc..dad in profit or Loss for ine penod in waicn tney arise in
ine Consoldated Siaemen: ot Comprencnsive Income.

J.nsaqaen! eXgenditare is capitaised only when it s pronao.e s fanire cconomic nenefits are associaled witn ne expendiure
Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as inc.rred Overneads and operaing expenses are no: capita.ised.

An Invesimen: properyy is derecognised ..pon disposa. or w1en 1@ INVesTmen: propertly 18 permancn.y withdrawn from use
and no f.iure economic oenefits are exoecied from e disposa. Any gain or .0ss arising on derccognizion of :ne proper.y
tcaiculated as ine difference petwaen e ne: disposa. proceeds and ne carrying amoan: of 1ne asscr) is incarred in profis or
K88 1IN 18 DENg in wnlgh Tac property 1§ derecognised.

Significan: acco.ning ..dgemenis eslimates and ass.mplons made lor (ne va..ation of invesimen: properies are discussed
ir noe 3.1,

l.eases are c.assifled as finance eases whenever jne terms of (ne lease iransfer siostania.y a.. 1ne ris<s and rewards of
oWNers1ip 1o ne essec. Al olner .eases are c.assibied as operating (cases.

Tne Company nas determinad 1nat it relains a.. sne significans ris<s and rewards of ownersnip of 1ne progeries and accoun:e
for (ne CONirac's as operaing .cascs as discussed in note 34

Properies .eased o. wnder operaung .eases are inc.uded in invesimen: oroperly In ine Consolidaicd 5:ateren: of Financia.
Position Renia. income trom operaing .cases i recognised on a siraigal Jine pasis over (ne erm of 1ne re.evan' eases

Lease Inconiive coss are recognised as an assel and amertised over ine fe of 'ne ease



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Grolp classifies its financial assets in tne fol.owing measurement categorics:

e 08e 0 be measured subscguenty at fair value (either through otaer comprechensive Income or through profit or oss) and
e thoge (0 be measdred at amoniscd cost,

The c.assification depends on the entity's business mode. for managing the financial asscts and the contractaal ierms
of the cash Tlows. For assets meas.red a: fair value, gains and losses wil either be recorded in prolit or ioss or other
comprehensive income.

Trade and oiner receivabies arc amounts due in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or .ess.
shey are classified as current assets. If not. they are prescnted as nor current asseis,

Trade receivanles are recognised initially at fair valuc and s.ibsequen:ly are measured at amortised cos: using the effecnive
interest method, less impalrment provision. The Group holds the rade recelvables with the objective (o colleat the coniractual
cash flows.

The Group's financial assels are sanject 10 tne expecied credit loss model

For irade receivabies, the Group applies the simp.ified approach permitted by [FRS 9. whnich requires expected .ieime .oss
10 be recogniged from inital recognition of tne receivapies.

The expecied loss rates are pased on the paymen: profiles of lease income over a period ol up to 12 mon:ns pcfore 31 March
2023 or 1 April 2022, respectively. and he corresponding hisiorical credit ‘losses cxpericnced wimnin this period. The historica.
.0ss ra‘es are ad;asied Lo retlect carrent and forward-looking information on macroeconoemic factors afleciing ihe liability

of 1ne tenanis o setie tne receivan.e Saen forward-looking mnformasion would inciude changes in cconomia, regdlatory.
tecnnological and environmental tac:ors (s..oh as indusry outlock. GDE employment and poiitics): cxterna. markat indicaiors:
and lenant base.

Based on (ng assessimen: and the specific worg (na: is underway around col.ecuon of aged arrears, a provision of
7459000 (2022: F239.000) nas peen ref.ected in the annua. resgis

Trade recelvables are wntten off waen hcre is no reaseonab.e expeciation of recovery

[ndicarors that there is no reasonah.e expeciauon of recovery incoude, among others, 1he propabiity of insoivency or
significan: fimancal diflica’.ies of (e debior Impaired depts are derecognised when (ney are assessed as uncodecine

Casn and casn equiva.ants inciude cash in hand, cash held by lawyers and liguidity funds with a term ot no more than three
monihs t1a: are readily converiible io a known amo.nt of cash and which are subec: 10 an insignificant fsx of changes 1n value

Resiricied casa represenis amrauanis held tor specific commitments. tenan: deposiis and reiention moneay held oy ‘awyers in
re.azion to deferred paymen:s sunjec 1o achievemen: of ceriain conditions. other retentions and cash segregated o fund

repairn ramtenance and improvement worss to oring ‘ne properies Lp o satisfactory standards for tne Group and the tenans.

Derivailve linancia. instruments, waich comprisce interes: rate caps and swaps for hedging purpaoses. are initally recognisad
a: tair value a1 acquistiion and are subsegacnily measured a: tair va.ue. oeing e cstimated amoun: that the Croup would
receive or pay ‘o sell or transfer the agreement a: the perdod end daie, :axing ino account CLIren: INferes! ralc expecialions
and tne curren: credi: raing of the .ender and Iis counterparties. The instramen: may ne an asset or a iabiiity The gain or (oss
at each fair value remeasurcmen: date is recognised in the Group's Consolidaied Statement of Comprencnsive Income.

Derivatuive financial instruments are derecognisad wnen the nghis o receive cash tlows from (ne agreemen: have cxoired
or nave been ransferred. and the Group nas ransfcrred subsiantialy all the risks and rewards of ownersnip The difference
belween fne carrying amownt and consideration received is recngnised as a gain or loss in the Group's Conso.idaied
Siatemeni of Comprenensive Income

The Group .ses valuaiion jecnnigaes that are appropriate in the circunmstances and tfor whica safficient data s availaoie
10 measure fair value, maximising the use ol relevant observabie inpuis and minimising :he ase of unobservabie inpus
signifizant 1o the fair valic measuremen: as a woole

Orher than derivative financia. insiraments wnaich arc not designated as hedging insirumenss, the Growp does not nave any
asscts neld for rading ner does it voluniarily c.assify any financia’ assets as peing at fair va.uc througa profic or oss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group recognises a financia. hapility when it firs: becomes a party (o (ne conractial righis and oplagaions in the contract

Al financial aabilities are iniilaily recogmsed at fair value. minus (in the case of a financial .iability that is not at fair vaiuec
through profit or oss) iransaction cosis (ha: are directly altnbutan.a 1o issuing the financial Jability Financial [ianiites are
supsequenty measured at amortised cost, wnless the Group opied "0 measure a lapi.ny a: fair va.ue through profit or {oss

A linancia, liabiaty is deracognised wnen tne onligation under the ilapiiny is discharged. cancelied or expires.

Trade and oiaer payables are ciassified as current liabiates if paymen: is dwe within one year or less. If not. they are presented
as non-current .iapiities. Trade and other payables are recognised initially av tneir fair value and subseqguenty meas.dred at
amoriscd cost until seted. The fair val.e of a non-interes: bearing Hability is its discounted repaymen: amoun:, If tne duc
dae of ;he lfability is .ess than one year disco.niing is omited.

AL, pank and other porrowings are inilailly recogniscd at [air val.e .ess directiy attrinuiaple ransaciion costs, After inrial
recogniion. all nank and other borrowings are measured ar amorised cosi. using ine effective interes: method Any
a:ripuian e rransaciion coss relatng o the issuc of the bank porrowings are amoriised through the Grodp's Siatement of
Comprchensive [ncome over the iife of ine deot instramen: on a straight-line nasis

Borrowings arc removed from 1ne consolidaied siatement of financial posinon when e onligation specitied in the coniract
is discharged. cance.ied or cxpired. Tne difference beiween ne carrying amo.n: of a financial dabi.ity that has oecn
extinguished and tne consideration paid 18 recognised in orofit or loss as a finance cost.

Provisions are recagnised when e Grocp nas a presen: oblgalion {egal or consiraciivel as a resu. of a past event. it is
propap.c ma: the Group will e required o setle (nat odigasion and a reliaole estimaic can pe made of 1ne amoun: of ine
on.igation.

The amoun: recognised as a provision 1s the pest esiimate of the consideration reguared (o seit
paance sheel daic, ;akiNg IN'0 AaCCOLI! T1e £1sKS and .nceriainies sirro.nding ne opnligation.

o present on.igasion at

Taxa.ion on 'ne profir or oss for 11e geriod not exermp. ander JK REIT regl.anons is comprised of curren: and deferred jax. Tax
is recogniscd in 1n¢ Consolidaied Siatemen: of Comprahensive [Ncome axceps 10 e exlent (nat it relaes [0 1lems recagnised
as a direc: movemen: in equity. in wnich case It is recognised as a direc: movenen: in eq.ity Cutren: tax is expecied (ax
vayao.e nn any non-REIT ‘axan e income for 1ne period. Jsing tax raes enacied or suos:aniively enacied al ine pa.ance snee!
daze, and any ad! usimen: 10 tax payab € In respea of provio.s periods.

The cuITon: lax charge 1s ca.cu aed on prohis arising in wne period and in accordance witn .egis.aion waicn nag pecn
enacied or s.ostania. y enacred al g ba'ance snecet date

Dcferred tax is provided on temporary diffcrences petween (¢ carrying amouan:s of assers and 1apiities for inancia.
renoring purnoses and ne amoun's wsed for ;axation o .rposes The amoun: of delerred tax that {3 provided is pased on
g expecied manner of rea.isation or gel.cmeant of e carrying amoan: of assets and .lapuities. .sing ax rates gnacied or
s.nglandive.y enacied ar tne pa.ance snee: dae

The Gro.ps oo ectives wnen manading capia. are 10 safeguard e Gro.o's abiy 1o conlin.e as a gomng <oncern in order 10
provide re:.rns for snareno.ders and o nrainialn an ooima. capiia. sir.ciare (o reduce e cos: of capral

Capil:a. asse's comprise e fo owing:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

0o £000
Proceeds from ne 1ss.e of Ordinary snares and rezained earnings 661,909 575.547
Ban< and oan norrowings 361,915 382.05G

Total 1023824 1027537




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Dircctors may Jsc gearing 1o enhance equity resurns. The level of borrowing will be on a pruden: pasis for ine assel clasg
and wii seek 0 achieve a low ¢ogt ot tunds, whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying security requiremen:s and the
stractdre of the Group.

The Group may, foillowing a decision of 1ne Board, raisc deht from banxss and/or “he capital marxets and tho aggregate
porrowings of the Group will always pe subject 1o an anso L e maximam, calctlated at the time of drawdown, ol below 40% of
tne Gross Asser Value on a fuly invested basis.

Dividends arc inc.uded in :he financial statements in the year in wnich they are paid.

REenrtal income from invasimen: property is recognised on a siraight-line basis over (ne term of ongoing leases and is snown
gross of any UK income tax. Leasc incentives are spread evenly over the .ease term. Losses Inc.urred on granting rerrospecive
renl concessions are charged (o the income statemen: on ine dae that the ega’ righ's ‘o incomce are conceded (i.e immediate
recognition in full rather than smoothed over the life of the .ease).

Insurance recharges and other similar receiots are recognised under [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contrac:s wiin cusiomers’. and are
inc.uaded in net renta. and proper.y income gross of 1the related cosis as the Directors consider the Group acts as principa. in
“his respect.

Finance income is recognised as interes:, and is accrucd on cash and cash equivaient palances he.d by tac Groupn.

Finance costs consis: of interest and oiner cosis Tha: the Group Incurs in connection wiih bang and other porrowings Bang
in:cres: and oank cnarges are recognised on an accruals pasis. Borrowing iransaction cosis are amorsised using ine eftective
ineres: rate.

A expenses. inciuding Invesiment Advisory tees, are recognized in tne Consolidaied Siaemreni ol Comprenensive [Income on
an acar.ials pasis,

Tng costs of 1s3sing or reacqguIring equity MSIramenis (oer taan tn a .48iness comoinaion! are accounted lor as a deducnon
from equity.

Exceptional items 1¢ ate 10 amo.n:s whicn do no? normaliy occur in the norma' course of pusiness.

Fxceptiona! protessiona. costs for 'wo ma, or pro ccis nave been disciosed separately. Thesc re.ate [0 cosis associaled with the
offer for the parcnase of the enure snare capna. of e Company oy a subsidiary of CK Asse: Hoidings Limited (CKA) and cosis
assocrated witn a planned bond issuc which was nposiponed,

The cosis, Including directiy azributaoie transactions costs. of purehasing The Company's own shares (0 pe ne.d in treasury
arc ded.aied from equity and the cosis are shown in 11e Conso.idated Statement of Changces in Fauity Conswderanuon
received. net ol iransaction coss, tor the resa.e of these shares is also ingluded in equity Whilst 1he Company holds shares in
reasury, the ca.cu.ations for net assel value and earnings per snare arc adjusied Lo exel.de ese shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

For the For the:

year ended yeal ended

31 March ?02'5 31March gUZZ

_ . . 000 . E000

Rcm;hncome from irlvesﬁl‘.onI proper:yﬂ 53,531 51.038
Reni straight line ad,usiments 586 529
Lease incentive amortisation (1,022) (926)
Rechargcan'e costs received 7 1,512 995
Rental income ' ' o ) ) T 54607 31655

Less direct property expenses

Insurance and service charge cos:s (1.512) {935}
Bad debo: B 7 (429) 17
Direct property expenses ) ) __“(IE T (9%
Net rental income ’ o T i - sz.ég T 5C.e88

Rechargeao’e costs received reorosent insurance and service cnarge cosis paid oy the Group and recnarged 0 the
Aporoved Providers and arc acco.nted for under IFRS 15 Revenue from coniracis win cusomers’

As per the lease agreemen:s wiih the Group and Approved Providers, the Approved Providers are responsible for the
seremean: of all present and futire rates, [axes and oTner IMposiions payan.e in resocct ol ine property. As a resuls no fuiriner
direc: propery cxpenses were tncurred.

Forthe For the:

year ended year ended

31March 2023 3i March z022

JE— - - ~ . £ 000 E Quiy

Directors’ lees 194 190
Cmp.oyers Nationa. Insarance Coniriputions 17

Total 2n

The Direciors are remunerazed for mneir gervices in accordance wiln (ne Remuneranon Po.icy wnch sois parameers withim
wnicn Direciors remuneraiion may be sei. The Remuneration Poucy 1s approved oy snareholders.

Discrosred required oy (he Companies Act 2005 on Direciors’ rem_neraion, ine. .ding salaries, $1are oplions, gension
conirin.iions and pension enunemen: and nose specified oy e lusting Ries of ine Financia Conduct A.cnoriy are inc .ded
on pages 54 0 57 in 1ne Remuneration Repor: and form par: of “aesc Financia. Statemen:s

R

Tac Cro.p nad no emp oyees daring he year (2022 ni ) oi1er inan ne Direciors




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued
B o T T - i For the N 7;‘;[ the
year ended yedr ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
— - - . . .. gO00  F000
Advisory icc 6,206 5132
Disbursemen:s n
Total ) 6,217 5,132

Civizas Inves:men: Management Limited (‘'CIM") 15 1nc appoinied Investment Adviser of the Company. Under the current

[nvesiment Managemen! Agreemens:, the Advisory Fee shall pe an amoun: calculaied in respect of each quarter, in cach

case based upon the Net Assel Valde mosi recentiy anncunced to the market at the reievan: time (as ad:usled for issues or

rep.archases of shares 1in the period between the date of such announcement and Lne date of the relevant calcu'ation), on the

fol.owing basis:

a) on tha: part of the Net Asset Valae up 0 and including £250.000.00C. an amount equal 10 1% of such part of the Net Asset Value:

b} on :na: part of :he Net Assel Value over £250,000.000 and up to and including £8C00,0C0.0CC. an amo.n: egua. 10 0.9% of sucn
part ol the Net Asset Value;

€) on:na: part of :ne Net Assel Va.ue over £506,000.000 and up o and mcluding £1.000.600.000, an amount equa. 0 8% of
sucna par: of the Net Asse: Va. e

d) on that part of 1ae Net Asset Valde over £1,00C,6C0,0C0, an amount eqaa. 10 0 7% of such part of the Net Asset Vaue.

The appoinimen: of the [nvestmen: Adviser shall continue in force an.ess and uniil termmated by cither party giving o the
oiner nos less than 12 months writen netice. such notice not o expire earlier than 30 May ZC25.

year ended year ended

31 Marchﬂ?{[))gg 3 Marchﬂ?ggﬁ

Leaal and pro-ressiona. lees ) - o - _1,556 1459
Fxcepiiona.: professiona. costs 1,816 -
Adminisirazion foos 1,044 1.037
Cons. ancy fees 143 135
ALdil fees 441 340G
ADorive cos:s 48 196
Va.zation fees 96 100
Depositary fees 71 71
Granis and donations 65 25
Insurance 97 84
Markeling 225 343
Regu.atory foes 21 25
Sandry expenses 76 9z
Total T T - o ~ 5393 3909

Aboriive cos:s represent .egal and professional fces incurred in retation to the acguinimon of investmaont oroperues and
proposed snarg issuces tnat were considered put sapsequen:ly aborted.

General and adminisirative expenses for the curren: year conlain excepional professiona. cosis of £1.815.000 (2022: EN1i) These
COSIS periain o two sirategic pro‘ecis the Company nhas peen eva.uaiing and comprise of £1.294.0C0 (2022: £ni.) assoclated with
1ae olfer for tne purchase of (ne entire share capila. of the Company oy a s.bsidiary of CK Asse: [To.dings Limited (CKA) and
F572.000 (2072 £NL) associated with a planned bond iss.e which was postponed

For the For the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Croup nas ontamed he following services trom the Groupo's auditors and (ncir associates:

Far the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
— - - £000 __ £000
Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
Auidii of the Group's financial siatements ) ) 358 296
Total fees payable for audit services 358 296
Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for other services:
Audil reiated services - review of the hail year financial s:tatements 83

Qther services- -

Total fees payable to the Group’'s auditors and their associates 441
T Includes £64.000 (2022 £18 00O0) cost i relanon to the previous veal aucit
2 This amount was recognised within exceptional legal anhd professional costs 1n the year ended 31 Maich 2022
For the For the
year ended vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
— - . - _ D) B £000_
Interest and dividends received on guidicy funds 148 4
Bank in:eres: received - 3
Total 148 7
rorthe For the
vear ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
. . R - Iy E—
Banx charges 8 a
Increst paid and payaole on nan< oorrowings and denvaiives 12,151 8957
Amorisation of .can iss.e cos's 1,869 1.653
Cos:s ol ear.y repaymen: of deo: 1271
leran sy 36 42
Total 15,335 10,508

D.ring e year e Loyds Bank p.o FaG.085.000 revo.ving credis fach.ily was repajd. Cosis of eary repaymen: of dep: inc.ade
orea< coss and e write off of e remaming Lnamorised 0an 1ss.e Ccosis.

As a JK REIT, ine CGroup is exemd: fromr corporation tax on :he profits and gains from its oropery Invesimeon: 0.siness.
provided it mee:s cerain conditions as se: 0. 1IN :he JK REIT reg.a.ations. For the curren: year ended 31 Marcn 2023, the Gro.p
did no: nave any non-qualifying orofiis and according v miere1s no wax cnarge in e year Il inere were any non-q.a.lying
wrofiis and gams. ticse wo..d 0C sL0 €07 10 cornoration ax

Deferred tax nas not ngen recognised on :emoorary differences rg.ating 0 (ne properly renta. pousiness. No deferred ax asse:
nas peen recognised in respec: of (ne wunutinsed residua. current year .osses as it is not andicipazed na: suilicien: residua.
orofizs wil. pe generaed in ine [uo.are. In the event tna: Civizas propery porifo1e was o pe so.d at va..ation. any gains
rea.sed on sacn disnosa s May na s.0ec intaxalion in e JK Genera.y. disposals oy a REIT of asseis ne.d [or ine purpose

of a propeny renta. pusiness sho..d ne exerp: from UK corporation :ax Tne Direcors do net pe.leve 1nak any Dropcries
witnin tne Civitas provery porifoan mee: 1ne conditions for asse:s noxd as par: of e Droperty renia. pusinass DeIng s.p ect 1o
corporation tax on disposa. According .y if ine Civitas property gorfolo was (o oe soud at va_sation. ine Direciors asimae 1na:
No corgorainon ax daoity wo..d arise on 1hat sa.e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Foliowing e completion of the offer, there is a leval of uncertainty hat the Growp wil: remain in the RETT regime.

Corporaiion 1ax charge for the year

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
ENO0

For the

year ended
31 Martch 2022
£000

Group
Frofit beiore taxalion
JK corporation ax rate

Tneoretical :ax at JK corporation 1ay raze

Eltects of:

Change 1n va..e ol exempl invesimen: proper:ies
Lxemp: REIT income

Amotns not deduciple for jax purpose

Jnatiised residual current year tax losscs

Tatat T

For the

year ended

31 March 2023
. E'UQO

23472

19%
4,840

(502}
(6,019}

1,081
600

For the

year ended
31 Maich 2022
_.Eooa

oM
19%
8503

(2331
(5.598)
(230}

b5

A deforred tax asset of £2877,000 (2022: £1268.000). cacu.azed asing the forthcoming ax rate of 25%. nas not been recognised in
respect of the unutilised resid.al curren: year |0sses as b is no: anzicipated tha sutficien: residual profits wil. oe generated n

the fuiure.

Tne standard raze of corporation 1axs currenty 19%. The s:andard rate of corporation (ax increased 0 25% with eftect from

1 Aprii 2023,

REIT exempt income includes property rental income (na: ig exemp: from UK Coroeration Tax in accordance wita Part 12 of

Corporation Tax Ac: 201C.

LEarnings per snare (EPSY amounts are ca.c..ated oy dividing protit lor the year attrinutan.e 1o Ordinary equliy noders of the

Company oy the weighted average numpcer of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year.

Tnre calculation of basic and diluted earnings per snare 1s pased on the lolowing:

Calculation of earnings per share
Wet proli: aiinbuiable 1o Ordinary shareho!ders (£C00)
Weighted average nomper of Ordinary saares {exc.uding soares neld in reasary)

For the
year ended
31 Maich 2023

25472

for the

year ended
31 March 2022
£'00

44,754

608,552,681 618797942

4.19p

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

723p

oo
3=
E
S
o
z2
2z
= o
g &
ey
=N
S c
Ze
v Z
~ O
2=
“n

1=}
11}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Dividend of 13875p for the 3 montns 1o 31 March 2027
(1.35G0p 3 months to 31 Marcn 2021

Dividend of 14250p for the 3 months 10 3C June 2022
(1.3875p 3 months ro 30 June 2021)

Dividend of 1.4250p {or the 3 months to 30 Septembper 2022
{1.3875p 3 montiis ‘o 30 Seotemoer 2021

Dividend of 1.4250p tor the 3 months 10 31 Decemper 2022
{1.3875p 3 moninhs 0 31 December 2021)

Total

Fot the
year ended
31 March 2023

8,474

8,703

8.641

8,641

34459 31093

For the

year ended
31March 2022
£000

8403
8,537
8555

£.4198

On 9 May 2023, tne Company anno..nced a dividend of 1425 pence oer share in respec: of the poriad [ January 2023 1o 51 Marcn

2023 tota ling TRA4LOCH. Tne dividend paymen: was made on 9 June 2623 to sharehaolders on :he register as at 19 May 2023,
financial s:azemen:s do not reflec: (nis dividend. Tne dividend was paid as a REIT property mcome disinpuion CPTD7).

Balance a: heginning of year T
Proper.y acquisiions

[ provements ¢ mvestmen: properiies

Lease incentives and ren: s:raigh: hine ad;usimen:s recogniscd

Change in fair va'ue

Va.ue advised by tne Droperny va..ers
Less leage incenive assels and ren: srailgn: ine assets
Total

I DroVemen:s [0 Invesimen: properies inc..des capita. cxpendl .re incurred of £128.000
caange nidialves

D.rIng tne oreviocs year. 1ne Croup acquired a provery 1o.ding company rom Hereva Properides Tamied walcn @

Se
T o For tr; For the
year ended yearcnded
31 March;gjg kit Md[Chﬁ?g‘?ﬁ
968756 91538
543 33456
4,944
1264
2640
T a7ea7
(24.783) 125.519)
953364 945237

{2027: F12.000) 10 respec: of climate

e:d

asse’s :o.a . mng L8.511.000 These are ing.uded wr:tin Property Acquisiions in (ae note anove Her.eva Properiies Limiied is
a sunsidiary of Speciaast Hea.incare Operazions Limized ('SHO™. Andrew Dawoer and Tom Pridmore {poin direciors of the

Inves:men: Adwviser). are 14.99% shareno ders in SHO Taesy are no: direa:ors of SHC, and nave no operaiona. 1o.

nasiness. SHO doss not mee: e definition of a related pary under 1AS 24

In accordanace wata “IAS 40 Invesimen: Properny’. 1ne invesimen: Droperty nas ocen independenty va..ed a: fair vai.e oy JILL
an acoredized exierna. valicr witn recognized and relevant professiona. gaalifications and recen: expenence of 1ne .ocation

..alens are the L.

and cacgory of 1ne invesimen: prooery oeing valued, nowsver. (ne va

1a:e responsipliy of t1e Directors.

JI.Lva..ed (ae Civias Socia Hoosing PLC propery vordoilo on ine oasis of eacn individ.al oroperty and 1he neoretica. sae ot
Tne Droperiies wiinol the penetr of any cotporate wrapper at £978147.000 as at 31 Maran 3523 (Z2022: F958,756.0000,

JLL »as provided va..ation services 1o the Contpany with regards 1o the oroperiies dunng (ne year. JLL nas provided addimonal

Va..a'10n services on tne acd.isiion of invesimen: provery oy :ne Company durnng ne yea

r. "ne Direciors nave ens.red

‘na:JLL has appropnaie procedares in pace (o cns.re asre arc no ngdependence conficis witn tne sarvices provided io e

Company In re_ajion 10 ne year ended 31 Marcn 2023, e proporiion of o

e 1o.a. fees payap.e oy 1ng Company 0 JLLs (0:a. fec

income was _oss 1nan 5% and 15 (nerefore minirra . Additiona..y. JLLhasg a rotation po.icy In p.ace wnereay 1ne signaories on

The Ya:ualions roa:ie aler seven years



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

With the exception of ine acquisition detailed in note 16.0, all corporate acquisitions during the year and the comparative year
have beoen lreated as azsel purchascs taier Liah RUsiness comoimations because following review of the IFRS 3 concentration
test, they are considered o be acquisitions of properties rather than businesses (note 3.3).

The fo..owing table provides the fair va.de measurement hicrarchy or investment proper:y:

Cruoted prices in Signiticant significant

active markets observable unobservable
‘Total (Level 1}  inputs (Level 2)  inputs {(Level 3)
£'000_ £000 £'000 €000

Investment properties measured at fair value:

31 Maren 2023 953,364 -R

31 March 2022 945.237 - 945237

There have been no transiers netween Levei 1 and Level 2 duaring any of the years, nor nave there been any ransfers balween
Level 2 and Level 3 during any of 1ne years,

The vauationg nave been orepared in accordance with ine RICS Valiauen - Prolessionar Standards {incorporaiing e
Internaional Va'uazion Standards) by JLL. one of the .eading protessional firms engaged in the socia. housing sector.

As noted previous'y a'i of the Group’s invesunenis are reported as Level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13 where inputs arc no:
based on observabie market daza and :ne vai.e is pased Loon advice from relevant knowledgeab.c cxperts

In thig instance. The deternmination of 1ne fair valuc of inves:ment proporiy Teq.ires an examination ot the specific merits of
¢ach Dropery tnad are 1in turn considered pertinen: (o the va.uation.

These inc.ude:

i) the regllated social nousing sector and demand for the faciinies offered by each SSH propearty owned by the Groap;

ii) the particular sirteture of the Grouwp's transactions waere vendors, at their own expense. meet the majority of (e
refurbisiment costs ot gacn property and cerlain purenase cos:

i} detalied financiar analysis with discount raes sLpporiing (ne carrying val.e of eacn properiy:
iv) a f.i. repairing and insuring ‘ease with annual indexation pased on CPT or CPI+1%

The Iolowing descripiions and definitions reiating "o va.uialon iecnnigaas and ey unopservablo inp..s made in determining
falr va.ues are as folows

Fair value is defined as (ne price ha: woulld be received 10 sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a Jdabilily in an order'y ransacion
DEWCEN Marge: parucipanis at 1ne measurement date {(.c. an exit price).

The valLationh methodo.egy ased oy the valuers fo jows ne income approacn This aporoach considers (ac renia. income
CATTCNLY Payabie: tne nex: updf: due on tha: income on review: ihe kelinood of a continuation of tnat renta income  with
growth 1n accordance with [1e leases - over the remaining terms: and nen a .ong-tenm reversion which considers the Jiely
abLizy of the proveries (o coniinue 0 generate rent tarougn supoored housing occupation, as distine: from a reversion o
vacan: possession valiuc.

Risks are involved in boin assessing :he va.ac of the indexed renta: income over (he remaining terimg of the ‘eases and in also
prediciing Lhar income wit. continge neyond the ond of tne existing leases Trs is a balanced  wdgmen:, which can propery
be reflected in the exi: yieud app.ied 1o the final year's income and in the overal. 1eLIn (0 a paIcnaser

Appropriaic :axation caiculanons arc adopted for every oroperty nased on its value and on the assumpuon of the sa.e of
the property asses direc:ly as opposed (o shares of a subsidiary company nolding 1he property and have considered the
individua, cnaracieristics ot the properties,

There are 'wo main unobservabie InpLis tat deermineg ne fair va..e of the Group's invesimen: oroperiy:

i) Therate of 2% per annam has been used for CPI aver ine “erm of (ne suoect properties’ leases in .ine with ine Banx ot
Eng.and's long-term inflation arges tor CPL It should ne noted thar all leases benell: from either CPI or CPl41 indexation.

i) Tnediscount rate app.icd 10 e renia. Lows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Key tactors in derermining the discodn: rates applied inc..de the regulated social housing sector and demand for each S5H
prooeny owned by the Groap. costs of acquisizion and refurbishmen: of each propery. the anticipated fuiure underying cash
flows for each property. bencamarking of each under ying rent for eacn vroperty (passing renth impac: of climate change. and
the fac: that al. of the properies wilnin the Group's porifolio have the penefit of {1, repairing and insuring _eases entered in'o
oy an Agproved Provider

As at ;ne palance sheet dale. the lease lengins within the Group's porttolo ranged from an effective 14 years 1o 35 years (2022
15 years 10 356 years) with a weighted average unexpired ‘ease lerm of 215 years (2022 22.1). The grea'er 1he leng:h of (ne leasc.
then. a. other memncs being eq.al the greater the vaiue of tne property.

As sei oul within significan: accounting estimares at 3.1 above, the Group's property investmen! va . Lation is open (o Inherent
uncertainties in the inows that deermine fajr va.ue Managemen! nas re-considared (ne sensiuvily ranges and widened them
for 1ne current year as a result of macroeconomic uncerainty. As a resuis, (ne following sensitivity analysis nas been prepared:

e average discount rate used by lhe valuer in the Group's property Portfoio Valuation is 5.38% (2022: 3.5%). In seting 1he
disco.ntraies adoopied in nc va wation. 11¢ va «ers nave considered marke: standard and anicipated returns o seta
benchmark tor the por:follo as a who.e. They nave then considercd the various cnaracteristics of (e individua. oroperics in
order o ad usT those rales for eacn property JLL wil. keep yie.ds, and Merefore discount rates, under regu.ar review

The range of discount razes used by e va.uer in ihe Crowo's propery Porilolio Va..ation is from 4.6% 10 11.7% (2022 4 8%

w0 11.5%) [N assessing the range ol discownts, tne valuer considers Tne Jdkely netiniual viend wiich wou d be sougn: ny the
Investmen: marzet and p.ids additiona’ discoun:s to ref.ec: added risk into the discoun: rae of (ne lerm and. in some cases.
tme diIscount rale for e roversion. For example, wiere .arger rental growta is a_owed during the lease, an additiona: discoun:
is D.iit ino The reversion becasse of the greater risk of a falin ine rent attne end of the lease

3imiary addrional discounis are considerad where properties are In the process of naeing re-purposed and promiames are
constdered whare residentia care assets are funded by back-10-pacs eases wiln care providers

The :aoe be.ow 1L..8Taes e cnange 10 the vaiue of inves:ren: propertios if :ne discount rate and CPI .sed for the pordoiio
va..a10n ca.culalions are changed:

10% 1R

10%n
discount tate discount rate 0 5% i CPY 0 5% 1 CPl
- - - - rage o £o00 £000 EQu0
Increase/{decrease) in the IFRS fair value of invesiment properties at:

31 Marah 2023 71,929 (62.507) 56,676 (52.583)
31 Marcn 2022 3955 (64020) _58150 (53.615)
o T o o o o T N T T o k77 --; 7731 March 2023_ 31 March 2022
- _ £ _Eong
fgq;isition ol s‘.os{dlaw cron‘_pa?{es -(‘m::urdin;ﬁtcrcom:oazfioan'l - - - 13359

cgaisinion cosis - 785
Transier .o invesimen: propersy - {11.529)
Sa.e proceeds - {2.695)
Total T - T T - - -

During :he previous year. :ne Group enterad INto a ransacuon 1o acq.ire e freenod proveriss operated oy CPI Care Limred
Joon ine acq.astion of tae companies for F13.553.000 p Ly iransaciion costs, (e properies were ransferred into olaer group
com panies and (e company acagulred. a.ong Wit 1's associaied operations. was so.d 1o Envivo Corund.m Bidco Limued for
£2.595.000. Envive Cor.ndwme Bidoo Limited 1s a s.osidiary of Specia.ist Hea.incare Cperations Limited (SHG Andrew Dawber
and Tom Pridrrore (both directors of tae Invesimeaen: Adviser), are 14 99% snareno.ders in SHO Tney are no dircciors of SHO
and nave no operationa. 1o & SHO does not mee: 1ne defintiion of a re.azed pary under TAS 74



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

31March 2023 31 March 2022

[ [ o . B 000 000
Amounts falling due in less than one ye;r o o -

Trade receivables 6,676 4960
Less provision for impalrment of trade receivabies {459) {239)
Accrued income 3,313 1982
Prepayments and other receivables 1,730 3.162
Total T T T B 11260 12865

Prepayments and oiher receivable amounts include prepaid legal and professiona. fees of £Nil (2022: £34.000) that have been
incurred in connecuon witn acquisizions yel 1o be compleied and £286.000 (2022: £1.046.000) in respect of ongoing works on
the property portolio

Accrued income re.ates main.y 1o ren: accrued for the year bu: not yet demanded.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- - . o _ £000 £000
Amounts falling due after more than one !}ear,,, - o o

Straight line adi ustments 2,639 2,053
Lease incenrives 22144 21,465
Total o o o 24783 23519

The aged analysis of Tade receivables wag as 10l.ows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2n2z

E'0nn £000
Debto;s p::sirdue T - B o T o
Carren: 2,518 1,777
= 30 days 862 355
30-50 days 275 105
> 60 days 2,021 2723
T - - GG'E 4960
Debtors pastdue o o -
Less provision for impairmen: (459) (239)
Totat T -  e217 472
The Directors consider the tair va.ue of receivables equals their carrying amoun:
Ortacr categories wilhin rrtade and o:hcr receivanies do not iInc.ude impaired asses.
The provigion for imealrment movemen! was as follows:
7 - - T o rcrmp_ For Lh;
yeat ended year ended
- *1 MalChE?LI;Ji 31 Mdrchﬁi&(ﬁj}:;
BTala nce at Degmlng of year S B T T 239 236
Impairmen: provision made 306 109
Amount recovered (67) (126)
Amounis writlen off {19)
Balance at enaﬁry_e_a_lj - - - o ) 459 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Cash held oy solicitors
Liguidity funds
Cash held at nank

Resricted cash 7
Total )

31 March 2023
_E00

64
15,636
16,939
32,639

2,949

35588

31 march 20_22
£ 000
378
10489
38110
48975
4382

53.337

Liguidity funds refer (o money placed in money market funds. These are highyy liguid funds with accessibliity within 24 hours
and subjec: 0 insigmficant risg of changes in vauc.

Casn ne.d by solicitors 18 money neid in sscrow for expenses expecied 10 oo incurred in re.ation (o INVesimen: Croperies
pending completion These funds are avalaple immediately on demand,

Restricie
o delemred paymen:s sup:

cash represents amounts 1eld for specific commitmenis, enan: deposits and reten:ion money ncid in re.
o acaievemen: ol ceriain condizions. orner rexeniions and cash segregated o fund repair.

fion

mainienance and imorovemean: works (o oring ihe properies 4o ;0 sauslaciory standards for the Group and (hc tenan:s

Deferred income
Acqulsition costs acorued

Finance cos:s

Dividend wiihno.ding :ax cayan.e
Accrua.s and olher crediiors
Tenan: deposiis

Total

retained a: ne poin: of acquasiiion

31 March 2023
Eou0_

761

600

3.688

940

773

2,538
9300

31 March 2022
(Restated®)
£000
860
9560
1.840

105

~d

2202
CIEY
9.492

s pe paid a: a .atcrdate (ota.ing £383.000

* Compairatives have been restated to correct the analysis of £1896,000 of tenant deposits which had previously been included in acquisition costs accrued

Banx oorrowings arc secured oy charges over individ.al invesimen: proper:ies ne.d oy cerain asser-no.ding supsidianes 7he
d v g 1ot Y

nanss a.s0 no.d cnarges over tne saares of cerlain s.osidiaries and any intermediary no.ding companies ot tnose suisidiaries

Any associated fegs in arranging (e gans oorowings snamorised as a: e year end are offser agains: amo.nis drawn on

tac faclities as £1own N 11e table oe ows

Banz porrowings drawn a: star: of year
Ban¥ oorrowings advanced
Bans ocorrowings repaid

Ban< norrowings drawn a: end of year

Jnamoriscd costs at siar of year
il

less ‘oan 1ss.e ¢os.9 inc.rred
Add: Loan iss.e coss amrortised spon repavm

Add: .can 155.¢ Coss amorisation

Unamornsed ¢os's Al end of ye;;-. ’
At end of year

en: of pans oan

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£000

357,050
70,875
(60,000}
367,925
(5.000)
(3.544)
665
1,869

(6,010)
361,915

For the
year ended

31 March 2022
£ Q0o

357.050

337.050

T asug
w73




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

JLhEucls 2023

Loan Balance® lLoan Balance' LoanPrincipal Loan Puncipal

Al March 2023 31 March 2u22

- - — _ £'000 _ Fowo  EGO0 £600
Maturity of bank horrowi.ngs o T
Repayab.e within 1 year . - -
Repayable berween 10 2 years 59,600 158,746 60,000 160,000
Repayab.e beiween 2 10 5§ years 302,315 59.355 307,925 £0.0C0
Repayab:e alier § years - 1331939 - 137,050
Total B B T 361915 352030  367.925 357050
1 Loan balance net of unamoitised costs
The Group has neen party 10 the following loan facility agreements in the year
o T S o LO_&n Principal - = )
Faciity f.‘nno_ _ Expicy Date _ Interestrate
Summary of Borrc;m'_ngs B B T
Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility Term loan 52.300 02/11/2027 29936% fixed
L.oyds Banx plc Revolving credir faciiny - - SONIA + 1.67%
Deursche Bang AG loan Notes 70.875  03/02/2C28 5.69% fixed
HSBC Bank p.c Revoiving credit tacility 100.600 28/11/2025 SONTA + 2.15%!
Nauonal Westmins:er Bang P.c 3-vear facility Revo.ving credit facility 50,000 14/08/2024 SONIA + 2.00%°
M&G [nvesimen: Managemen: Limiied 7-year faciity  Term.oan _ B4550  24/02/2028 _ 3.37% fixed
367,925

Borrowings are secured on investment properties to the value:

Scotisit Widows I.Jmi_:e_d- 15-year fégi.;?y 'mnc;ngﬁa)_oc_ﬂ

Dautsche Bank AG Loan Notes principa: £75,875.000

H3BC Bank plc facility orincipa. £100.600.000

Nationa. Westminsier Bank P.c 5-year facility principa. £560.000.00C

M&G Invesimen: Managemcent Limited 7-year faciity principal £84.350000

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

F'000 _

173510 173777
168,610

231116 222745
137,827 135330
250279 230487

£000

Az 31 March 2023, ne Croup is In compliance wiin all covenanis.

Tne covenarnis in niace under the {ive agreements arc summarised in ine ab.e below:

Loan:

Historical and projected wnteresi cover

Loan to Value Rato

Scotish Widows Limited 10-year faciiity Al .cast 325%
Dcutsche Bank AG Loan Noies At .easi 175%
HSBC BanX ple faciiity Al least 250%
Nanona Westminster Bank Ple S-year faci ity Al cast 250%
M&G Invesumen: Managemen: Limited 7-year faciity Al .cas. 250"/

1interest 1ate caps have been purchased 10 cap interest costs on this facibity as per details in notes 210 and 313

2 Fixed by way of an interest rale swap as detalled in note 210

Must not exceed 40%
Mus: not exceed 50%
Mugl not exceed 530%
Must not cxceed 50%
Mus: not excead 55%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Groap has encered inio an in‘erest rate swap with NaWes: Markets in order o mitigate the risk of changes in interest raies
on is loan with Nationa! Westminsier Bang Ple under which £6C million is curren: y drawn. The swap has a hoiicna. valle of
£50.000000 and fixes interes: a: 2.60% (inc.uding tne 2% margin on ine oank loan).

During the year, the Growp nas cniered into three new inierest rate cap arrangements for a total cost of F8.841.000:

An inleresi rate cap nhat capped the £60,00C.000 Liovds Bang ple faciicy at 3 92% (including the 167% margin on the ‘oan
faciliiy) for ine peried from 16 September 2022 ta 20 February 2023. This arrangement was sold wpon (he repayment cf the .gan
with proceeds of £17.000.

An inierest raie cap tha: capoed the SONIA inerest rate on tne £100.000.000 HSBC Ban« ple facility a1 2.60% for ihe period from
21 Sepember 2022 10 17 Apnl 2023.

AT inlerest rate cap lransaction 1o mitigate the ris< of :ne SONLA inierest rate exceeding 245% pa. on the principal of
E100.000.000 HSRBC Bank olc faciiity for the penad from 17 Apri. 2023 10 28 Novemoper 2028, This insirument covers tnc remaining
werm of the revoiving credit facitity with H3BC Bank pue and its exiension to Navemoer 2023

For the For e
year ended year ended
3iMarch 2023 31 March 2022
- - - o goon _ E000
Interest rate derivative assets/(liabilities)
AT etar: of year 2131 (544)
Inierest rate cap premi.ms paid 8.841
Disposa. proceeds {17
Reaiised .oss on disposa. (187)
Cnange in fair va'ue during ine year (2.639) 2575
At end of year 8,129 2131
Tnetap.e below snows 1ne fair vaiLe meas.rement nierareny for inlerest denvatives:
- Quoke prices 1n S\qnlhcam- Sigmificant
Active Markers Observable  Unobservable
(Level I inputs {Level 2) Inputs (Level 31
— L EO0O0 0 RROO . £O00
31 March 2623 -~ 8,129 -
31 March 2027 - 2131

The fail va.ae of Crocp's interes: rate denvatves is recorded in ine Grouo Siatemen: of Financia. Posiiion and is determined
oy e Iespeciive counierparies. Thne counterparies Lge a namoer of ass.mplions in delermining ne fair va.ues. inc..iding
esmaiions over fuiure interes: rates and fuare casn Lows using onservao.e yied curves. The fair vaiue represents iac net

oresen: vac.e of 1nc differences oelween ine casn fows oroduced py e conracied rae and tnc va..alon rake Thus va..alon

recamge fal s witnin Leve. 2 of ine fair va. .2 aierareiyy as defined oy IFRS 13

Agre nave peen no ransfers oelween Leve |l and Leve. 2 d.uring any of ine oenods, nor nave mere oeen any ransfers
ne porods

Share capila. roorosents (e nomina. va e of considerasion received oy 1ne Company lor 1ne iss.c of Ordinary snares
For the Far the year
year ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 L(](lﬂ

Share capital I

A peginning and end of year o - 6225 5225
Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

AZ peginning and end of year 622461380 5224531380



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

During the year. the Company purchased 6,050,000 Crdinary shares to be heid in recascry at a cost of £4.651,000 (31 March 2022
10,025,000 Ordinary shaies lur £9.259.000).

During the previous year, ine Company reissted 565.000 Ordinary shares held in rreasury for £647,00C. The cos: of parchasing
these shares inio ‘reasuary of £484.0CC nas peen credited o the capital reduction reserve with the gain credited 1o the Sharc
ICMiLM [eserve.

At 31 March 2023, the Company held 16.075.000 (31 Marcn 2022: 10.025.000) Ordinary shares in treasury. The shares wil conlinue
1o be ne.d in treasury until either reissued or cancelled.

A 31 March 2023, tne number of Ordinary shares used to calculate the net asset value per share is 606.386.380 (31 March 2022
612436380) which exciudes the shares held in trcasury.

The share oremium reserve represenis the amounss supscribed lor Ordinary snare capital in excess of nominal vaiue .ess
associated issue cosis of the sunscriptions.

For the For the

year ended yedr ended

J1March2023 31 March 2042

. e _ . o E'000 o E'p_lgU

A® beginning of year 292,626 292,463
Premium arising on shares reissued from reasury _ - @
At end of year - 292,626 292,526

For movenmean:s in 1e year, p.easc see delais in note 22.0,

Tae capral reduction reserve s a disiribatab.e reserve to which the vaiue of 1ne cance__ed snare premium was rangferred.
Pars.an: ;o Aric.e 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Sahare Capital) Order 20C8, the pa.ance aeld in e capra. red.cilon
rescrve is (o be reated tor the purposges of Part 23 of ine Companies Act 2006 as a rca.ised profit and therefore availanle tor
digirioution in accordance witn scevion 830 of tne Companies Act The Company hasg used This reserve far (ne costs of buying
pack shares to be ne.d in treasury and paymen: of dividends.

for the For the

year ended year ended

J1March 2023 31 Maich 2022

. ) _ o £000 L 000

Al peginning of year 322,365 231140
Shares reissucd from reasury - 184
Shares powgll: pack into reasury (4.651) (9.259)

317,714 322385

Ait gnql of year

For movamenis in the year. p.ease sce deiails in note 22.0

This rescrve represen:s she nrofits and [osses of the Group

For the ror the

vear ended year ended

A1 March 2023 31 March 2022

e . ) - e . o "000 £000
A peginning of year 54,331 43,670
Profil lor the vear 25,472 44754
Dividends paid o L (34,459) (34,093}
45,344 54331

At end of year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Basic NAV per share is calcdlated by dividing net assets in :ne Consoiidated Statement of Financial Position atirioutable to
Crdinary equity hoiders of the parant by ine numier of Ordinary snares outstanding at the end of the year

Netasser values have dbeen calcu.ated as fo.lows:

Ne: asseis (£000)
Number of Ordinary snares in issue at end of year
Number of Ordinary shares held in reasury

Numbe; if Erdinaryr shaqes excluding treasury shares héldﬁ lgy the Compa_i-_{y_
NAV per share — basic and diluted

Kt peqginning of year

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan lssue costs paid

Intercs: rate derivauve oremiums naid

Proceeds from ne sa.e of Interes: rae derivatives
Rank borrowings advanced

Ban«< sorrowings repaid

Non cash movements

Loan igs.ue fees accrued
Ammoriasation of oan 1ssuc cosis

Unamoriisced .oan arrangemen: fees wriiicn off
Change in fair vaiue of interes: rate derivanves
Kt end of year | ’

AT neginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down

Non cash movements

Loan iss.e fecs payap.e

Ammorisation of loan 1ss.e cos's

Cnange in fair va'.e of intcres: rate denvaives
Atendofyear

Interest rate
denvatives
£00q

(2,131}

(8.841)
17

!

2.826

Interestiate
detrivatves
£000

544

(2.575)

@13

31 March 2023
661,909
622,461,380

(16,075,000)

606,386,380
109.16p

Bank
botrowings
£000
352,050

(3,148)

70,875
(60.000)

(396)
1,869
665

Bank
BOrrowWmas

382120

{1.8C35)

o0

-
O
(5]
[ ST

.
[N

350.0%

31March 2022

E‘Ufli

575.547
622451380

(10.G25200)

612436580

~ 11C30p.

For the
year ended
31 March 2023
__tooo
349,919
(3.148)
(8.841)
17
70,875

(60,000}

(396)
1.869

665
2,826

(8.129) 361915 353786

For the

yeai ended

31 March 2022
£°000

257,564




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Group is pdlly (0 a numrber of operanng leases on 1's inves:ment properies with Approved Providers The Luture minimum
lease paymen:s Jnder non-cancellanle operating leases receivab.e by the Group are as follows:

31March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000

Amounts reccivanle

<1year 57,262 53.821
12 years 57,352 53.879
2-5 years 172,536 161.940
> 5 yoars 958,286  928.210
Atend of year T - o 1245436  1197.85C

Leases are direci-lel agreemeants with Approved Providers for a term petween 28-40 years with indexed (Inxed annua. rent
reviews. All current lcases are luil repairing and Insuring .eascs; ‘he ienants are “herefore obliged ‘o repair. mainiain and
renew ne properties pack o the origina: conditions.

The folowing (an.c gives deials of percentage of annuai rental income per Aporoved Provider:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
x %

Auckland Homcgmtions and_Qha-:i:as Housing - 7 249 724,4
Falcon Tlousing Association CIC 19.1 187
Bespoge Supporive Tenancies 12.5 12.6
Inc .gion Housing CIC 9.4 93
Westmorc:and S.opored Housing Limited 5.6 5.9
Fnairele Housing Limited 5.2 5.9
Triniiy Housing Assoctation Limited 5.2 5.1
Pivora. Housing Assoclation 4.0 38
Chrysaiis Supporied Association Limited 3.7 3.5
Now Wa .k Property Managemen: CIC 27 Z8
Harnour Lign: Assisted Living CIC 2.3 3.5
My Space Housing Soluiions 13 13
Lysium Heal:hcoare Limited 1.1 -
TKE Supporied Housing Limiied 10 11
Hidale Housing Association Limited 1.0 1G
Windrush Allance JK CIC 0.7 G7
Liny Rose Suoporned Hoosing 0.2 Gl
Biue Square Restdenta Lid 0.1 G1
Total o - - I © 1000 1600

Ajc<and Home So'utions and Gua'iias Housing are botn mempers of the Socia. Housing Famuly CIC and sup ect 1o common
coniral. Their ann.al ren: figures nave therefore been aggregated in the table apove. The percentage relating to Auckiand
Home Solutions and Qua.tas Housing was 16.5% and 8.4% (7072: 158.3% and 8.1%) respecivery. The annua!l rent at 31 Mareh 2025 for
Adccand Home So.utions and Gualiias Housing was £9.265.0CC and £4,730.000 (2022; £8.673.800 and £4,334.000) raspectivery.

Tne Growp is 4 so party 1o a namper of operating 'cases on its «wong .easeho.d properues. The groand rent payment
commiiments ander these operaling leases are negiigible so the future minimum ease paymenis inder (nese ‘eases nave not
neen disclosed in tnese financial staicments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Az ar 31 Marceh 2023, there Is ro L timate cantroling pariy.

A st of al subsichary underakings inc.uding the address ol the regisiered office is detaled in note 8.0 1o the Company
accounis on pages 115 to 118.

i
The Direciors are rem .nerated for ihelr services at such rate as the Direciors sitai from wme 1o lime determune. Tho aggragae
remuneraion and venefits in kind of 1 ne Directors of the Company (in €ach case soley m their capdacity as sucti} in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023 payable out of the assets of the Company is not expected o excecd £25C.0C0.

Fees of £194.0C0 (2022 F190.000) were incurred and paid 1o 1he Direciors

Az at 31 March 2023 and 2022, Jae Direcrors held e folowing namber of sharcs

31 March 2023 S1March 2022

Ordinary Ordinary
[ - - _ ~ shares shares

Director h ) T o o !

Michael Wrobe. hairman 200,000 120.598 ‘

Alastair Mass Director 11,766 11.765

Alison Haddeon Dirccior 31937

Caroline Gut iver Audit and Managerren: Engagentern: Commises Char 58,832 58.852

Poier Baxter Director 82,068 5

Tne Invesimen: Adviser has reviewed 118 remaneration policies and procedures (o ens.re incanives are aligned wia e
requairemen:s of AIFMD It inciudes measures o avold conf.icis of inTeres: sucn as providing s:afl wii a fixed moniny

sa ary and determining discretiionary paymen:s oy the performance of ine Invesimen: Adviser as a whole and not ling<ed
o any one AIF in paricuar The Investmen: Adviser and g s1aff raceve no remwneralion (arowga profic share. carried
INIeres.. co-invesiren: or ©NCr scnemes re.ated 0 the Conmpany’'s verformance.

On t November 2016, Civiras [nvesimen: Managemen: Limied ("CIM™ was appoinied as the Invesimen: Adviser of tne Comrpany.
I:s address is shown on page 131 10 ine Report.

Foes of £6.256.00C (2022 £5.132.000) were ing.rred and paid o CIM. In addinon £11.0CC (2022 Fmi) disourscmens were paid In

e year

The Invesimen: Adviser agrecd 1o contTibue fnk (2022 F1IC0000) towards ega. and professiona. fees inc.urred. This amoant
was offse! against cga and profcssiona. fees in nole 8.8

As ai 31 Marca 202

canerarroun: of f4B.C00 (A072: nas since peen received.

Asg at 31 Marcn 2023, CIM ne.d 187 554 (2022 30000 Ordinary saares 1in e Company



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Tne Croup's principal financia. assets and .lablities are ‘hose that arise directly from 1:s operalions ‘rade and other
receivaples, ;rade and other payabies and cash and cash equivalents. The Group's other principal financial lianilities are nank
norrowings, the main purpese of wiich is o finance the acquisition and deve.opment of the Group's Investment property
porttolio, and interest rate derivatives as detailed in notes 26.0 and 21.0.

A.. financia! liabilizies are measured a: amoriised cost. excep: interest rate derivaiives, which are measured at fair valae. Al
financial insiruments were designated in their current categories upon initial recognition.

Set outl be.ow 1S a comparison by c.ass ol the carrying amounts and f{air value of the Group's financiai msruments that are
carried in the financial stalements:

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

31 March 2023 3t March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Match 2022
o £'000 £000 _goon £y

Fmanciéﬁésets T o i
Interes: ratc derivatives 8.129 8,129 2.131 2131
Trade and other receivaples! 34949 34,949 34.580 34 580
Cash and cash equiva en:s 35,588 35,588 53337 53,337

Financial liabilities
Trade and oiher payab.es’ 7.599 7.599 8432 8.637
Bank bq)rrowmgisr 361,915 350.1__79 352.05C 349.4067

1 Excludes piepayments
2 Excludes delerred income and dividend withholding iax payahle

The Group has five bank .0ans as deraiied in note 20.0. Tae lair value of the fixed rate loan is determincd oy com paring e
discounied fuiure cash Lows,

The Growp is exposed [0 markct ris<, interes! rate ris<, eredit ris< and iquidiy ris< in the curren: and fature years Tne Board of
Dircctors oversees the managerrent of these ris<s. The Board of Dircciors reviews and agrecs poiicies tor managing cacn of
Lhese risxs hat are summarised oelow.

The Croup's activiles will cxpose & primarily to the marke: ris<s associated wiin caanges in property va,ues and cnanges in
ineres: rales

Invesimeni in property is subec: to varying degreas of risk. Some faclors thar affec: e va.ue of the invesiment in property
include:

e c¢hanges n :ne gencral cconomic climate;

e competition for avallaple properties:

& obso.escence; and

e governmen:reg.a.atons. inciuding planning, cnvireonmen:a, and tax laws.

Variations in the apove {aciors ran affect :nc va.uation of asse:s ne.d oy the Group and as a res.l: can influcnee the financial
performance of the Groun.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Tne Group no.ds positions in iwo AAA rated liquidity funds (aat invest In a diversified range of government and
non-gavernment money mar<e: securities. waich are supject ‘o varying degrees of risx. Some [aciors thar affect tne va e of
e iquidity fuinds include:

e he performance of the underlying governmen: and non-governmen: IMoney marsel securiiies: and

& INeres. rales.

Vanations in the apove factors can affec: the val.azion of asse:s held oy “he Gro.p and as a resu: can influence ‘he financia.
performance of the Group.

Tnterest rae risk is lhe risx inat e lair vaiue or fulire cash fows of a financia! instrumen: will fiuctuate because of changes m
marset interest ratcs

Al 31 Marcn 2023 al. ‘ong-term borrowings are either at fixed rate or nave an interest raic cap or inlerest rate SWap in piace
which nas muigased the risk of rising interest rate. Interes: raie darivatuve insiruments arc in placce 1o :he loan mawriy daze on
the variaplc rate .0ans.

The iab.e oe.0ow shows e pank lcans. derivative insiraoments and inerest rates,

Ma ximum

Loan Principal Dervatlve INSTument nterest rate
summary of Borrowings —_ . ___£000 _Expuy Date _Interest rate ____.nplace pavable
Scotisn Widows Lumitcd 10-year tacnity 52,500 can/moz7 2.8936% hxed 2.99%
Deuische Ban< AG 70875 (3/02/2028 5 59% fixed 3.69%
HSBC Ban<p.c 100,000 28/11/2025 SGNIA + 215% Inierestrae cao 475%
Natonal Wesiminsior Bank Plz S-year faciaty 60,000 14/08/2024  SONIA v 200% Interes: rate swap 2.50%
M&G Invesimen: Management Limited 7-year fac 84,550  24/02/2028 3137% fixed . 314k

367,925

1 Maximurm iniersst rate reduces 1o 4 6% [tom 18 Apnil 2023

Tne expos.re of tne Group 1o variap e rates of interes: is considered spon drawing of any new loan taciilies. (0 ens.are t
Cro.p's expos.re o 1nierest rae fLuciialions 1s within accen:an.c .eves.

The Invesimen: AdvISer moniols (ne Groun's exposuare (0 any cnanges in imieres: rale on an ongoind nasis, wit e Board
.pdated on a guarery nasis of ine curren: exposare of the Group's .oan faciines

As at 31 Marcn 20231 interes: rates nad neen 100 pasis poinis nignher/f.ower) wiin a - oner variab.os na.d consian: @nc impac:
on profits after :axation for The year wouid oe as pe.ow The Invesimen: Adviger anticipates iicse eve's are reasonan.y
possin.e based on (ne oonzervation of corren: marxe: condricns Da: inieres’ rales woud notficiiac rore than 1%

31 Match 2023 31 March 2022
___su00 £000_

Increase/(decrease) in profits due to interest rates
180 pasis poin's nigner 256 {1.055)

1CC nasis poin (210) 1.572.

31 March 2023 3ikfarch 2022
* . %

Ban< porroewings - fixed rate 2.65 234
Ban< porrowings - variao ¢ ra:e: 6.07 2323
Casn and casn og.va.en:s 0.82 a5

1 Vanable rate borawings ate subject 10 @ maximum mierest rate of 4 75% due 1o annterest fate cap The maximum interest rate redices 10 4 0% from 18 Apnl 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Cradiz rink 10 the riak thal a coantupally wil o, teer 18 obligauons under a financia! instrument or cusiomer contiacl,
‘eading to a financia. loss. Tne Group is exposed o credit nisks from both 15 leasing aciivities and financing activities.
inciuding deposits with banks and financial instizutons.

Dentors and accrued income represent rent due or acerued. Tnese amounts due are diversitied belween a number of differont
Approved Providers of differing financial streng:n. see note 286 for details of the different counterparties. None of the
Approved Providers have a credit rating. however. the diversified nature of this asset supporis the credit qua.ity.

The Group has policies In p.ace 10 ensure (n1a‘ renia, conlracis are entered into only with lessees wiin an appropriate credit
and operational nistory. and limits exposure (o any one enant. The credit ris< is considered o be further reduced as the
source of 1he rents received by the Group 18 ullimately provided by the Governmen:. by way of housing benefit and care
provision, via a diverse range of .ocal authorides

For detal.g of grovisions for impairment please refer to noie 17 G

One of tne principal credii risks of the Grouo will arise with the banss and financia. institutions. The Board of Direciors belicves
that the credl: risg on short-'erm deposi's and current accoun: cash paiances is limited necause the counterpariies are banks
considered 0 be of good credit quality. In the case of cash deposits heid with lawyers, the credil ris<1s .imited secause the
cash is held oy the awyers within c.icnt accounis at pan<s with high credit gua.ity.

The credit ratings lor panks where balances are heid oy the Group arc as foi.ows:

L'oyds Bank pi.c A/l
11SBC Bank p.c AA-/Fl4
RBS Internatuona’ Limitc A/FT

Naziona! Wes:minster Ban< p.c A+/Fl

Ratings advised oy Fiten

No balances are held with Deutsche Bank AG

The Group manages its [dguidity and funding risks oy considering cash flow forecasis and ensuring sufficien: cash pd.ances
arc neid witnin the Group o mec: fuiure needs. Pruden: liquidity risk managemeant impiics maintatming safficient cash and
marketable securites. the avaiability of inancing tnrolgn aporopriate and adeyed.e credit (ines, and ne anlity of cusiomers
o seltle op.igations within norma! terms of credis. The Cro.o ens.ares, through forecas:ing of capita. reqairements, that
adeqdae casn 1s avai.ab.c

The tollowing taole detai's 1ne Group's maturnty profi e in respect of i's financia. insitumen: iaoilizles nascd on conraciual
indiscodnied paymen:is:

Oon demand <lyear 15yedts > K years Total

o o o I . E.UUJB £000 . £908 F-'OO_E: o ﬁ.ﬂl:L
31 March 2023
Trade and oiher payables 7.599 - - - 7,599
Bank porrowings - 14,482 407.770 - 422,252
- o T 7 7899 14482 407770 - 429851
31 March 2022
Trade and other payan.es 8.6532 - - 8,632
Rank norrowings - 9336 245,874 144,502 399912
o ’ T - 8632 9336 245874 144502 408544

Tne profiic above shows the matanty profile at 31 March 2023 and incl.ded witiin the contracted payments is £54.327.000
(2022: £42,862.000) of ioan interes: payan'e Lo 0 the point of mat.rity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Az 31 Marcn 2023, the Company nad funds commited totaling £Ni: (2022 £92.000 concerning capiial expenditure for & property
in Surrey).

On 9 May 7C23, the Company announced a dividend of 1425 pence per share in respec of tae period 1 January 2623 1o
31 March 2023 sotaling £8,641000 The dividend paymen: was made on 9 June 2023 10 snarcno.ders on the regisier as
a1 19 May 2023 The financial statcments do not refec: this dividend. The dividend was paid as a RIIT property income
distrioution ("PID7).

On 1 Decemper 20272, the Company signed a facility with an instititiona. .ender. Supsequcni (o (nis, on 21 June 2023, the
Company receved credil anproved ;erms for an additional £61.0 million fixed faclity based on a 3-ycar SONIA rate at the
£ ™

date of draw down 1195bps margih wiir a mailiy date of 3 Augus: 2026 The eventua drawdown on the facillty s sup et 1o
cortain siandard ciosing conditions,

On 9 May 2023 an announcemen: was made 1o tne market 1or an at.-casa offer of Civitas Socia: Housing PLC (Civitas) from
Wa'ness Unity Limited. a waolly owned indirec: supsidiary of CKA Asse: Holdings Limited (CKA). The otfer ot 8C penca

per share received va.ses [he enure issued share capiia. (exc. ading reas.ry snares) of CSH at approximately £485 milion.
Tais represen:s a 44.4% premiam o tne snare price of 554 pence per share on 3 May 2023 (the last rrading day prior 1o
annouwncemen: of the offen. and 25.7% discoun: to 31 March 2023 NAV of 10918p. This provides shareho.ders the opportunity 10
exiz in fu.} and n cash a: a significan: oremium ‘o (ne curren: share price. The offer will be imp.emenied by way of a axcover
offcr wirnin the meaning of Part 28 of :he Companics At

On 22 May 2023, the Offcr Documen: was rade availab.e The offer necame upcondiiona: on 23 June 7023, Paymen: of
consideration dae o shareno.ders who nave s.omised vaad acceplances wilt be made no .ater than 4 calendar days

atrer “he date ‘ne Cfter oecomes or is declared wnoonditona - ornn re ation o valld acceprances reccived atisr such date,
wiinin 14 calendar days of receip: of that acceplance According 1o ne Offer Document. It is intended that Civitas Invesiman:
Managemernt: Limiied { CIM ) is mamn:ained as ine Invesimen: Adviser to Civiias 5o 1nat the day-o-day managemen: of

the Civiias portfcio wil. condn.e .ninterrupted, and Civitas oe re-regisiered as a oriva:ie Umied company as soon as
praciican:e o owing :ne cance: ation of the siing and :rading of Civizas snares. A: the ba ance snect date. CKA. as an indirec:
inves:or in CIM. was not a re_ated party o the Group as per [AS 24 On 23 Tune 2075 waen the offer pecame incornudiliona.

CKA subsequen..y bocalme the Simase conTo.ang pary of 7ae Company. and a re.ated party under [AS 24




Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

31March 2023 31 March 2022

Note £000 £000
Assets B o
Fixed assets
Investment in supsidiaries 7.0 794,733 763,284
Current assets
“rade and other recejvables 9.0 2,599 4.310
Cash and cash equavalents 10.0 26,193 23.438
T '7 ) o 28792 #7748
Total assets ' - ) 77 823525 821032
Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Trade and otner payables 1.0 (318,414) (274.02C})
. ' ’ (318,414}  (274.020)
Total liabilities (318,414) (274.C2C)
Total net assets - - - -  BOSM1 547.012
Equity
Share capiial 12.00 6,225 5.225
Share premium reserve 136 292,626 292828
Capita. reduction reserve 14.0 317,714 322365

Accumulaied .osses 15.0 (111,454) (74.204)

505,111 547.012

To{al eqﬁity

Tne Company nas ‘axen advaniage of tne orovisions of Companies Ac: 2006 s408 and does not disciose the Company's
individi.al profit and loss account Loss for 1ne year was £2.791.000 (2022 profit F21,362.0C0).

The Company financia. statemen:s on pages 111 10 120 were approved ny ne Board of Directors of Civitas Soclal Iousing PLC
and authornsed for issuc and signed on its oenalf oy

1\‘ ,

! ’ll(/!l/f/m Ls ;

Michael Wrobel

Cnairman and Independent Non-Execunive Director
28 Junc 2023

Company No 10402528
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capual

Shate premum reducion  Accumulated Toral
Note “Fono “¥o0 “roos ors  ‘Huoy

Balance at 1 April 2021 . - 5225 292462 331140 (61473) 368334

Proti: and :otal comoprenensive income for the vear - - 21,362 21.362

Snares reissued from ‘reasury 13.8 164 484 - 648
Snares bo.ugh: bacginto treasury 14.0 - - {9.259) - (9.259)
Dividends paid 150 - N - (34.093} (3{]@

Balance at 31 March 2022 - ' 6275 292626 322365 (74204 547012
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (2,791) (2.791)

shares rejssiied from treasury 13.0 - - - - -
Shares bough: back ino reasury 4.0 - - (4,651) - (4.551)
Dividends paid 15.0 - - - (34,459) (34,459)

Balance at 31 March 2023 T ' 6225 292626 317714  (11454) 505111

The Company's distnbuatable regerves compnse retamned earnings/(accumalared losses) and the capiial reduction
reserve These 1n aggregate had sufficient realised cistnibutable reserves to support dwidends paid (o date.

REPORT AND ACC

Tae noleg on pages 113 10 120 are an integra. par: of these finanaal stTatemenss.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

Civiias Socia: llousing PLC (he Company’} was incorporated in Engand and Wa'les ander the Companies Act 2005 as a puis.ac
company imited by shares on 29 Sepiember 2016 with company number 10462528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC. which was
sunsequently changed o e existing name on 3% Getober 2015,

The address of the reqistered oifice is 6th Floor 65 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7NQ. The Company s registered as

an invesiment company Junder section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 in Eng.and and Wales and is domiciled in the

Unired Kingdom.

The Company did not oegin rading unii. 18 Novemper 2016 when the shares were admiited to trading on the London Stock
Lxchange ("LSE").

The Company's Ordinary shares nave oeen admitzed to the Official List of the Financial Conduc: Authority ('FCA), and are
rraded on the LSE

The pnincipal aciivity of the Company is to act as “he 4.timate parent company of 118 subsidiaries (the "Group”) and o provide
shareholders with an attracijve .evel of income. 1ogelner with the polential for capital growth from invesiing in a paortiolio of
social homes.

The tinancial statemenis have been preparcd on a aisicrical cost basis and in accordance witn Financia. Reporting Standard
181 Reduced Disclosure Frameworx ("FRS 101"} and ine Companies Ac: 2006 as applicable to companies using FRS 1C1

[n prepanng tnese financial siatements. tac Conpany apo.ies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements ot
[n:ernationa. Financial Reporting Standards CAdopted [FRSs™, put makes amendments where necessary in order to como.y
w11 tne Companies Act 2006 and has se” our oelow where advaniage of the FRS IC1 disc.osure exemplions nas been ta<en.

[n preparing tnese financial statecmensts the Company has ia<en advantage of al. disclos.re exemptions conferred by FRS 101
Thercfore, these financial statements do not inc.ude:

e ceriain comparative information as otherwise required oy [FRS:

¢ cer:ain disciosures regarding 1ne Company’'s caplial managemant;

e cerain disciosures inrelation to IFRS 15 Revanue Contrac:s with Cusomers:

e astaiement of cash flows;

e he eftect of future accouniing s:andards no! ye: adopted:

e nedisciosure of the rem uneration of <ey management personne. and

s disclosure ol reiated party rransaciions witn ciner whao.y owned members of Civitas Socia. Houging PLC.

In addition, and in accordance wiin FRS ICL further disclosure exemptions nave npeen adopted pecausc cquiva.ant disc.osures
are included in ‘ne Company's consolidated financia. staiements These inancia. statemen's do not include ¢eriain
disclosures in respec: of:

e financia instrumen:s; and

e fair va.ue measdrement other than certain disciosures required as a resul: of recording financia. insruments at fair vaue.

Tne Company nas taxen advaniage ot the exemprion in section 408 of the Companies Ac: 2006 not 1o pregent 1§ own income
sialemen: or slatement of comprenensive income.

Alter a review of new accounting standards which are now cffective. none are re.cvant (o be adopted in Tae greparation of the
Company's financial staiemen:s for the year ended 31 Marcn 2023

The finenciai siatemenis have heen preparcd on a going concern pasis.

As discussed in the Group financia’ statements above, the underlying assets of the Company oenefit from a secure income siream
The Company financia. sta’ements show an accum s ated (0ss nowever “hig 1s due (0 a time-.4g on profits from s.osidiary
companies being moved up :ae striclure inthe form of dividends

Tne Company has ne: curren: lahi'ities of £7289.622.000 (2022: £246.272,000). This palance ariscs due to the intercompany
palances 0:a 1ing £316.128.000 (2027 £271.632.000) witn the Company's supsidiary companies. The amoanis principal.y relate o
nank .0ans drawn in 1ne Company's subsidiary companies in order 1o finance tne purchase of new acquisitions in accordance
with e Croap's business model. The dircciors ol the subsidiary companies have provided a letter ol comfor: that they wil. not
seex repaymen: of these balanaes within 172 mon:ns from 1ne dasc of approval of the Company's financia. siazements,
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company's artic.es of association incluide a requirement for the Board o propose an ordinary reso....ion a: the annaal
genera. mee:ing lolowing the fif:n anniversary from e initiai publiic oftering of the Company for :ne Company o continue
in irs current form (e Contintazion Reso.ution) This vore was passed in Sep:ember 2022 so the Company will continue its
bpusiness as presently constizated and wi.l propose the same resoluiion ai the AGM in Sepiember 2027 and every fifth annual
general meesting inereafier

On 9 May 2023, an announcement was made 1o 1he market for an ali-casn offer ot Civizas Socia! Housing PLC (CSH) from
We:iness Unily Limrted. a wholly owned indirect supsidiary of CK Assets Holdings Limited {CKA). The cffer pecame
uncondiional on 23 June 2023, The Group’s existing commitied dent faci.ities contain a standard cnandge of contra. ciause nas
now peen ‘riggered due o the offer becoming unconditionai. This could result in ihe existing commited dent facilities veing
witndrawn. Fur-hermore, ‘he Directors do no: have visibi.ily of the post completion funding for the Group and Company at
this time. The Direciors noe tne detailed inientons statemen: included within :he announcemen: on 9 May 2023 whicn states
that CKA does not envisage making any changes .0 e managemeni ‘eam nor any disruprion 1o any counterparties or to

<he underlying :enan:s. However. the conditions outlined above indicate a matenal uncertainty wnich may cast significan:
do.b: upon the Group's and Company's abilliy 1o continuc as a going concern. The Independent Auditors’ Repor: included
wizhin the Annual Repor: and Acco.n:s for tne year ended 31 March 2023 also highitghts (his maenal uncertainty. Therefore,
natwingianding t1c materia. anceriansy arising from the offer trom CKA, the Direciors are satistied that the going concern
pasis remains appropriate for e preparation of 1he financia. siaiements The financia. statements de not tnclude e
adjustmen:s *hat woud resultif ine Group and the Company werc unaple (o conitnue as a going concern.

The key so.rcs of esumation unceriainty relates 1o the Company’s invesiment in Growp companics, and is stated in (ne
Company's separate financial stalcmen:s at ¢os .essmpalrmen: .osses, il any. Impairment ‘osscs are determined wiin
reference 1o the investimen<s fair vaiie (ess es! red cosis of disposa . Investmen: groperics 2cld oy the supsidiary
companles arc supporned ny independen: va zation Judgemen:s and assampiions associaied wiin the property values of ine
mvestmen:s ncld by ine subsidiary companics are detailed in tne Group financial sialemen:s

The financia. staiements of 1ne Company fol.ow e accowniing po.cles .aid o.: in tne Group's consoadatced financia
siatemen:s d.ong witn Tne fol.owing accouning policies whien nave becn consisient.y applied:

The mmvesmenss N suLosidiary companies are incl.ded in ine Company's S:atcment of Financia. Posilion at cos: ¢SS provision
for impairmen: Impairmren: .osses are delermined wiin relerence 1o the investment’s fair va e ess esumaed se. ing o On
disposa.. the dilterence petween the ne: disposal procesds and its carrying amount s incuded 1n 1ne income statement.

1e invesimen: in a s.osidiary company may inciude bo the purchase of shares and an intercompany .oan whicn is
subpscguen: vy capitalised 1n rerurn for saares in the suonsidiary company. The intercompany .0an capita.sed 18 disc.osed in
note 7.C as a iransfer peswecen (ne shares and oan co.umns.

Loans made 0 sunsidiaty companies wnicn arise as oar: of (e iransaciions for :he acguisinion of investments and are
s.pseq.enty capilaized oy 1ne issue of shares are recognised as inves:men: in s.osidiaries a: cog? Al e poiniine oanlis
capiia ised, ;s ransacion is recognised as a iranster within 1ne fan.cin noie 7 ¢,

Ba.ances arising witn s.osidiary companies of a lemporary nad.re are nra.y recognised at fair va .e and suoscgquenty
reas.red al amornised cos:

Dividends are inc_.ded 1n The financial s;:atemen:s in (e year in wnich tney are paid. Detals of dividends paid and proposed
are iInc.uded in note 14 G of (e Growo's conso.adaled financia. statements

De:als ol Direciors remwnera:ion are inc..uded in note 4.0 of 21c conso.idated financia. siaiomens. “ne Company aad no
emo.ovces d.ring 1ne year (2022 ni)

A.dn lees in re.anon -0 ;nc Company's hnanhcla. slaiemens (ola. £338,000 (2027: £295.000). For furiner detals. p.ease refcr 0
note 9.C of :ne Cro.p financla. slaements.



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued
- 7 - | T o For he
Shaies Loans ta year endeds
subsicharies sobradiangs Z1March 2023
Year ended 31 March 2023 B o . . 200 PRSI £ 000
Balance ai the beginning of ihe year 768,075 25,209 793284
Increase In invesiments 1,090 600 1,690
Loans transferred 7,727 (7727 -
Impairmen: (241) - (241)
At the end of the year ) 776,651 18,082 794,733
- o N ;;he vear
Shares in Loans o ended
slubsicdianes subsidianes 31 March 2022
Year l?l!did 31 March 2022 £on0 . £'000_ _ __£ooo
Ba ance at :ne beginning of the year 703435 17,483 720918
Increase in investimenis 41712 31.013 72.725
Loans ransierred 23287 (23287 -
Impairmen: (339) (35?)
At the end of the year 768.075 25209 793,284

Following a review companng cos: of invesiments o the underlying nct assess of s.unsidiary companies, an impairment
provision nas becen made of £241.000 (2627 £359.000).

The Comonany has provided a guaraniee under s479C of :ne Companies Act 2065 in respect of :ac financial vear ended

31 Marcn 2023 lor a number of its subsidiary companics (as indicated in ne table on e following pages). The guarantee is
over ai. outs:anding liabi.ities 1o waich e supsidiary companics are subjea at 31 March 2023 Lnti. they arc satishied in tu..
The Groudn consisis ol a paren: company, Civitas Socia. Housing PIL.C, mceorporaied in Engtand and Wales (company number
10402528) and a n.mber of sunsidiaries he « directly oy Civitas Socia! Housing PLC, which operate ang arc incorporated in
Lng.and and Wales or Jarsey.

The Gro.o owns 100% eq .1ty shares of all sunsidiarics isied ne.ow and has 'he power (0 appoin: and remove the majorty ot
the board of direciors of inose s.ubsidiaries Tne re.evan: activitics of the pe ow s.bsidiaries are deiermined ny the Board of
Dircctors based on tne purpose of each company.

Therefore, the irectors concladed tnat the Group nas conro: over a. hese

consoddazed within tne consaddaied [inancial starements.,

enililas and ali these entities have peen

A st of all re.ated undertaxings inc.aded within these consoadared financlal statemenns are noted pelow. Indirea: y neid

subsidiary companies are marxed by an indentation in 1ne tanle nelow:

Naimg
C.vitas Soca. Housing tmance Company lﬁ;ted“
Civias So0a. Housing jersey 1 Limited

Civitas SPV1 L mited*

Civitas SFVZ Lumited®

Civitas SPVII Limited”

Civitas SPVIS Limuied®

Civitas SPVZS Limnted®

Civitas SPVZ7 Lmued”

Civitas $PV33 Limited”

Civ tas SPV33 Lintited”

Civitas $PV38 Lint.12d”

Crvitas SPV39 Lur.ted®

Civitas SPV40 Limited*

Civitas SPVAL Lim.red™

Clvitas SPVSC Lim.ted*
Clvias Social Housing I'tnance Company 2 Limted
C.vllas Soual Housing Jersey 2 Limted

Civtas SFV3 Limited®

.

_Registered numbet

Principat acrivily

16397707
124129
16818729
10114251
10546749
CA777380
10791473
10883112
10546407
10588530
10738318
10547353
10738510
10738542
10775419
10397698
124876
10156529

Finance company
Ho.ding company
Property .nvestnignl
Property _nvestment
Property Investmrent
Property nvestntent
Property nvestment
roperty investment
Property investment
Property nvestnient
Pronerty nvestmenl
Property investment
Property .nvestment
Property ‘nvestrent
Froperty ‘nvestment
Finance company

Ho.ding company
Property mvestaent

Country of incorporati
Engiand & Wales
fersey

Exngland & Wales
Engiand & Wa'les
Eagland & Wales
Lnag:and & Wales
Eagland & Wales
Fngland & Waies
England & Wales
England & Wales
fnagland & Wales
England & Wales
Lngland & Wales
England & Wales
Fngland & Wales
Fngland & Waies
Jlersey

Lagland & Wales
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Namé . .
Crvitas SPV4 Lim:ted®

Clvitas SPV3 Limued*

C.vitas SPVe Limited™

Civitas SPV9 Limiled*

Civitas SPV1C Limneg”
Cryitas SPVI2 Limited”
Civitas SPVI7 Limited”
Civitas SPV18 L m.ited”
Civitas SPV19 Limited*®
Civitas SPV2C Limited*
Civitas SPV22 Lmited®
Civitas SPV24 Limted”
Clvitas SPV26 Lim.ted*
Civitas SPV23 Limited™
Civitas SPV30 Lim_ted*®
Crvitas SFV31 Lomited®
Crvitas SPV32 Lomted*
Chvitas SPV34 fomrited™
Cruitas SPV36 Limmieed”
Civitas SPV42 Limited=
Civitas SFV4Z Lontited®
Civitas SPVAS Limited™
Covitas SPVAS Limned®
Covitas SPV47 Limite d™
Clovitas SPvag [miued”
as SPV31 Lmited*
Cwitas SPV3E2 Lo aed”
Cuvitas SPVES Lomited”
Covitas SPVE4 Limited®
Covitas SPV70 Lor:ted
Civitas SPV71 Limited®
Chvitas SPV72 Lo ted™
Crvitas SPV74 Lo ted®
Covitas SPVYS Lomited:

Covitas SEVISS [, ited”
Cvitas Sova, Hous ng 1o
Clrtas SPVE LLmited”

Costas STV2B Lorited®
v.las SPVEE Lomitedt
Civitas SP L.oriteds
Cotas SEVSY Lomoed™
Clvras SPVAG Lim.ted”
Civiias SFVnl Loriteds
Civitas SPVES Levited”
Cortas SPVYT Limaeds
Covitas SPV78 Lomted”
Coritas SEV7I L mited”

Covias SPva2 Lomteds
Cvtas SPVE3 L. ted”
Cvifas SPVE3 Lim.ted”
Covtas SFVI3 Lo ted*
Covtas SFVA7 Limited*
Cotas SEVICT Lor red”

Registel ed numbet

Principal actvity

Coyntry of incorporation

1ance Carnany 3 Lonltedt

16433744
16479104
10874493
10545388
103535243
10546753
10473036
10546651
10548932
10588733
107459358
10751512
10864336
10311565
10956625
10974889
NncC7173
10738381
10584732
10738356
10334877
10871854
16871910
16873275
10873293
10326623
10827606
10A3%7805
10938411
10776201
10888632
109338622
Nneco18ss
1601834
11061398
14327873
162327714
103368157
10333228
1521623
11356453
HnGI444

11192811
1360734
1371128
11300749
11288131
11463830
N3CCS33

Property investment
Froperty investrent
Property imvestment
Property vestment
Froperty ‘nvestment
Froperty vestinent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
opery nvestment
Frooerty .nvestment

Property investment
Property investment
Froperty Lnvesiment
Property investment
Property investment
Pre
Property ‘nvestme:it
Froperty nvestment

Tty ‘nvestment

Property imvestrent
Proverty invesiment
Pronerty nvestiment
Promerty vestment
Froperty nvestment
Froperty InvestTent
Praperty nvestTent
Froverty nvestrent
Provderty nvestment
Eronerty nvestment
Fromerty avestoient
Fronerty nvestment
Property nvestTent
Property nvestreant
Property mwvestrent
Property nvestnent
Property nvestment
Fonance Coroanv

Frooperty .nvestrrent
Frooerty iny

Froperty rvestrent
Property ‘vestrent
froverty .nvestrent
Pronerty nwvestrent
Property nvestrant
Froperty avestment
Property .nvestment
Pronerty nveastrent
F:
Fr
Property .nvastment

Detty avestrent
perty vestment

Property avestrent

Frooerty ‘231 ent
Pronerty nvestvant
Froperty avestment

Froperty nvestrent

England & Waes
Eng:and & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Engiand & Wa.es
England & Wales
England & Wales
Engiand & Wales
England & Wa.es
Erg.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
England & ‘Nales
England & Wales
Engiand % Wales
Lng.and & Wa'es
fng.and & 'Wa.es
Eagland & ‘Wa es
England & Wa.es
Engiand & Wales
Lag'anad & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & 'Nales
Eng.and & ‘Wa.es
Frg.and & 'Nales
Eng.and &% Wales
Eng and & Wales
Lag.and & ‘Nales
Lrg.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Naes
England & WVales
Lhg.and & ‘Wa.es
Engand & Wa,es
Ergand & Wa es
Eng.and & 'Ma es
Lng.and & WVa es
Lngland % Waes
Eng.and & MNaes
Eng.and & WVales
Eng.and & WVa.es
Engand & Wa.es
Lngand % Ma.es
Fagland & Waes
Eng.and & 'Wales
Eng.and & Waes
Eng.and % Wa es
Eng and &% Maes
Lng.and & Maes
Frgland & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Engand & Wales
Eng.and & 'MNa.es
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T — R P,
Civitas SF\J’]CE Limited® 11532177
Clvitas SFVIGE Limited™ 11532179
Civitas SPVIOY Lin ted* 115352182
Civitas SPV11E Limited™ 11504299
Civitas SPVIU7 L.mited* 11504445

Civitas Sorial Housing Flnance Cormpany 4 Limitad® 11306660
Clvitas SPV23 Limited® 10746881
Civitas SPV5S4 Limited™ 11033750
Civitas SPVSS Limited™® 111912
Civitas SPV69 Limled* M142372
Civitas SPV73 Limited* 10939C75
Civitas SPV84 Limited® 114814355
Clvilas SPV86 Limued* 11418432
C.vitas SPV8Y Limited™ 108889C3
Civitas SPV86 Limied® $09739C44
Civitas SPVIC Limited® 10939131
Civitas SPVIL Limted* 10941277
Civitas SPV32 L.miad* 11148913
Civitas SPV93 Lim ted” 11045111
C.v_tas SPVI4 Limvited” H26E108
Civitas SPV96 Lim.ted® 11270786
Civitas SPVICO Lorited® HO69703
Civitas SPVICT Lorited® 9978282
Covilas SPVICE Limiied® 115215353
Civitas SPYIGS Limited® 11532120
Cryitas SPV1LZ Lemited” 1573750
Cwitas SPVIL4 Linmted® 11579733
Civitas SPV113 Limued” 1822178
Civitas SPV118 Lo ited™ 1111498
Cryitas SPV121 Limrted” 103997
Covitas SPV12Z Lim led® 11482646
Ciwitas SPV 126 L ted”t 11459821
Civitas SPV127 lamited” 10911401
Civitas SPV129 Lo ited® 1664994
Civitas SPVIZC Limited® 11703C74
Civitas SPV13] Limited” 11675132
Civitas SPV132 Limited® 114735733
Civitas SPV143 Linmlted® 1842306

SPW153 Limited (orevious:y Pieldoay Limued;® 5219012

Civitas SPV148 Limued® 11632633
Civitas SPV14% Lim:ited* 1146269
Crvitas SPVIS0 Linured® 11462533
I'PI CC 324 Lid” 11633615

Civitas Socia. tlousing Finance Comrpany 5 Limted? 13C83C7Y
Civitas SPVY7 Lomited® 10536368
Civitas SPV13 Limited* 09317682
Crvitas SPV37 Limied® 107384360
Civitas SPV44 L.mited™ 10588783
Crvitas SPVAI Limited® 11031349
Civitas SPVSE Lomited” 11036463
Civitas SPV62 Lomited® 10937328
Civitas SPV6S Limited® 10958467
Crvitas SPV6E7 Lomited? 103373239
Civitas SPVEE Lirited* 10938269
Civitas SPV98 Limited® 111786495

Principal acuviny

Country of 1INCOF POrINSH

Property investment
Property investment
Properly investment
Froperly 1nvestment
Property 1nvestment
Finance Company

Property immvestment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property imvestment
Property investment
Property 1nvestment
Property 1Investmen
Property 1mvestment
Property 1nvestment
Properly investment
PFroperty 1nvestment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Properny investment
Froperty investment
Property 1nvestment
Froperty investment
Property investment
P-operty mvestmeant
Property investment
Property investnent
Property investment
Property 1nvestriernnl
Property investment
Froperty mvestment
Froperty 1Investment
Property 1nvestment
Property 1mvestment
Property .avestment
Ho.ding company

Properly investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property 1mvastment
Property 1nvestment
Finance Company

Property investment
Fropertly 1mvestnient
Property investmeant
Property investment
Froperty mvestment
Property investmnent
Property investment
Fropernty investment
Property investment
Property investmient
Property mvestment

Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
kng.and & Wales
Eng-and & Wales
Eng.and & ‘WVales
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lngland & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Eng and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & ‘Wales
Fngland & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Lag.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Walss
Engand & Wwales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Fngland & wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wailes
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lag.and & Wales
fngand & 'Wales
Eng.and & Wailes
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wi'les
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & Waies
Eng.and & Wales
kng.and & Wales
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Name

Civitas SPVS9Y Limited®
Civitas SPV104 Limited®
Clviras SPVICE Limited”
Clvitas SPV1TS Limited®
Civitas SPV123 Limited®
Civitas SFV133 Limiuted®
Crvitas SPV134 Limited®
Civitas SPV133 Limited™
Civitas SPV136 L.mited”
Civias SPVI43 Limited™
Civitas SPVI44 Limited”
Civitas SPV146 Limited™

Bryn Eithin (2019 Linnited”

Crvitas SPVI47 Limited*
Mynydd Mawr {2019}
Crvitas SFV152 Lim:ted™
Crvitas SPV15S Limated™
Crvitas SPVIBG Lintred™
Clvitas SPVISY Limiled®
Clvitas SPV1SE Limied™
Clvitas 3PVIB0 Lim_ted*
Bedford SPVI lamited”

Limited™

Br'dge Property Herts Lmited®
Bricdge Fropao LLmited®

FPI Co 294 Lid*
Civitas SPY14 Lomited™

vitas SPY HE Led >
Civitas 3PVI6 Limited™
Civitas SPV21 Limtted®
Civitas §FV189 Lo ted”
Civitas Finaneng FLET

Registered number

Principat act‘wri:y

11478707
1532174
N532135
N580Ce8
(8233432
11638372
N689451
1579830
11579760
115488C8
113486985
1861560
11844898
11861974
1844937
11955719
12044281
12081093
12188610
12202674
122729C8
12313518
12433983
12443439
1519225
1C473041]
12784895
Camrssy
16631341
12238313
13546134

Country of incorporalion

Property investment
Property investmeant
Property investment
Proverty mnvestment
Property Investment
Property investment
Froperty invesiment
Property investirant
Property investmant
Properly 1nvestment
Property invesiment
Ho.ding Company

Proverty invesiment
Hoid:ing Company

Fropeny nvestment
Froperty ‘nvestrmeant
Froperty investment
Froperty nvestmeant
Property investment
Froperty mvestment
Property imvestment
Property .nvestment
Pronerty ‘nvestnrant
Prooerty nvestmeanl
Property nvestment
Property investnient
Froperty nvestrent
Property investrent
Froperty nvestyent
Property investrent
Ho.d ng Company

England & Wa.es
England & Wa’es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa'les
England & Wales
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lag.and & Wales
England & Wa.es
Fngland & Wales
kngiand & Wales
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eag.and & Wales
Lagland & 'Na.es
Fngland & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
England & Waes
Eng.and & ‘Va es
Fngland & wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & wales
Lng.and & Wa.es
England & Wa es

* These entiies are exemn pt ot 1he requitements of the Com panies Acl 2006 relating 1o the auchl alhindmidual hnancial statements by virtue of Sectiun 4794 of that

Art These are all enuties that have a year end of 31 March 2023

The regisiered addresses for ine sabsidianes are consisian: pased on neir couniry of incorooranon and are as folows:

e England & Wales entities: [.in< Company Maiiers Limited. 5.1 F.oor, 63 Gresnam

e Jersey entities: 12 Cag.e Sreen 5t Tclier. Jersey JE2 3RT

Trade receivan es

Prepaymen:s and oiner receivao.es

Accrued income

Total

Prepaymen:s and o:ner recelvao’e amoun:s include prepaid .ega. and prolessiona. fecs of ENIL (2022 F34.000) that have «

Siureer London LC2V 7NQ

31March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000

£000

1544
420

8%
2.599

115C
19GZ
1258
4310

een

inc.rred 1IN connectlion with acg.isions yet o oe comp eied and £285.00C (2022 £1.045.080) in respec: of wncomp eted warss
OnN 1€ RIOPCITY Dorifo.ia




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Cash neld by so.icitors
Liquidity funds
Cash_’zﬁelg ar panx

Cash and casn eqiiivalents
Restricied casn
Total cash held at bank

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

£°000 £ano

64 7%

15,636 10,489

10,239 12.258

© 25933 23173

315

o o 23438

Liguidity funds refer lo money placed in money market funds. These are highly .iguid funds with accessibility within 24 hours

and sub ect o insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash neld by soliciiors 1s money hoid in escrow for expenses expected (0 be incarred in re_ation o investment proper:ies

pending completion These funds are available immediately on demand.

Restricted cash represents amaudants ne.d for specific commitmenss. tenan' deposits and retention money held oy .awyers in
relation to deferred payments sabject to achievement of ceriain conditions, olher retentions and cash segregated o fund repair.
maintcnance and improvement works o bring the properties up to satisfaciory standards for the Group and the (enants.

Rewentions®
coraa’s

Dividend witnnolding tax payaole

Deferred income

Arounts duc o subsidiary companies

Tenant deposits ne.d:

Total -

31 March 2022

* Comparanves have been re-gpalysed tu colrect the analysis al £228,000 of tenani deposits which had previously been inchided in retentions

i

Snare capita. represenis e nomina. va.ue of consideranion received by the Company for (e issuc of Ordinary shares

Share capital
Al beginning and end of year

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
ﬁt breigrininrirng and end of year

year ended
31 March 2023
E'Q0O

6,225

For the
year ended
3L March 2023

622.461380

31 March 2023 Restated

£000 E00U

’ 20 60

745 685

940 1,057

374 358

36128 271632

207 273

B S 218,414 274,020

o - For th:; - i’or the’

vear ended
31March 2022
£'000

0.5

For the
year ended
31 March 2022

522.461.380

During e year. the Company purcaased 6.050.00C Ordinary shares ‘o pe ne.d in reasury a: a cost of £4.651.600 (31 March 2022

1C.0725.00C Ordinary shares for £9.259.0C0).

During “he previcds year, the Company reissued 565.0C0 Ordinary shares held in ireasury tor £647,600. The cost of purchasing
these shares into ireas.ry of £484.C0C has neen credized 1o 1ne capita. reduction reserve with the gain credited o tne share

premiam reserve.

Al 31 March 2023 1the Company ne.d 16075.0C0 (31 Maren 2022: 10,025,000) Ordinary shares In iIeasury. Tne snares wil. coninie

‘o pe Acld in ireasury antl elther reissded or canceled.

At 31 March 2023, the number of Ordinary shares used (o ca'culate the net asset val e per share is 605.386.38C (31 March 2022:

512436.38C) wnlch cxoludes 1ne shares held in rreasury.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

The share premiuin reserve represents ine amounis subscrived for Ordinary share capital in excess ot nominal val.e less

associated issue cosis of tne subscriptions,

AL k);ginnitlg of yea}i

For movemeanis in :he year, piease see details in note 12.0.

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£'000

292,626

292,626

For the

year ended
31March 2022
£'000

292462
164
292.625

The capita, reduciion reserve is a distrinpuiab.e reserve to waich the va.ue of the cancetled snare premium was ‘ransferred.
Purs.ant 1o Articie 3 of The Comoanies (Reducuon of Share Capiial) Order 2008, the balance held in the capual reduction
resarve 1s to be treated for the purposes of Par: 23 of the Companies Act 2005 ag a realiged profiz and therefore avaiable tor
distribution in accordance wiin section 83C of the Companies Act The Company has used 1s reserve for the cos:s of buying

nack snares o be heid in (reas.ry

At neginniﬁg of year
Shares reissued (rom treasiry
Shares posgn: back inio rcas.ry

Atendof year

For movemenss in the year. p.ease s2e detalls in noe 120,

;bCMng- of yéar
{Lass)/orofi: for ihe year
Dividends paid

Atend of year

Ag a3l Maren 2023 taere is no LHimate conro ng party.

is reserve represen:s tnc profits and losses of :ne Comp

any

For the
year ended
31 Maich 2023
£'000

222,365

(4,65
317.714

For the

year ended
31March 2023
. £000
(74.204)
(2,791
~ (34.459)

(111,434)

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
0nn

331140
484
(9.289)

322,355

Fou the

year ended
31 March 2022
£000

(51.47%)
21362
(34.09%

T razca

For a. re.ated pary rransaciions and ransacions with iae Inves.men: Adviser p.ease mase refercnae 1o noles 301 and 30 2 of
cne Gro.wn's consolidaled financlal siatemen:s and amoun:s due o saosidiary companies in note HE anove.

4

P.easc reler (o noe 33.0 of tne Group Conso.dared financia. staiements on page 110

Since e year end. Civiias Socla. Housing Jersey 1 Limiad and Civiias Socia. Housing Jersey 2 Limited nave 1ss

e Company t0a..ng E16.249.000,

.ed dividends o
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures

The Group has chosen 1o adop: EPRA pest practice guidelines for ca.culating key a.iernative performance measures. Notes 1.0
10 7.0 support the EPRA mertrics disciosed on pages 28 and 29 of the Report where the defininon and purpose of each metric

are ouliined.

Earnings from operational activities

for the year
ended
3 March 2043

For the year
ended
31 March 2032

Profiz after taxanon (£'0C0) 25,472 44754
Change in fair val.e of derivative financial insiruments {(£000) 2,826 {2.675)
Cnanges in valde of investment properties (£'0C0) (2,640} (12.269)
Costs of ear.y repaymernt of deot {(F000) 1271 -
EPRA Earnings (£000) - o 26,929 25 810
Weighied avcragé nambper of shares n issué (ad’usted for snares Aeld in treasury) 608,552,681 518797942
EFRA Earnings per share (FPS) - baéic & diuted B o . 4.43p B ﬁ
N ) | EPRANet EPRA Ne< EPRA Net
o e ety O ahie
31 March 2023 N o o
Net asgeis (£'000) 661,909 661,909 661,909
Fair va .e ot derivatve financial instruments {(£0G0) {8.129) {8.129) -
Ad_ Lsiment 10 fair va we for nan< oorrowings (FOCC) - - 11.736
NAV (FO00) N ’ T 653780 653780 673,645

31 March 2022

NAV (0RC)

NAV per share

EPRA KTY

Nampor of snares iniss.e (ad,usied for shared hed in reas.ry) 606,386,380 606,386,380 606,386,380
_ 107.82p 107.82p H1.09p

o T L‘}’R;'\Ner T EPRA Met - LPRA Net
Reanstatement Tangible isposal
_ Yalui R ASSCTg . Vﬂ\i

Ne: assels (F'000) 575547 575.547 575.517
Fair va ..e ol derivauve financial insir.men:s (£CC0) (2,121} {2131} -
Ad usiment o falr va. e for panz nporrowings (£CC0) - Z2.544
) ' - 573415 573413 678131

Mo er of snaares iniss.e fad wsied for shared ne.d in freasdry) 512-4358.380  A1243638C 41243538C
109960 189940 1iIC.740

o o o - T For the h For the

St hnarch 2098 1 Maren 2hss

inves men: })roper:y {F'000) 7 B - - 978147 958756
A.owance for esiimaled p.renasers cost 59.973 35412
CGross up comrnp.eed oroperty _c;arrfo o (F 1038020 _I,C%?IGE
Ann.a.used ne renis (£600) T 57654 54.091
Add notiona. ren: expirazion of ren: free periods or oiher ease incentives (£C5C) - -
~oooed-ip ne: anna.ised ren: (£000) i 57654 51091
’ ) 5.58% 528%

5._5_39i 528%

EPRA 'Topped-.;pﬁr{w




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued
- o ) - " - o For the o Cor the
, , $1 Marcn 2035 51 March 2072
Estimated Marget Rental Value (ERV) of vacant spz;es (£'000) 10 -
Estimated Market Rental Value (ERV) of whole portiolio (£7000) 57,654 54,09
EPRA Vacancy Rae - S 0.02% 0.00%
T - i o o - Far the For the
M Marcn 505 3t Mavc 5022
£'000 £000
Tota. administrative and ope_ratjng cxpenses o 7 - 11.821 10.247
Direct oroperty expenses 1,941 378
Less propery expenses recovered arough rents (1,512) (995)
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) S o - 12,250 10.23C
Dircct vacancy cosis - -
EPRA Costs (excluding direct vacancy costs) - o T 1z2se 16230
Renta! income 54,607 81.636
Less rechargeap.c cos's received (1,512) (995}
Gross rental income B - ' 53095 T 50641
EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs) 23.07% 20.20%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) - T 2mo7t%  an20%

The Gro.p 1as not incurred any direct vacancy costs,

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

_ i I . I7dem 7 kb g

Net Debt g
Borrowings from financial institutions (F'000) 367,925 357.650 8
Cash and cash equivaien:s (FOCO) . _ (35588) (83.337) E
_ . S _ - 38235 3037 2
3

Total Property Value ;
Inves:ment properties at fair va.we (E000) 953,364 945237 E
Net receivaoies (E0C0) 26,743 25,897 g

" 9B0a07 | 972129

EPRA LTV 7 33.91% 31.24%
o - o B o . T/ mzo; 31Maich 20;
E000 ¥
Net receivables comprises - -
Ciner recelvanies 24,783 73519
Trade and other reccivaolcs 11,260 12,865

Less rade and other payabies N o ) 9300) (94392
Total 26,7453 25892
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

Components of Netiﬂé.sets used in EPRA LTV calcu]atidn
Investmen: properties a: fair valuc

Net receivables

Cash and cash equivaients

Less porrowings from financia. instizutions
Net assets used in the EPRA LTV calculation

Less amounis exciuded from thc caici.ation
Interest raze derivarives
TInamortised ioan 1ssiie Cos:s

31 March 2023
£000

31 March 2022

Net assets

Acgalgitions 'mc.uding iﬂnclden:a. Eos{s of purchase
Devciopment
Investment properties

Incremencal letab.e space

Ennancing letian.e space

Tenan: incenives

Otner maena! non-a..oca:ed wypes of expenditure

Capr.a'_lseg inerest
Total Capi;a.l Expenditure

Conversion from acor.als (o cash pasis

. - £000_
953,364 945.237
26,743 26832
35,588 53.337
o -  (367.925)  (337.050)
647,770 558416
8,129 2131
6,010 5000
) B 661,909 675547
) D - T T T __ For ll]_f'_ —;7 };)( the
year ended year ended
31 Maich 2023 31 March 2022
—_— _ — _ Eoo0 0 EUDU
543 33,465
4,944 5.818
1,700 1614
) 7187 40898
] ] (597) 1312
6,590 42.210

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

Tne Gro.o has no: captadsed any overhead or opcraling expenses

The Group nas ne join: Ven .tes 3o There is no 0ING veniire propery o disclose In ne apove lan.e.



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued

This 18 e dillitdl growtn rate, pbased on growtn in net asset value per share since .aunch and dividends paid to

ordinary sharenolders.

_ 3tMarch 2023

31 March 2022

NAV per share 109.1600p 110.3C0Cp
31 May 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p ¢.7500n
31 Augus: 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p C.75000
30 November 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p C.730Cp
9 March 2018 Intenim dividend 0.7500p 75000
g June 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 1.25000
7 Seprember 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 123000
30 November 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 1.2500p
1 January 2019 Inierdm dividend 11100p 111000
28 Feoruaary 2019 Interim dividend 0.1400p 014000
7 une 2019 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
6 Sepiemper 2019 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
29 Novemnper 2019 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
P8 Febrruary 2020 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250p
12 June 2020 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.3250D
7 Sepienber 2070 Interim dividend 1.3500p 13500p
4 Decemper 2020 Interim dividend 1.3500p 1.3500p
1 March 2021 Interim dividend 1.3500p 1.35C00
11 June 2021 Interim dividend 1.3500p 1.35C0p
10 Seprember 2021 Interir dividend 1.3875p 138750
13 December 2021 [n:erim dividend 1.3875p 13875p
11 Maran 2027 [n:erim dividend 1.3875p 1.3875p
28 Junc 2022 Interim dividend 1.3875p -
9 Septemper 2022 Interim dividend 1.4250p
9 December 2022 Inierim dividend 1.4250p
11 Marca 2023 Inierirt dividend 1.4250p -
139.0100p 134.4875p
INAV per snare at .anncn 98.0000p S80000p
6.29% 5.63%

Levered TRR
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Five Year Financial Results

For the For the For the For the For the

year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
o . s e T T e g0 ™ ua.
Revenue
Ren:al income 54,607 31.636 45 020 45,155 35.738
Lass direct proverty expanscs (1.941) {978) (1.175} {259) -
Net rental income ' ' 52666 50658 47845 45306 35738
Directors remuneralion (211) (206) {198} (176) (163)
Invesimen: advigory fees (6,217) (6.132) (s.U7 {6.183) (654370
General and adminisralive expenses {5.393) {3.909) {3.183) {3500 (3.022)
Tolal expenses T T aLs2) (0247 9.498) (98500 (9.547)
Change in fair value ot invesiren! propeorties 2,640 12.269 5511 9.389 3652
Operating Profit T T 43,485 52.580 43858 45435 29748
Financ-c income o T - T - W 7 T 25 - llE‘- 49]-
Finance expenses rciating [0 pank bhorrowings (15,335) (1.808) {7.737) (7.342) (3.975)
Finance cxpenses — reating (0 O snarc amorisation - - - (5.400)
Change in fair va:ue of interes: ra:o derjvaiives (2,.826) 2,575 {65 {478) -
Profit before tax T T T 25472 44754 36075 37725 19.854
Taxalon - - -
Profit béiﬁg total coﬁii_:_l'aaensive incom-é T T - —254?2_ T 44734 36.075 7i37:7257 T 19854
Earnings per share - basic 4.19p 7.230 5.800 5060 1570
Earnings per share - diluted 4.19p 723D 5.800 & 0ho 47Zp
Dividend declared (per share) ___ 570p 5.35p _54Cp 5.3C0 500p
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Five Year Financial Results

Continued

Assets

Non-current assets
Invesument property
Other receivan.es
Tn:erest rate derivatives

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Noan-current assets
Trade and other receivaoles
Casn and cash equiva.en's

31March 2021 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Total é_é sets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payab.es
Banx and loan borrowings

Non-current liabilities
Banx and oan borrowings
Interes: ratc derivatives

Total liabilities

Total net assets
Assels

Snare capital

Share premium reserve
Capital reduction reserve
Retained eamings

Total equi?m h

Net assets per share - basic

Net assets per share — diluted

Share price

Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis)

Leverage

£000 £000 £uou_ £00u £000
953,364 943237 595584 867988  B20.094
24783 23319 21905 10735 6.824
8120 a3l - -
986,276  970.887 915589 878743 826918
1,260 12865 12821 10838 5.723
35588 53337 107097 58374 51347
46848 66202 19918 69212 60.070
1033024 1037089 1035507 947955  886.988
(9,300) (9,492} {9345} (7.743) {13.324)
I & < S e R

(9300) (9492  (69782)  (&747%)  (15324)
(361915)  (352050) (292183  (209.440)  (A05.158)

: - - 544 (478) -
_ (361.915) (352050) (92727 (09.918)  (203155)
TB71215), (361547 (362009) | Q77391)  (20480)
661,908 6575347 673498 570554 666,508
6225 6.275 5.225 5275 5225
292,626 292625 292453 292405 292405
3774 322365 33140 330926 331675
45,344 54331 43570 41008 36253
661909 675547 673498 570,554 656.508
10916p  1C30p  1083Cp 107870  107.08p
109.16p  1C3Co  10830p  10787p  1C7.08p
5370p  87.40p 10780 964Cp  96.000
4184%  3723%  2036%  2351%  17.45%
35.61% 34.43% 34.4787% ) ?.@.90% ?.Z.UC';’S
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of 1p each are quoted

on the Official List of the FCA and traded on the premum
segment of the Main Marke: of the London Stock Exchange
{LSE).

SEDOL humber BD8-BD3

ISIN GBOC3D8EBD32
Ticker/TIDM csH
LEI - 213800?(53@84]8@1%6?95

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Cornpany's NAV 15 released o the L.SE on a quarterly
tasis and published on the Company's websie:
www Civitassoclalhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Copies of the Company's Annual and ~alf-Vearly Repor:s.
Stock Exchange announcements and further informanon
on the Company can be obtained from 1ts weksize:
www.clvirassocialhousing.com,

Share Register Enquiries

The regisar for the Company’s Ordinary shares 1s
maintained by _ink Group. ‘n the event of queries
regarding your holding, please contac: the Registrar

on G377 664 (300 {calle are charged at the standard
geographic rae and will vary by provider; calls ourside
the UK will be charged ar ‘he applicable internazional
rate}. Lines are open between 9.00am and 5.30pm,
vonday to “nday, excluding pubhe holidays in England
and Wales. You can also emaill enquines@hinkgroup.co.uk,

Changes of name and/ar address mus: be notified in
wrniung o the Reqgistrar: ank Group, Ceniral Squiare.
29 Welling:on Street, _eeds .87 40,

Key Dates
June ) Amm-al reS‘\Jlté_éﬁnO'Llnced )
. 7 ' :?aymen: ofifréurzh 1h;énm dl‘{ldeﬂd
September Company's half-year end o

7777”7777 “annual general meeung S

- Jaymen: of firs: inzernm drvidend
December =alf-yearly resil-s announced

) Paymert: of S_G‘.(iond iﬁ@nm dlvu-j-eﬁd )

Pebrua.i-y Paymen: of third intenm dividend

l_\_vlarch Company‘s_ vear end ]

Association of Investment Companies

The Company 1s a member of the AIC, which

publishes stausucal informaton tn respect of

member companies. The AIC can be contacted on

020 7287 5555, enguiries@heaic.couk or vistt the websiie:
www theaic.couk.

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Shareholders now have the opportuniiy 0 be notified by
emall when the Company’s Annual Report, dalf-Yearly
Report and other formal communications are availlable
on the Company’'s websiig, instead of recewving prinzed
copies by pos:. This has environmen:al benefiis in the
reduction of paper. prining, energy and water usage, as
well as reducing costs o the Company

[fyou have not already elected to receve electronic
communications from the Company and wish o do =o,
please contact the Registrar



Glossary

ATIFM means ‘he Alternatve Investment und Manager.

AIFMD means the Alternative invesiment Fund Managers
Regulauons 2013 (as amended by The Aliernanve
nvestmen: rund Managers {(Amendment etc.) (EU =x1t)
Regulations 2019} and the Investment Funds Sourcebook
forming part of the 'CA FEandbook.

ALMO means an arms length management organisation,
a not-for-profit company that provides housing services
nn hehalf of alocal authenty.

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) means a
financial measure of histonical financ¢ial performance,
financial position, or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in the apphicable finanaal
reporing framewaork.

Annual contracted rent roll means he annual
contractual renzal iIncome currently receivable on a
property as at the Balance Shee: daze

Approved Provider means Approved Providers. local
awrrharnities, ALMOs, Community interes: Companies,
Registered Charties and other regulated organisations
directly or indirectly in receipt of payment from local or
central governmen: ncluding the NHS.

Care Provider means a provider of care services 1o the
occupan:s of Specalist Suppor:ed Zousing, reqistered
with the Care Qually Commussion.

CIM means Cviras invesimen: Managemen: amied or
CIM {formerly knoewn as Civitas Housing Advisors Limized
untlits change of name on 7 May 2020).

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulator of
Community ‘nierest Companies as a ComInUnity interes:t
company and reqistered as such with Companies mouse.

Company mearns Civitas Social HJousing 2LC. a company
incerporated i fngland and Wales with company
number 10102528,

CMA Order means the Statutory Audit Services Order
2014, 1ssued by the Compeuzion and Markets Authority.

Current Leverage means he perceniage taken as towal
kbank borrowings drawn over 07al assets

Dividend Yield means the ratio of 1otal annual dividends
declared for the financal year over marke: price per
share.

EPRA means “he European “ublic Real 2s5tate ASSoCiatlion.

EPRA EPS 1s the EPRA sarmings divided by “he weighted
average number of shareg in issuc in the poriod.

EPRA LTV is the EPRA loan 1o value ratio calculated as
debt net of cash balances divided by the marke: value
of property (including net recervables) as defined 1in the
ZPRA Best Practice Guideiines.

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY”) 1s calculated as
the annuahsed rental incorne based on the cash rents
passing a: the balance sheet date less non-recoverable
property operating expenses. divided by the gross
market value of the property.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™} 15 an
ZPRA NAV metnc which assumes that entilies never seli
assets and aims to represent the value required o rebuild
the entty.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA™) 1s an EPRA
NAY meric which assumes that entities buy and sell
asse's, thereby crysiallising certain levels of unavoidable
deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV") 15 an EPRA

NAY memnce which represents the shareholders' value
under a disposal scenano, where deferred 1ax. financal
instraments and certain other adjusimen:s are calculaed
to the full exzent of their llabihzy. net of any resuling tax

Gross Asset Value means total assets.
Group means the Company and s subsidianes.

Housing Association or HA means an imndependent
society, body of trustiees or company estabhshed for
the purpose of providing low-cost social housing for
people in housing need generally on a non-profi:
making basis. Any wrading surplusis typically used to
malnzain exisung homes and to help finance new ones.
Fousing Associauons are regualazed by the Regulator of
Social Housing.

Investment Adviser means Civitas nvesimen:
Managemen: Limited (‘{C’M"), a company incorporated n
England and Wales with company number 20278444, 1n 1ts
capacly as invesiunent adviser to the Company.
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IPO means [mual Pubhc Offerning.

IRR means internal rate of returmn.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of retarn mcluding
the impact of debrt,

Local Authority or LA means ‘he adminisirative bodies
for the local government in England comprising 426
auarthortties (including 32 London boraughs).
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Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means the net asset value of the
Group on the relevan: date, prepared 1n accordance with
(PRS accounting principles.

Net Initial Yield means the ratio of net rental income
and gross purchase price of a property.

NHS means the pubhcly funded healthcare system of
the Lnized Kingdom comprising The Natignal Health
Service in England. NHS Scotland, NHS Wales and Fealth
and 3Sowal Care in Northern Ireland. including, for the
avotdance of doubt, NHS Trusts.

NHS Trust means a legal entily. set up by order of the
Secretary of State under section 25 of, and Schedule 4 <o,
-he Naunonal Health Service Act 2006, o provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service.

Ongoing Charges means the fiqure published annually
by the Company which shows the drag on performance
caused by operatonal expensgas. Vore specifically, it 18
rhe annual percentage reduction in shareholder retums
as a result of recurnng operaioenal expenses assuming
marke:s remain stanc and the portfoho s no: raded.
Alzthough the Ongoing Charges figure 18 based on
hustornical informanoen, i provides shareholders with an
indicanon of the ikely level of costs that will be mmcurred
in managing ~he Company in the fusure.

Portfolio means the Group's porifolio of assets

Portfolio Valuation means an independen: valuaion of
‘he Porifolio by Jones Lang LaSalle .umuized or such other
proper:y adviser as the Directors may select from ume

0 uime, based ypon the Porrfohe bemng held, direcily or
wmdirec:ly, within a comporate vehicle or equivalen: entiy
which 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
otherwise prepared 1n accordance with °CS “Red 3o00k”
guaidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real estate invesimens: rnis: in
accordance with the UX R2]T Regime introduced by the
L Tinance Act 2006 and subsequently re-wrnizen m:o
Par: "4 of the Corporation Tax Ac: 2870

RICS means 2oval neErranion of Charered Surveyors.

RSH means the Regulaior of Social mousing. the
execunve non-deparmen:ial public bedy, sponsored
by the Minis:ry of Housing, Commuunines and Local
Governmen:, which 18 the reguiator for Socilal Homes
providers in zngland and Wales.

Social homes or social housing means social rented
homes and other accommodaton that are offered a:
rents subsidised below market level or are constuen:s
of other appropnate rent regimes such as exempt rens
or are subject to bespoke agreemen’ with entities such as
NHS Trusts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or SSH means social
housing which mcorporates some form of care or other
ancillary service on ‘he premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a comorate vehicle
in which the Group's properties are held.

Target Return mecans the target reflrnm on mvesimen:

Total Return means Net Total Remumn. being the change
in NAV over the relevant period plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return maans a measure of the
return based upon share price movemen: over the period
plus dividend paid.

Valuation means an independen: valuation of the
or-folio by Jones Lang La$alle lamited or such other
praopery adviser as the Jirecrors may selec: from
wumne o ame, prepared in accordance with R1CS “Red
3c0k” guidehnes and based upon a valuation of each
underlying inves men: property rather than the valie
ascribed <0 the portfolio and on the assump:ion of

a theoretcal sale of each propery rather than the
corporaze entties in which all of the Company's
invesimen: properiies are held,

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
15 “he produc: of annual contracsed ren: roll ar penond end
and “he 1me 1 vears 1o when ~he lease expires for each
gwen lease summed across leases, and then divided by
the total annual contracted ren: roll of -he por:folio. The
resull 15 expressed i years WAL LT (s 8 key measurs of
“he quality of the Company's porifolio. _ong lease terms
underpin the securnty of the Company's income sream.



Company Information

Non-executive Directors
Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Peter Baxter, Senior .ndependen: Drector and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Comrmittee

Caroline Gulliver, Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement Commiitee

Alison Hadden
Alastair Moss

Registered Office

Link Company Matters Limited
67h Floor

655 Gresham Stree:

London ECZV /NQ

Registered no: 10407528

www civitassocialhousing.com

Alternative Investment Fund Manager

G10 Capital Limited
3 More ondon Riverside
London 857 2AQ

Investment Adviser

Civitas Investment Management Limited
25 Maddox Street
_ondon W15 20N

Joint Corporate Brokers

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropernaker Place

25 Ropemaker Street
_ondon =C2¥ 97V

Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited
One New Change
_ondon LC4M 9A-

Company Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited
bih Cloor

65 Gresham Stree:

London EC2V /NQ

Administrator

Link Alternative Fund Administrators Limited
Broadwalk =ouse

Southernhay West

Exeter 2X1'T5

Depositary

INDOS Financial Limited
5th Floor

54 renchurch Street
London sC3M 3V

Registrar

Link Group

Central Square

29 Wellington Streert
Leeds 1.874D7,

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
7 More Jondon Riverside
ondon §=7 2RT

Legal and Tax Adviser

Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP
Jashwood Fouse

69 Old 3road Street

London =CZ2M QS

Public Relations Adviser

Buchanan
“07 Cheapside
“ondon =C2V 6DN

Tax Adviser

BDO LLP
55 Baker Street
London Wil 75U
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Civitas Social Housing PLC
ink Company Matters Limited
51h :loor

65 Gresham Sree:

“ondon ~C2V /NQ

T 020 3058 4840

E enquiries@civitasim.com

W www.clvitasim.com




